
City of Prosser, WA 
601 7th Street 

Prosser, WA 99350 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

7:00 P.M. 
TUESDAY, MARCH 25, 2014 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
 
5. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Approve Payment of Payroll Checks Nos. 600029 through 600031 in the Amount of 
$2,173.87, and Direct Deposits in the Amount of $11,733.58, for the Period Ending 
March 11, 2014 ...................................................................................................................... Page 4 

 
b. Approve Payment of Claim Checks Nos. 10303 through 10370, in the Amount of 

$190,538.77 and Electronic Payments in the Amount of $24,233.65, for the Period 
Ending March 25, 2014.......................................................................................................... Page 6 

 
c. Accept Monthly Report by Prosser Economic Development Association for the 

Month of February 2014 and Authorize Payment for those Services in the Amount 
of $2,166.66 and Authorize Payment in the Amount of $1,416.67 for Grant Writer 
Services ................................................................................................................................ Page 17 

 
d. Adopt Resolution 14-_____ Approving the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 

between the City of Prosser and Benton County for Aerial Photography and 
Orthophoto Mapping Project of Portions of Benton County, Including the Areas 
Lying Within the City of Prosser and its Urban Growth Area and Authorizing the 
Mayor of Sign to Sign the Agreement ................................................................................. Page 22 

 
e. Approve a Labor Agreement between the City of Prosser and Teamsters Local 839, 

Public Works Staff for the term of January 1, 2014, through December 31, 2016 ............. Page 31 
 
f. Approve a Letter of Understanding with Teamsters 839, Public Works regarding 

Standby Pay ......................................................................................................................... Page 53 

The first Ordinance passed will be Ordinance 14-2876 
The first Resolution passed will be Resolution 14-1447 



 
g. Approve a Letter of Understanding with Teamsters 839, Public Works regarding the 

4/10 Work Schedule ............................................................................................................. Page 55 
 
h. Approve a Subscription Agreement with Washington Teamsters Healthcare Trust 

for Teamsters 839, Public Works Employees ...................................................................... Page 56 
 
i. Approve an Agreement with Washington Conference of Teamsters Pension Trust 

for Teamsters 839, Public Works Employees ...................................................................... Page 59 
 

 
7. COUNCIL ACTION 
 

a.) Approve Payment of Claim Check Nos. 10371 and 10372 in the Amount of 
$214.05 for the Period Ending March 25, 2014 ............................................................ Page 61 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to approve payment of claim check nos. 10371 

and 10372 in the Amount of $214.05 for the Period Ending March 25, 2014. 
 

b.) Consideration of an Acceptance of Gift of Right-of-Way by Catholic 
Charities Housing Services Along the Southern Boundary of the Parcel 
Commonly Addressed as 480 North River Road, for Construction of a New 
Street ................................................................................................................................ Page 63 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Accept the gift of Right-of-Way from Catholic Charities 
Housing Services contingent upon release of all security interests from the portion being 
gifted to the City. 

 
c.) RESOLUTION 14-_____ Approving the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 

for Bridge Inspection with Benton County and Authorize the Mayor to Sign 
the Agreement ................................................................................................................. Page 83 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Move to Adopt RESOLUTION 14-_____ Approving the 
Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for Bridge Inspection with Benton County and 
Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Agreement. 
 

d.) RESOLUTION 14-_____ Approving the Interlocal Agreement Regarding 
Solid Waste Management between the City of Prosser and Benton County 
(Lead Agency) and Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Documents .............................. Page 97 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Move to Adopt RESOLUTION 14-_____ Approving the 
Interlocal Agreement regarding Solid Waste Management between the City of Prosser 
and Benton County (Lead Agency) and authorize the Mayor to sign the documents. 

 
e.) RESOLUTION 14-_____ Approving all Specifications, Plans, Estimates, Bid 

Documents, Contract Provisions, Prepared by Benton County Pursuant to 

The first Ordinance passed will be Ordinance 14-2876 
The first Resolution passed will be Resolution 14-1447 



the Interlocal Agreement Executed on January 14, 2014, and Accepting the 
Lowest Qualified Bidder Granite Constructions Company Bid in the Total 
Amount of $1,172,000.00, of which the City’s Portion is $74,312.00, and 
Authorizing the Mayor to Sign and Execute any Documents or Contracts, if 
any, Necessary for the 2014 Bituminous Surface Treatment Project ...................... Page 108 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to adopt RESOLUTION 14-_____ approving all 

specifications, plans, estimates, bid documents, contract provisions, prepared by 
Benton County pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement executed on January 14, 
2014, and accepting the lowest qualified bidder Granite Construction Company 
bid in the total amount of $1,172,000.00, of which the City’s portion is 
$74,312.00, and authorizing the Mayor to sign and execute any documents or 
contracts, if any, necessary for the 2014 Bituminous Surface Treatment Project. 

 
f.) ORDINANCE 14-_____ Allowing WATVs on Public Streets .................................. Page 114 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Move to Adopt ORDINANCE 14-_____ allowing WATVs on 
Public Streets. 
 

g.) ORDINANCE 14-_____ Decreasing the Imprest Funds of Petty Cash for the 
City of Prosser and Indentifying its Distribution ...................................................... Page 122 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Move to Adopt ORDINANCE 14-_____ decreasing the 
Imprest funds of petty cash for the City of Prosser and indentifying its distribution. 

 
h.) Review, Discuss and Potential Adoption of ORDINANCE 14-_____ 

Amending Prosser Municipal Code 2.95 Regarding the Use of Credit Cards ........ Page 127 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Move to Adopt ORDINANCE 14-_____ Amending Prosser 
Municipal Code 2.95 regarding the use of credit cards. 

 
i.) Approve Various Agreements which Allow for the Acceptance of 

Debit/Credit Cards and other Electronic Payments .................................................. Page 135 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Move to approve the various agreements which allow for the 
acceptance of debit/credit cards and other electronic payments and authorize the Mayor to 
execute the agreements. 

 
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
9. ADD ON ITEMS 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

The first Ordinance passed will be Ordinance 14-2876 
The first Resolution passed will be Resolution 14-1447 



I 

I 

CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve payment of payroll 
check nos. 600029 through 600031 in the 
amount of $2, 173.87 and direct deposits in 
the amount of $11,733.58 for the period 
ending March 11, 2014 

Department: 
Finance 

Cost of Proposal: 
$13,907.45 

Amount Budgeted: 

i Director: 
Regina Mauras 

Meeting Date: 
March 25, 2014 
Regular Meeting 

' Contact Person: 
Toni Yost 

Various amounts in salaries, wages, and benefits. 

Reviewed by Finance Department: 

l~ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

Phone Number: 
(509) 786-2332 

Account Number: 
Various 

Name and Fund# 
Various 

I 1. Payroll Check Register 

Summary Statement: 
Payroll check nos. 600029 through 600031 in the amount of $2, 173.87 and direct 
deposits in the amount of $11,733.58 for the period ending March 11, 2014. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Approve payment payroll check nos. 600029 through 600031 in the amount of 
$2, 173.87 and direct deposits in the amount of $11, 733.58 for the period ending 
March 11, 2014 

Reviewed by Department 
Director: 

~~~ 
Date: 1l hi b0\Y. 
Today's Date:' 

March 11, 2014 I 

Reviewed by City Attorney: Approved by Mayor: 

N/A 
(JI/~ 

Date: i Date: J..---L,/ ..- j'-f' 
Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

4



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

536 03/14/2014 
537 03/14/2014 
538 03/14/2014 
539 03/14/2014 
540 03/14/2014 
541 03/14/2014 
545 03/14/2014 
546 03/14/2014 
547 03/14/2014 
548 03/14/2014 
549 03/14/2014 
550 03/14/2014 
551 03/14/2014 
542 03/14/2014 
543 03/14/2014 
544 03/14/2014 

Type 

Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 
Payroll 

CHECK REGISTER 

03/14/2014 To: 03/14/2014 

Acct# Chk# Claimant 

1 EFT 
1 EFT 
1 EFT 
1 EFT 
l EFT 
1 EFT 
1 EFT 
1 EFT 
1 EFT 
1 EFT 
1 EFT 
1 EFT 
1 EFT 
1 600029 
1 600030 
1 600031 

514 Financial, Recording & Elections 
521 Law Enforcement 
524 Protective Inspections 
580 Non Expeditures 

Oo:l GeneralFuni:l 

534 Water Utilities 

4a3 WaterFund 

535 Sewer 

407Sewer Fund 

chw~~ 
Signature 

Time: 14:47:48 Date: 03/11/2014 
Page: 1 

Amount Memo 

138.52 March Draw 
704. 72 March Draw 

1,015.85 March Draw 
5 54 .1 0 March Draw 

1,617.98 March Draw 
642.90 March Draw 
5 54 .1 0 March Draw 
595.45 March Draw 

1,371.50 March Draw 
689 .22 March Draw 

1,545.63 March Draw 
1,151.19 March Draw 
1,152.42 March Draw 

411. 7 5 March Draw 
1,155.67 March Draw 

606.45 March Draw 

2,561.48 
4,699.25 

744.97 
-652.58 

(,353.:12 

3,510.98 

3,510;98 

1.238.35 

],238.3.5 

13,907.45 Payroll: 

?:i/11/1'{ 

Date 

13,907.45 

5



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve payment of claim Meeting Date: 
check nos. 10303 through 10370, in the March 25, 2014 
amount of $190,538.77 and Electronic Regular Meeting 
Payments in the amount of $24,233.65 for 
the period endina March 25, 2014. 
Dei;?artment: Director: I Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Finance Regina Mauras I Toni Yost (509) 786-2332 

Cost of Proi;?osal: Account Number: 
$214,772.42 See Attached 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
See 2014 budget for each item listed. See Attached 

Reviewed by Finance DeRartment: 

r.. '~ ~---1· - / OCl 
Attachments to Agend a Packet Item: 

1. Check Register# 10303 through 10370 

Summar:y Statement: , 

Check Payments Amount I 

10303 throuah 10370 $190,538.77 
Electronic Payments Amount i 
IRS Federal Taxes $4,296.24 
American West Bank $112.29 
Wa Dept of Licensina $18.00 
Department of Revenue $12,362.94 

' Complete Merchant Solutions $702.21 
Modern Pavments $54.60 
WA Trust Bank $6,687.37 

I 

· Consistent with or Comparison to: 
City's policy to pay bills in a timely manner. 

Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 
Approve payment of 10303 through 10370, in the amount of $190,538.77 and Electronic 
Payments in the amount of $24,233.65 for the period ending March 25, 2014 

Reviewed by Dei;?artment . Reviewed by Citv Attorney: Ai;?i;?roved by Mayor: 
Director: 

Ut/~ ~ ~ 
NIA 

Date: 1i·10,1..014 'Date: Date: $_.l_/-ftf 
Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: · File Name and Path: 
March 20, 2014 

6



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

03/14/2014 To: 03/14/2014 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

552 03/14/2014 Payroll EFT IRS Federal Taxes 
10303 Kansas Payment Center 553 03/14/2014 Payroll 

514 Financial, Recording & Elections 
521 Law Enforcement 
524 Protective Inspections 
580 Non Expeditures 

001 0enera1Fund 

534 Water Utilities 

403.WalerFfuia; ••. 

535 Sewer 

4(l7 Sewer•Fll1l.d 

Time: 15:22:14 Date: 
Page: 

Amount Memo 

03/11/2014 
1 

4,296.24 941 Deposit For 03/14/2014 
514.50 03/14/2014 To 03/14/2014-

Support Withholding 

221.85 
558.83 

65.03 
3,480.55 

4,326.26 

323.83 

.·323.83 

160.65 

160:g5 

4,810.74 Payroll: 

3/11/1'-f 

Date 

4,810.74 

7



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

0312512014 To: 0312512014 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

Time: 08:42:33 Date: 03/2012014 
Page: 1 

Amount Memo 

563 03/25/2014 Claims 1 EFT American West Bank 112.29 Analysis Charge 

112.29 Analysis Charge 001 - 514 23 49 000 - Miscellaneous 

564 03/25/2014 Claims 1 EFT Complete Merchant Solutions 702.21 Credit Card Processing Fees 

001 -514 30 49 000 -Miscellaneous 21.07 Credit Card Processing Fees 
403 - 534 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 168.53 Credit Card Processing Fees 
407 - 535 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 168.53 Credit Card Processing Fees 
448 - 537 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 175.55 Credit Card Processing Fees 
403 - 539 20 49 000 - Miscellaneous 168.53 Credit Card Processing Fees 

565 03/25/2014 Claims 1 EFT DOR Electronic Payments 12,362.94 Excise Tax-Feb 

001 - 514 30 44 000 - External Taxes 0.29 Excise Tax-Feb 
403 - 534 80 44 000 - External Taxes 5,793.27 Excise Tax-Feb 
407 - 535 80 44 000 - External Taxes 2.971.00 Excise Tax-Feb 
448 - 537 80 44 000 - External Taxes 3,593.12 Excise Tax-Feb 
001 - 5712244 000 - External Taxes 5.26 Excise Tax-Feb 

566 03/25/2014 Claims 1 EFT Modern Payments 54.60 Electronic Check Processing 

403 - 534 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 13.65 Electronic Check Processing 
407 - 535 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 13.65 Electronic Check Processing 
448 - 537 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 13.65 Electronic Check Processing 
403 - 539 20 49 000 - Miscellaneous 13.65 Electronic Check Processing 

567 03/25/2014 Claims 1 EFT WA Dept Licensing-CPL 18.00 Concealed Pistol License 

001 - 586 00 01 000 - Concealed Pistol Lie DisburS< 18.00 Concealed Pistol License 

568 03/25/2014 Claims 1 EFT Washington Trust Bank 6,687 .37 North Prosser Loan Interest 

403 - 594 34 63 000 - Improvements Other Than Bl< 6,687.37 North Prosser Loan Interest 

569 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10304 Abadan Inc. 207 .38 Annex Copy Machine Maintenance 

001 - 514 23 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 198.55 
403 - 534 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 2.07 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 2.07 
448 - 537 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 2.07 
403 - 539 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 2.07 
102 - 542 90 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 0.55 

570 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10305 Ace Hardware - Grandview 60.10 Ultra 2 Cycle Oil 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 15.02 Ultra 2 Cycle Oil 
403 - 539 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 15.02 Ultra 2 Cycle Oil 
102 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 15.03 Ultra 2 Cycle Oil 
001 - 576 80 31 000 -Office & Operating Supplies 15 .03 Ultra 2 Cycle Oil 

571 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10306 Nick R Alsbury 42.00 JCC Building Inspector 
Seminar-Meals 

001 - 524 20 43 000 - Travel 42.00 !CC Building Inspector Seminar-Meals 

572 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10307 AutoZone 29.52 Coastal Hyd Jack Oil, Oil 
Absorbent; Hopkins Multi-Tow 
Adapter; Garden Battery; 7 Pole 
Round Male 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 10.81 Coastal Hyd Jack Oil, Oil Absorbent 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 19.48 Hopkins Multi-Tow Adapter 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies -10.83 Garden Battery 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 10.06 7 Pole Round Male 

573 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10308 B J Paint & Carpet 142.62 Paint For PD 

001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 142.62 Paint For PD 

574 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10309 Lindsay Barnes 35.00 American Red Cross Training 

001 - 576 20 49 001 - Miscellaneous 35.00 American Red Cross Training 

575 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10310 Benton Co. GIS Dept. 15.00 Size D Copies- Zoning Maps 

8



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 08:42:33 Date: 03/20/2014 

03/25/2014 To: 03/25/2014 Page: 2 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant Amount Memo 

001-51423 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 15.00 Size D Copies-Zoning Maps 

576 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10311 Benton Co. Treas. Office 4,898.49 Benton Co Dist Ct And Office Of 

001- 512 40 51 000 - lntergov't Professional Servic 

Public Defense-Dec 

4,898.49 Benton Co Dist Ct And Office Of Public 
Defense-Dec 

577 03/25/2014. Claims 1 10312 Benton Franklin Dist Health 600.00 2014 Solid Waste Operating Permit 

448 - 537 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 600.00 2014 Solid Waste Operating Permit 

578 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10313 Benton Franklin Dist Health 120.00 Drinking Water Bacteria 

403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 120.00 Drinking Water Bacteria 

579 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10314 Benton PUD 33,878.08 Electric Bill; Electric Bill-WCR 

001 - 518 31 47 000 - Public Utility Services 1,136.75 
403 - 534 80 47 000 - Public Utility Services 13,597.32 
407 - 535 80 47 000 - Public Utility Services 11,416.21 
403 - 539 20 47 000 - Public Utility Services 69.39 
102 - 542 63 47 000-Public Utility Services 3,893.92 
102 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utility Services 801.36 Electric Bill-WCR 
102 -542 90 47 000 - Public Utility Services 601.17 
00 l - 5 69 21 4 7 000 - Pub lie Utility Services 640. 72 
001 - 572 50 47 000 - Public Utility Services 479.08 
001 - 576 20 47 000 - Public Utility Services 994.97 
001 - 576 80 47 000 - Public Utility Services 247.19 

580 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10315 Bleyhl Farm Service Gas 5,358.70 PW Fuel Charges; Fuel 

001 - 511 60 32 000 - Fuel 
001 - 521 20 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 
001 - 524 20 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 
403 - 534 80 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 
407 - 535 80 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 
403 - 539 20 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 
102 - 542 90 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 
001 - 576 80 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 

Charges-Waste Water And 
Building; PD Fuel Charges 

38.16 Fuel Charges-Waste Water And Building 
2,986.31 PD Fuel Charges 

149 .25 Fuel Charges-Waste Water And Building 
422.01 PW Fuel Charges 
496.97 Fuel Charges-Waste Water And Building 
422.00 PW Fuel Charges 
422.00 PW Fuel Charges 
422.00 PW Fuel Charges 

581 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10316 Bleyhl Farm Service Inc. 40.12 Bar Stud, Bar Nut 6 

102 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 40 .12 Bar Stud, Bar Nut 6 

582 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10317 Blue Line Learning Group, 400.00 Bloodborne Pathogens, Hozardous 
LLC Materials Training Course 

001 - 5212049 000 - Miscellaneous 

583 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10318 Blumenthal 

001 - 521 20 21 000 - Uniforms & Equipment 
001 - 521 20 21 000 - Uniforms & Equipment 
001 - 5212021 000 - Uniforms & Equipment 
001 - 5212021 000 - Uniforms & Equipmeut 
001 - 521 20 21 000 - Uniforms & Equipmeut 

584 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10319 CenturyLink 

001 - 518 31 4 2 000 - Communications 
403 - 534 80 42 000 - Communications 
407 - 535 80 42 000 - Communications 
448 - 537 80 42 000 - Communications 

400.00 Bloodborne Pathogens, Hazardous Materials 
Training Course 

1,876.05 lVlen 1s Shirt-Spurgeon; Men's 
Pants, Men's Shirts-Spurgeon; 
Men's Pants, Men's 
Boots-Shannafelt; Scorpion LED 
Flashlight, Flashlight Holder; 
Return Ear Piece Barrel 

464.22 Men's Shirt-Spurgeon 
927.44 Men's Pants, Men's Shirts-Spurgeon 
382.13 Men's Pants, Men's Boots-Shannafelt 
192.02 Scorpion LED Flashlight, Flashlight Holder 
-89. 76 Return Ear Piece Barrel 

2,464.67 Telephone Bill 

1,163.41 Telephone Bill 
375.20 Telephone Bill 
350. 78 Telephone Bill 

98.64 Telephone Bill 9



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 08:42:33 Date: 03/20/2014 

03/25/2014 To: 03/25/2014 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant 

403 - 539 20 42 000 - Communications 
102 - 542 90 42 000 - Communications 
102 - 543 30 42 102 - Communication 
001 - 576 20 42 000 - Communications 

Amount Memo 

98.64 Telephone Bill 
259.40 Telephone Bill 

98.64 Telephone Bill 
19.96 Telephone Bill 

Page: 3 

585 03/25/2014 Claims l 10320 Charter Communications 7.64 PD Basic Cable 

001 - 521 20 42 000 - Communications 7.64 PD Basic Cable 

586 03/25/2014 Claims I 10321 Chervenell Construction 91.17 Utility Refund Check 

403 - 343 41 00 000 - Water Revenues -91.l 7 Utility Refund Check 

587 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10322 Cliff's Septic Services 

588 03/25/2014 

589 03/25/2014 

590 03/25/2014 

001 - 576 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

Claims 1 10323 Coast Crane Company 

I 02 - 542 90 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

Claims 1 10324 Code Publishing Co. 

001 - 514 30 41 000 - Professional Services 
403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
448 - 537 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
403 - 539 20 41 000 - Professional Services 
102 - 542 90 41 000 - Professional Services 

Claims 1 10325 Cook's True Value 

001 - 5212031 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 521 20 31 000- Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 5212031 000-0ffice & Operating Supplies 
001 - 5212031 000- Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 5212031 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 -5212031 000- Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 5212048 000 -Repairs & Maintenance 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 539 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 539 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
102 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
I 02 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
I 02 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
102 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000- Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

124.09 De~Rooter City Park Bathroom 

124.09 De-Rooter City Park Bathroom 

2,888.18 Repairs To Bucket Truck 

2,888.18 Repairs To The Bucket Truck 

93.95 PMC: Electronic Update 

56.35 PMC: Electronic Update 
7 .52 PMC: Electronic Update 
7.52 PMC: Electronic Update 
7.52 PMC: Electronic Update 
7.52 PMC: Electronic Update 
7 .52 PMC: Electronic Update 

598.62 Return Grill Cover; Desk Clip 
Combo Fan; Grill Cover, Return 
Clip Combo Fan; Grill Cover Of 
Generator, Clip Combo Fan; 
Starter Rope; Leather Gloves; Circ 
Fluo Bulb, Ant/Termite Killer, 
Borax; Noble; F 

2.21 Fasteners 
7.88 Brasso Polish, Escutcheon Pin 
8.64 Masking Tape 
6.41 Fasteners 

45.45 Pistol Grip Blow Gun, Coupler Set 
4.32 Blk/LTX Caulk 

1 I. 62 Fasteners 
35.73 Sat Pastel Base 
34.09 Leather Gloves 
48.69 SxSxS Tee, Male Adapter, PVC Coupling 

-32.48 Return Grill Cover 
12.99 Desk Clip Combo Fan 
19.49 Grill Cover, Return Clip Combo Fan 
45.46 Grill Cover Of Generator, Clip Combo Fan 
62.22 Circ Fluo Bulb, Ant/Termite Killer. Borax 
14.19 Noble 
21.65 Extention Cord 
23.32 Bungee Cord, Fasteners 
30.31 Alumiglas Ext Pole 
34.09 Leather Gloves 
9.17 Galv Nipple, Galv Tee 
4.10 Starter Rope 

34.1 0 Leather Gloves 
4 .1 0 Starter Rope 

14.07 MM Gal Bar & Chain Oil 
34.10 Leather Gloves 
20.01 ME Grey WP lG Out Box, PVC GFI Box 

Cover 
10.78 Poly Connector, Sch80 Nipple 10



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 08:42:33 Date: 

0312512014 To: 03/25/2014 Page: 
03/20/2014 

4 

Type Acct# Chk # Claimant 

001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Amount Memo 

23.88 Bent GDN Valve, Galv Nipple, Galv Redu 
Tee 

00 l - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 8.03 Fasteners 

591 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10326 Cummins Northwest, Inc.. 1,457.77 Generator Maintenance; 

001 - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 518 3 1 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

Generator Maintenance; 
Generator Maintenance 

133.14 Generator Maintenance 
127.26 Generator Maintenance 
170.31 Generator Maintenance 
139.30 Generator Maintenance 
178.19 Generator Maintenance 
170 .31 Generator Maintenance 
13 3 .14 Generator Maintenance 
227.93 Generator Maintenance 
178.19 Generator Maintenance 

592 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10327 Dell Marketing L.P. 185.83 Dell 22 Monitor 

118-518 88 35 000-Small Tools-Data 

593 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10328 Engineer Supply LLC 

185.83 Dell 22 Monitor- P2213 (320-9704) 

1,003.20 Bluepring Storage Cabinet 

594 03/25/2014 

595 03/25/2014 

596 03/25/2014 

597 03/25/2014 

00 I - 524 20 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equipm 
001 - 524 20 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equipm 

001 - 524 20 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equipm 

644.99 Safco Large Vertical Storage Cabinet 5041 
319.96 Premium Brand 24" Blueprint Hanging 

Clamps 
38.25 Shipping 

Claims 1 10329 Ferguson Enterprises, Inc. 356.20 Water Shutoff Tool; 61 Mtr 
Wrench W/Jaws 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 138.94 Water Shutoff Tool 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 217.26 61 Mtr Wrench W /Jaws 

Claims 1 10330 Galls, an Aramark Co., LLC 29.47 LawPro Shirts Stays 

001 - 521 20 21 000 - Uniforms & Equipment 29.47 LawPro Shirts Stays 

Claims 1 10331 Grainger, Inc. 198.14 Battery 123ALithium; Halogen 

001-51423 31 000- Office & Operating Supplies 
I 02 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Claims 1 10332 Green River Community 
College 

403 - 534 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 

Light Bulb 

152.96 Battery 123ALithium 
45.18 Halogen Light Bulb 

365.00 Waterworks Basics Course-B.Lum 

365.00 Waterworks Basics Course-B.Lum 

598 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10333 H.D. Fowler, Co. 1,822.16 Couplings & Location Wire & Pex 
Pipe 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 1,822. l 6 Couplings & Location Wire & Pex Pipe 

599 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10334 Huibregtse, Louman & Assoc. 44,305. 78 Disinfection, Filtrafion, And 
Source Improvements; Zone 2.5 
\Vater Supply Improvements; 
Disinfection, Filtration And Source 
Imp.; 2014 General Services; Old 
Inland Empire Highway 
Improvements 

407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
102 - 542 61 41 000 - Other Services & Charges 
001 - 576 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
403 - 594 34 41 403 - Professional Services 

59,50 2014 General Services 
580.00 2014 General Services 
435.00 2014 General Services 
247.50 Disinfection, Filtration, And Source 

Improvements 
403 - 594 34 41 403 -Professional Services 29,437.28 Disinfection, Filtration And Source Imp. 
420 - 594 34 41 420 - Professional Services 12,123.00 Zone 2.5 Water Supply Improvements 
302 - 595 I 0 60 000 - Engineering 1,423.50 Old Inland Empire Highway Improvements 

600 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10335 Kie Supply Corporation 94.43 Valve Flush 11



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

601 03/25/2014 

602 03/25/2014 

603 03/25/2014 

604 03/25/2014 

605 03/25/2014 

CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 08:42:33 Date: 03/20/2014 

03/25/2014 To: 03/25/2014 Page: 5 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant 

001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Claims 1 10336 LEAF 

001 - 514 23 45 000-0perating Rentals & Leases 
403 - 534 80 45 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 
407 - 535 80 45 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 
448 - 537 80 45 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 
403 - 539 20 45 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 
102 - 542 90 45 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 

Claims 1 10337 Elizabeth Milward 

001 - 576 20 41 001 - Professional Services 

Claims 1 10338 Barry Morrow 

001 - 524 20 43 000 - Travel 

Claims 1 10339 Motion Industries 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Claims 1 10340 Office Depot 

Amount Memo 

94.43 Valve Flush 

530.31 Front Desk Copy Machine Lease 

406.73 Front Desk Copy Machine Lease 
30.66 Front Desk Copy Machine Lease 
30.66 Front Desk Copy Machine Lease 
30.66 Front Desk Copy Machine Lease 
30.66 Front Desk Copy Machine Lease 

0.94 Front Desk Copy Machine Lease 

140.00 Lifeguard And Water Safety 
Instructor Training 

140.00 Lifeguard And Water Safety Instructor 
Training 

42.00 ICC Building Inspector 
Seminar-Meals 

42.00 ICC Building Inspector Seminar-Meals 

173.85 Pneu & Hyd Cylinders, Kit 2 
Piston 

173 .85 Pneu & Hyd Cylinders, Kit 2 Piston 

903. 73 Chair-PD, Cable, Wire Organizer, 
Duster, Mousepad; Headset, 
Envelope Moistener, Post-It Notes; 
Ruler, Index Cards; Desk Trays, 
Folder; Pencil Cups; Post-It Notes, 
Desk Pad, Desk Tray,; Desk Trays; 
Wir 

001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 58.25 Chair-PD, Cable, Wire Organizer, Duster, 
Mousepad 

001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 49.01 Headset, Envelope Moistener, Post-It Notes 
001 - 514 23 31 000 -Office & Operating Supplies 8.23 Ruler, Index Cards 
001 - 514 23 31 000-0ffice & Operating Supplies 59.82 Desk Trays, Folder 
001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 25 .97 Pencil Cups 
001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 70.00 Post-It Notes, Desk Pad, Desk Tray, 
001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies -2.97 Desk Trays 
00 l - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 1.40 Push Pins 
001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 20.65 File Boxes, Paper Clips, Clamps, Chairs 
00 I - 518 31 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 17 .32 Paper Towels 
001 - 518 88 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 62.80 Wireless Keyboard 
001 - 521 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 170.55 Chair-PD, Cable, Wire Organizer, Duster, 

Mousepad 
001 - 521 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 116.88 Engraed Metal Sign 
001 - 521 20 31 000 -Office & Operating Supplies 216.58 File Boxes, Paper Clips, Clamps, Chairs 
403 - 534 80 31 000 -Office & Operating Supplies 5.41 File Boxes, Paper Clips, Clamps, Chairs 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 5.41 File Boxes, Paper Clips, Clamps, Chairs 
448 - 537 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 5.42 File Boxes, Paper Clips, Clamps, Chairs 
403 - 539 20 31 000-0ffice & Operating Supplies 5.41 File Boxes, Paper Clips, Clamps, Chairs 
I 02 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 3. 79 Kingston Flash Memory Card 
001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 3.80 Kingston Flash Memory Card 

606 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10341 Oxarc 1,104.67 Chlroine Short Filled 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 1,104.67 Chlroine Short Filled 

607 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10342 PR Diamond Products, Inc 214.00 Premium Asphalt Wet/Dry 

403 - 534 80 31 000 -Office & Operating Supplies 214.00 PremiumAsphalt Wet/Dry 

608 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10343 Pollard Water 877.18 Bacterial Supplement 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 877 .18 Bacterial Supplement 

12



CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 08:42:33 Date: 03/20/2014 City Of Prosser 

MCAG#: 0205 03/25/2014 To: 03/25/2014 Page: 6 

Trans Date Type Acct # Chk # Claimant Amount Memo 

609 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10344 Prosser Economic Development 
A 

3,583.33 Contract For Services, Grant 
Writer 

001 - 558 70 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 558 70 41 000 - Professional Services 

610 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10345 Prosser, City of 

403 - 534 80 44 000 - External Taxes 
407 - 535 80 44 000 - External Taxes 
448 - 537 80 44 000 - External Taxes 

1,416.67 Grant Writer Services 
2,166.66 PEDA: Contract For Services 

58,948. 74 Water Utility Taxes; Waste \Vater 
Utility Taxes; Garbage Utility 
Taxes 

23,584.13 Water Utility Taxes 
31,825.91 Waste Water Utility Taxes 

3,538.70 Garbage Utility Taxes 

611 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10346 Psychological Consultants 495.00 LawEnforcement Psychological 
Testing 

612 03/25/2014 

613 03/25/2014 

614 03/25/2014 

001 - 521 20 41 000 - Professional Services 

Claims 1 10347 Pumptech, Inc. 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Claims 1 10348 Rainwater Water Co. 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Claims 1 10349 Saxton Riley, PLLC 

001 - 512 40 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 515 30 41 000 -Professional Services 
001 - 515 30 41 000 -Professional Services 
001 - 515 30 41 000- Professional Services 
403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407- 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
102 - 542 65 41 000 - Professional Services 
102 - 542 90 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 558 60 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 558 60 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 558 60 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 576 80 41 000 - Professional Services 

615 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10350 Matthew B Shanafelt 

001 - 5212043 000 - Travel 

616 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10351 Staples Advantage 

001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
102 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 -576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

617 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10352 The Markets, LLC 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

618 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10353 Tolman Electric 

001 - 518 31 41 000 - Professional Services 

001 - 569 21 41 000 - Professional Services 

495.00 LawEnforcement Psychological Testing 

296.19 ABS 4" Profile Gasket 

296.19 ABS 4" Profile Gasket 

6,00 Water 

6.00 Water 

4,931.36 1952 Mountain View Drive 
(Parsons); 932 Sheridan (l:loskins); 
Administration (Civil); Planning; 
Prosser Police Department; 
Records Request (Civil); SMP 
Update; Water Dept; Street..; 
Sewer Dept; Public Wo 

1,873.61 Prosser Police Department 
121.95 932 Sheridan (Hoskins) 

1,507.50 Administration (Civil) 
76.05 Records Request (Civil) 
30.00 Water Dept 
45 .00 Sewer Dept 
90.00 Public Works Dept 
15. 00 Streets 

345.00 1952 Mountain View Drive (Parsons) 
675.00 Planning 
107 .25 SMP Update 
45.00 Parks 

247.32 BLEA Orientation Briefing 

24 7 .32 BLEA Orientation Briefing 

118.23 Multi Pkt Rigid Holder; Canon 
Powershot 

9.94 Multi Pkt Rigid Holder 
54.14 Canon Powershot 
54.15 Canon Powershot 

19,37 Dey kc 

19.37 Dry Ice 

400. 71 Repair Annex Copy Machine, 
Repair Senior Center Grill 

97.47 Repair Annex Copy Machine, Repair Senior 
Center Grill 

303 .24 Repair Annex Copy Machine, Repair Senior 
Center Grill 

619 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10354 Tony's Albrecht Glass, LLC 1,348.34 Generator For The Camern Trailer 

407 - 535 80 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equipm 1.240.04 Generator For The Camera Trailer 13



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 08:42:33 Date: 03/20/2014 

0312512014 To: 03/25/2014 Page: 7 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant Amount Memo 

407 - 535 80 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equipm 108.30 Generator For The Camera Trailer 

620 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10355 Tri-City Herald, Inc. - Tri-Ci 180.85 Polke Newspaper Subscription 

001 - 5212041 000-Professional Services 180.85 Police Newspaper Subscription 

621 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10356 US Bank 28.00 Monthly Maintenance-Investment 
Allocation 

001 - 514 23 49 000 - Miscellaneous 

622 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10357 USA Blue Book 

28.00 Monthly Maintenance-Investment Allocation 

79.50 Replacement 10x36 Windsock 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

623 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10358 Utilities Underground Loe. 

403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 

79.50 Replacement 10x36 Windsock 

10.32 Excavation Notifications 

5.16 Excavation Notifications 
5.16 Excavation Notifications 

624 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10359 VCA Animal Medical Center 476.95 Veterinary Services-Bosco 

001 - 521 20 41 000 - Professional Services 476.95 Veterinary Services-Bosco 

625 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10360 Valley Pipe Co. 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

626 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10361 Verizon Wireless 

00 I - 518 31 42 000 - Communications 
001 - 518 88 42 000 - Communications 
001 - 521 20 42 000 - Communications 
403 - 534 80 42 000 - Communications 
407 - 535 80 42 000 - Communications 

83.10 Brass BV, 3"Gr.#Red; Statement 
Credit 

112.06 Brass BY, 3"Gr.#Red 
-38.06 

9.10 Brass BY, 3"Gr.#Red 

1,167.53 PD Wireless Cell Phone Bill; 4G 
Mobile Broadband; 4G Mobile 
Broadband 

231.47 PD Wireless Cell Phone Bill 
40.01 4G Mobile Broadband 

776.02 PD Wireless Cell Phone Bill 
60.02 4G Mobile Broadband 
60.01 4G Mobile Broadband 

627 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10362 Vista Veterinary Hospital 459.30 Veterinary Visi4 XRay-Bosco 

001 - 521 20 41 000 - Professional Services 459.30 Veterinary Visit, XRay-Bosco 

628 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10363 WAAuditor's Office 

001 - 514 23 51 000 - Intergov't Professional Servic 

629 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10364 WA Dept Retirement 

1,896.24 Accountability Audit 

1,896.24 Accountability Audit 

25.00 Old Age Survivors Insurance 

001 - 5116049 000- Miscellaneous 2.09 Old Age Survivors Insurance 
001 - 514 23 49 000 - Miscellaneous 2.09 OldAge Survivors Insurance 
001 - 514 30 49 000 - Miscellaneous 2.09 Old Age Survivors Insurance 
001 - 5212049 000 - Miscellaneous 2.09 Old Age Survivors Insurance 
001 - 524 20 49 000 -Miscellaneous 2.08 Old Age Survivors Insurance 
403 - 534 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 2.08 Old Age Survivors Insurance 
407 - 535 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 2.08 Old Age Survivors Insurance 
448 - 537 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 2.08 Old Age Survivors Insurance 
403 - 539 20 49 000 - Miscellaneous 2.08 Old Age Survivors Insurance 
I 02 - 543 30 49 000 - Miscellaneous 2.08 Old Age Survivors Insurance 
001 - 558 60 49 000 -Miscellaneous 2.08 Old Age Survivors Insurance 
001 - 576 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 2.08 Old Age Survivors Insurance 

630 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10365 WA Dept of Enterprise Services 2,299.83 March Newsletter; Utility 

001 - 514 30 41 000 - Professional Services 
403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
448 - 53 7 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
448 - 53 7 80 41 000 - Professional Services 

Statements-Feb 

253.56 March Newsletter 
33.80 March Newsletter 

469.32 
33.80 March Newsletter 

469.32 
33 .80 March Newsletter 

469.32 
14



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 08:42:33 Date: 03/20/2014 

03/25/2014 To: 03/25/2014 Page: 8 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant Amount Memo 

403 - 539 20 41 000 - Professional Services 33.80 March Newsletter 
403 -539 20 41 000 -Professional Services 469.31 
102 - 542 90 41 000 - Professional Services 33.80 March Newsletter 

631 0312512014 Claims 1 10366 WADept ofL&l-BoilerSection 587.50 Boilerlnspeetion 

00 l - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 70.50 Boiler Inspection 
403 - 534 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 47.00 Boiler Inspection 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 211.50 Boiler Inspection 
102 - 542 90 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 47.00 Boiler Inspection 
001 - 569 21 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 47.00 Boiler Inspection 
001 - 572 50 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 23 .50 Boiler Inspection 
001 - 576 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 117.50 Boiler Inspection 
001 - 576 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 23.50 Boiler Inspection 

632 0312512014 Claims 1 10367 WA Patrol Budget & Fiscal 33.00 Police Background Check 
Srvc 

001 - 586 00 01 000 - Concealed Pistol Lie DisburS< 33.00 Police Background Check 

633 0312512014 Claims 1 10368 WaterTech 4,290.00 55 Lb Bag Of Polymer 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 4.290.00 Polymer 

634 0312512014 Claims 1 10369 Yakima Herald Republic 144.00 Newspaper Subscription 

001 - 5212041 000 - Professional Services 144.00 Newspaper Subscription 

635 0312512014 Claims 1 10370 Tonelle M Yost 

001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 43 000 - Travel 

511 Legislative 
512 Judical 
514 Financial, Recording & Elections 
515 Legal Services 
518 Centralized Services 
521 Law Enforcement 
524 Protective Inspections 
558 Planning & Community Devel 
569 Senior Center 
571 Education & Recreation 
572 Libraries 
576 Park Facilities 
580 Non Expeditures 

Qo1 Gel1era! Fl1nd 

542 Streets - Maintenance 
54 3 Streets Admin & Overhead 

'\02 :Sl:redFund 

518 Centralized Services 

118 GeneraLF:und CapiialReserve 

594 Capital Expenditures 

30.2 OIE Improvement'ProjecfFund 

340 Charges For Goods & Services 
534 Water Utilities 
539 lrrigationAnd Reclamation 
594 Capital Expenditures 

403. Water .Fund 

535 Sewer 

93.46 Birthday Cards, Travel-Deposition 

3 7.46 Birthday Cards, Travel-Deposition 
56.00 Birthday Cards, Travel-Deposition 

40.25 
6.772.10 
3,482.98 
1,705.50 
3.250.44 
8.849.89 
1.238.53 
4.712.66 

990.96 
5.26 

502.58 
2.879.60 

51.00 

B?\,48L'7.5 

9,855.47 
100.72 

9,956.19 

185.83 

185;83 

1,423.50 

1,423.50 

91.17 
48.947.29 

1.381.34 
36.372.15 

86,791.95 

56,428.93 15



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

CHECK REGISTER 

03/25/2014 To: 03/25/2014 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant 

407 Sewer Fund 

594 Capital Expenditnres 

420 Zone2.5 Water Supplylmprov 

537 Garbage & Solid Waste 

448 Garbage Funq 

* Transaction Has Mixed Revenue And Expense Accounts 

Signature 

Time: 08:42:33 Date: 03/20/2014 
Page: 9 

Amount Memo 

56,428:93 

12,123.00 

12,123;00 

8,570.53 

8,570.53 

----Claims: 
209,961.68 

3/20li'4 

Date 

209,961.68 

16



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

I AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Accept Monthly Report by Meeting Date: 
Prosser Economic Development March 25, 2014 
Association for the month of February 2014 Regular Meeting 
and authorize payment for those services 
in the amount of $2, 166.66 and authorize 
payment in the amount of $1,416.67 for 
Grant Writer Services. 

Department: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
I Finance Regina Mauras Toni Yost (509) 786-2332 

Cost of Proposal: Account Number: 
$3,583.33 001-558-519-70-41 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
$42,000.00 General Fund -

I Professional 
Services 

Reviewed by Finance Department: ' 

'11-Q.~m.Jl f-\J'.tW!~ 
I Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 
. 1. Invoice Number 2130 for February 2014 contracted service 

2. PEDA Monthly Report for January 2014 

Summary Statement: 

Check has been reviewed and approved by department heads, the Finance Director, and 
Mayor as necessary. Check no. 10344 has been generated for Council approval. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 
City's policy to pay bills in a timely manner. 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 
Accept Monthly Report by Prosser Economic Development Association for the month of 
February 2014 and authorize payment for those services in the amount of $2, 166.66 and 
authorize payment in the amount of $1,416.67 for Grant Writer Services 

Reviewed by Department I Reviewed by City Attorney: Approved by Mayor: 
Director: /''[/ {/~ . 
~a. Mawtat 

N/A /~: . ,. __ , 
! Date: ·10·'201t.l Date: Date: 2, / - f Y 
Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 
March 20, 2014 

17



Prosser EDA 
1230 Bennett A venue 
PROSSER, WA 99350 

BILL TO 

CITY OF PROSSER 
60 J 7th Street 
PROSSER WA 99350 

DESCRIPTION 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES - February 2014 
GRANT WRJTER AGREEMENT- February 2014 

llt:c~,,,,~JJ 
C17:: I I l019 

'FphossEfi 

DATE 

2/28/2014 

Invoice 

INVOICE# 

2130 

001-cs~ _10 _'/1 fv 
R IJ\CWMf.J 

AMOUNT 

2,166.66 
1,416.67 

Total $3,583.33 

18



Prosser Economic Development Association 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

January 9, 2014 

Attendees: Jane Hagarty, Jeff Andrews, Jennifer Ely, Dyann Horton, Bill Jenkin, 
Tyson Jones, Josh Mott, Dr. Michelle Moyer, Scott Pontin, Jenny Sparks, Deb 
Heintz 

Absent: Dr. Robert Stevens, Julie Petersen, Brian Newhouse, Dianne Torres, 
Troy Berglund, Brian Newhouse, Dick Poteet, Shon Small, Scott Wingert 

Business: 

Approval of Minutes: It was moved and seconded to approve the minutes. 
Motion carried. 

Financial Report: It was moved and seconded to approve the financial report. 
Motion carried. 

Director Report: 

Recruitment 
Project Diamond - This individual's challenge is to find a location with a 
commercial kitchen. While there is ample experience in working in a restaurant 
and seems to have knowledge in running a business, the style of food is the 
same as two other eateries. It has been asked to provide sound research that 
the community can support another restaurant of this nature. 

Leadership Prosser 
The individuals assisting in the 2014 is a small group and needs additional 

help if there is going to be a 2014 class. One week remains until applications are 
due. To date, there are 5 potential candidates, but no application deposits have 
been made. 

Clore Center 
As construction of the Clore Center is winding down, there is still much to 

do. Met with two graphic art companies to talk about design and assistance for 
the signage and exhibits for the Center. 2014 budget and staffing plan was 
presented to the Clore board. Abbey Cameron has accepted the position of 
executive director. Bob Stevens and I also presented before the HAEIFC 
committee for the Clore quarterly report. Met with Centurylink to go over their 
phone/internet proposal. Have also asked the Viking representative for an 
additional wine cooler for the tasting bar. Touched base with legislators to talk 
about the capital needs request. Capital campaign list has been reduced to 
reflect basic needs for start-up, amounting to a little over $100,000. Working with 

19



key leaders on the capital campaign committee to schedule meetings at the 
Clore Center. In order to get the project up and running, approximately $300,000 
has been identified as an immediate need in 2014. 

Committee Reports: 

Organization Committee: Shon Small, as Chair, will begin soon to work on the 
annual meeting. 

Housing Committee: Troy Berglund, as Chair, will begin soon to schedule a 
committee meeting. 

Water Committee: Bob Stevens, as Chair, will begin soon to schedule a 
committee meeting. 

Board Reports: 
Dick Poteet was assigned by HDPA to represent that organization to the Prosser 
EDA Board. 

WSU-IAREC 
Has two sources of funding for two million dollars. They are expanding buildings 
and hope to have new housing for students. 

Milne participated in giving to two families for Christmas. They had a good year 
in 2013 and are looking at expanding their markets; dried fruit is on the increase. 

Jeff Andrews stated that the immigration bill may still happen. 

Bill Jenkin reported for HDPA - they are developing a plan for downtown 
signage. The next networking breakfast is January 23rd. 

Bill Jenkin reported for Prosser Schools - there are 5 members that are attending 
WSSDA for training; legislature day. 

Dyann Horton reported that there are 200 branches of Elwood Staffing across the 
country. They have expanded their facility and relocated to a 1,000 sq. ft. 
building. The minimum wage is up - it gets to a rate to examine upper pay 
levels because of the lower level increase, this year it is staying flat. 

Clore funding needs were discussed. 

There are 2 tickets to the Chamber Award Banquet remaining. 

Tim Fredrickson for Ben-Franklin Transit retired. 

20



Yakima Basin Storage Alliance will be presenting at next month's board meeting 
and they will be asking for the board for a letter of support. 

E-Civis was presented to the grant writers' funding partners in late 2013 by the 
City of Prosser. This is grant research software that provides government as well 
as foundation searches. After an E-Civis demo, it was the committee's desire to 
purchase 4 software copies for 2014. Copies of the software went to Sue Jetter, 
PMH Medical Center, City of Prosser, and the Port of Benton. The committee 
will evaluate usefulness of the software at the end of the year to determine 
whether to continue purchasing. 

Prosser EDA reports to City Council on Tuesday, January 14th at 7:00 pm. 

Non-Disclosure Agreements were signed. 

Committee's were discussed and board members in attendance had an 
opportunity to review committee priorities and sign up for committees. 
Committee signups will be emailed to board members not in attendance to 
provide an opportunity to sign up to appropriate committees. 

There was discussion to move the next board meeting to Thursday, February 
13th. An email will be sent to board members to survey changing the date. 

Meeting was adjourned. 

Bill Jenkin reported on the School Board Levy - The levy is asking $3.00 per 
$1,000 of value. $1.9 million ask is matched by the state. The levy will be a four 
year term. Jane reported on the levy flyer. Next on the school's plate is the bond 
for a new high school. The approach to bond should be very different from the 
prior. There is a definite need for more community input. 

Steve Zetz discussed Initiative 502. The city will pass a moratorium on medical 
marijuana in Prosser. Can't ban against because this is against state law. Retail 
dispenser applications - city is aware of two applicants in Chardonnay Square. 
There is a 1,000 ft. buffer for parks and schools. State or City land is prohibited. 
Steve provided a map showing areas where marijuana sales would be allowed. 
City doesn't issue the license, the state does. County Commissioners have 
considered not to allow in the County. Questions and answers followed. 

21



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
[69enciaTiiie: Adopt Resolution No~i4=-i Meeting Date: 
I __ approving the lnterlocal Cooperation 1 March 25, 2014 
.

1

. Agreement between the City of Prosser i Regular Meeting 
and Benton County for aerial photography I 

. and orthophoto mapping project of ! 

I portions of Benton County, including the [ 
·1· areas lying within the City of Prosser and I 

its Urban Growth Area and authorizing the i 
: Mayor to sign the agreement. ' 

1~----~-
! Department: Director: , Contact Person: ·1 Phone Number: 
I Building Dept Barry Morrow ! Nick Alsbury (509) 786-2332 

r Cost of Proposal: ·---- ' 

I $5,444 
I 

Amount Budgeted: 
$6,500.00 

~Reviewed by Finance Department:--

!¥~ 
i Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 
I 
j 1. Proposed Resolution No.14-___ _ 
[ 2. Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 

I 
3. Copy of Exhibit "A" Project Area 

. 4. Copy of Exhibit "B" Prosser Project Area 

i-----~--
1 Summary Statement: 

Account Number: 
001-558-60-41 
001-524-20-41 
403-534-80-41 
407-535-80-41 
448-537-80-41 

Name and Fund# 
001-General Fund 
403- Water 
407-Sewer 
448-Garbage 

i ! 

I
. The lnterlocal Cooperation Act, as amended, and codified in Chapter 39.34 of the I 

Revised Code of Washington provides for lnterlocal cooperation between . 
i governmental agencies. The purpose of the attached agreement is to 1 

I cooperatively undertake and complete an aerial photography and orthophoto i 

I 
mapping project of portions of Benton County, including the areas lying within the I 

,_.<:'.i!Y...21. Prosser. This project will benefit both parties, because the County has a_J 

22



r·need to update its urban ortho-imagery of the County in 2014, and the City has-a-·/ 
need to update its ortho-imagery of those areas lying within the limits of the City ' 
of Prosser Urban Growth Boundary. Although both parties have the capability to 
independently acquire and/or produce 2014 ortho-imagery, if each acted 
independently, the results would involve significant redundancies and increased 
costs. The major goal of this Agreement is to reduce and/or eliminate duplication 
and save governmental costs. This agreement was drafted at the request of the 
City of Prosser. The County will be entering into a personal services contract 
with GEOPHEX, LTD., for the purpose of undertaking and completing an aerial 

: photography and urban orthophoto mapping project of portions of Benton County; 
i and is willing to include, as part of the contract to be entered with GEOPHEX, 
1 LTD., all provisions necessary to deliver ortho-imagery of the areas lying within 
I the City of Prosser Urban Growth Boundary to the City at the requested 4-inch or 
! better pixel resolution. Prosser's obligation will be to pay the County $5,444 plus 
I any applicable sales tax. · 

~ .- . . . I Recommended City Coun_cil Action/Suggested Motion: I 

f Adopt Resolution No.14-__ approving the lnter\ocal Cooperation Agreement I 

I

' between the City of Prosser and Benton County for aerial photography and I 
orthophoto mapping project of portions of Benton County, including the areas I 

-I lying within the City of Prosser and its Urban Growth Area and authorizing the I' 

Mayor to siQn the aQreement. , 

11

1 

~~~~~d by Department 1

1 

Reviewed by City Attorney: I id:;~ 
~ I : ::::::2- I 

I n~!e_:_)&_/rr i Date: 7/#J/ f _ _j_pate_: :J-Z-1-f 
jTuday's Date: I Revisi NumbEi'r!Date: i File Name and Path: 

i March 10, 2014 I 

23



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 14- ----

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

PROSSER, WASHINGTON APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL 

COOPERATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

PROSSER AND BENTON COUNTY .REGARDING 
UNDERTAKING AND COMPLETING AN AERIAL 
PHOTOGRAPHY AND URBAN ORTHOPHOTO MAPPING 

PROJECT OF BENTON COUNTY INCLUDING THE CITY OF 

PROSSER'S URBAN GROWTH AREA. 

WHEREAS, the City uses ortho-irnagery maps to resolve issues and facilitate 

decision making for many plaiming and code enforcement issues; and 

WHEREAS, an Interlocal Agreement defining the responsibilities of the 

County and the City has been prepared and approved as to form by the Benton County 

Prosecuting Attorney's Office and approved as to form by the City Attorney of the City 
of Prosser; and 

WHEREAS, contracting with Benton County to obtain updated ortho-imagery 

maps will save the City the time aud effort of contracting for such services on its own; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended approval of said Interlocal 
Agree1nent; 

NOW TH:EREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

Prosser, Washington that the Interlocal Agreement by and between the City of Prosser 

and Benton County for the undertaking and completing an aerial photography and urban 

orthophoto mapping project of Benton County which includes the City of Prosser Urban 

Growth Area is hereby approved ai1d lhe Mayor is authorized to sign said agreement. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the Mayor 

of the City of Prosser this day of . 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

24



'.Ji\'/IOd Ol SV O.::IJ\OtlddV 

)[tlff1J J..lIJ 'M VHS '1'.aHJYll 

25



INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is between Benton County, a political subdivision of the State of 
Washington, and the City of Prosser, a municipal corporation. 

WITNESS ETH: 

WHEREAS, the lnterlocal Cooperation Act, as amended, and codified in Chapter 39.34 
of the Revised Code of Washington provides for interlocal cooperation between 
governmental agencies; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this agreement is to cooperatively undertake and complete 
an aerial photography and orthophoto mapping project of portions of BENTON 
COUNTY, including the areas lying within the CITY OF PROSSER; and 

WHEREAS, this project will benefit both, because the COUNTY has a need to update 
its urban ortho-imagery of the County in 2014, and the CITY OF PROSSER has a need 
to update its ortho-imagery of those areas lying within the limits of the Prosser Urban 
Growth Boundary; and 

WHEREAS, both parties have the capability to independently acquire and/or produce 
2014 ortho-imagery, but if each acted independently, the results would involve 
significant redundancies and increased costs; and 

WHEREAS, a major goal of this Agreement is to reduce and/or eliminate duplication 
and save governmental costs; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF PROSSER has requested that the COUNTY provide and 
deliver to them the ortho-imagery of the Prosser Urban Growth Boundary with 4-inch or 
better pixel resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY will be entering into a personal services contract with 
GEOPHEX, LTD., for the purpose of undertaking and completing an aerial photography 
and urban orthophoto mapping project of portions of Benton County; and 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY is willing to include, as part of the contract to be entered with 
GEOPHEX, LTD., all provisions necessary to deliver ortho-imagery of the areas lying 
within the Prosser Urban Growth Boundary to the CITY OF PROSSER at the requested 
4-inch or better pixel resolution; and 

26



WHEREAS, the CITY OF PROSSER has agreed to pay the COUNTY the amount of the 
cost of the delivery of ortho-imagery with 4-inch or better pixel resolution; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The COUNTY shall provide all data and resources necessary for GEOPHEX, 
LTD., to complete the work as outlined in the personal services contract to be 
entered with GEOPHEX, LTD., for the purpose of undertaking and completing an 
aerial photography and urban orthophoto mapping project of Benton County. 

2. The COUNTY shall provide all preliminary data received from GEOPHEX, LTD., 
for the Prosser Project Area, as described in Paragraph 5, to the CITY OF 
PROSSER for their review and comment. 

3. The COUNTY shall relay the CITY OF PROSSER's concerns regarding 
accuracies and visual issues such as seams or structures with edge or 
displacement effects to GEOPHEX, LTD. and assure that such concerns are 
addressed in the final product produced by the COUNTY'S contract with 
GEOPHEX, LTD. 

4. The COUNTY shall deliver to the CITY OF PROSSER a copy of all project 
deliverables across the entire extent of the Project Area as described in Exhibit A 
(Attached), including both project documentation and project data, as described 
in the personal services contract to be entered with GEOPHEX, LTD. 

5. The CITY OF PROSSER shall reimburse the COUNTY in the amount of the cost 
of the delivery of ortho-imagery with 4-inch or better pixel resolution across the 
Prosser Project Area as described in Exhibit B (Attached). The amount to be 
reimbursed by the CITY OF PROSSER to the COUNTY shall be Five Thousand 
Four Hundred and Forty-four dollars ($5,444), plus tax, if applicable less an 
amount equal to fifteen (15) percent of any donations received by the COUNTY 
for this project by July 31, 2014. 

6. The COUNTY shall submit an invoice to the CITY OF PROSSER for 
reimbursement to the COUNTY upon the successful delivery of the project 
documentation and project data. 

27



BOARO OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
BENTON COUNTY. WASHINGTON 

James Beaver, Chairman 

Jerome Delvin, Chair Pro-Tern 

Shon Small, Member 

Date:------------

ATTEST: 

CleJk to the Board 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

"~ 

CITY OF PROSSER 
PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

Paul Warden, Mayor 

Date: ____________ _ 

City Clerk 

~, 9 
City Attorney 

28



0 

Legend 

t : :1 Project Area 

[b Cityl.im1ts 

~ County Boumisr'I 

[b Urban Gro\Wlll Area 

~ Hig!1W~'I or :nrer~tare 

~ River 

. 
,I 

w""'~" 

' 
2 3 

Miles 

4 

·• ,- ,-,~-' 

EXHIBIT A 

PROJECT AREA 

5 

'21] 

29



0 
, ~~ ~

~i
i 

;.,
 "' 

! 
·
-
·
 

!;
 

• 
~
 

~ 
g 

0 
~
 

0 

·+·
 

" 
"' 

~ 
5 

~
 

a 
0 

~ 
<

 
c 

I 
~
 

~ I 
fil 

0 
§ 

:._,
 

~ 
" 

"' 

30



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve a Labor Agreement 
between the City of Prosser and 
Teamsters Local 839, Public Works Staff 
for the term of January 1, 2014, through 
December 31, 2016, and the Associated 
Letters of Understanding and Supporting 
Agreements. 

' Department: Director: 
Administration Paul Warden 

Cost of Propasal: n/a 

Amount Budgeted: n/a 

, Meeting Date: 
March 25, 2014 
Regular Meeting 

Contact Person: 
Regina Mauras 

iEi~~tf~~*i::ifb~:tS: ,;:?- - --

Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Teamsters Local 839, Public Works Staff Labor Agreement 
2. Letter of Understanding regarding Standby Pay 
3. Letter of Understanding regarding 4/10 schedule 
4. Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust Subscription Agreement 

Phone Number: 
(509) 786-8225 

Account Number: 

Name and Fund# 

, 5. Western Conference of Teamsters Pension Trust Employer-Union Pension 
I Certificate 

~mmarv Statement: 
I 

I 
Representatives from Teamsters and the City of Prosser have meet and negotiated the 
terms of this attached Collective Bargaining Agreement and the associated letters of 

I understanding. The term of this agreement is from January 1, 2014, through December 
131,2016. 

I Pursuant to the terms of the collective bargaining agreement, the attached subscription 
·r' agreements with Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust and Western Conference of 
. Teamsters Pension Trust must also be approved. 
I I Consistent with or Comparison to: 

I EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

i Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

31



1. Approve a Labor Agreement between the City of Prosser and Teamsters Local 
839, Public Works Staff for the term of January 1, 2014, through December 31, 
2016. 

2. Approve a Letter of Understanding with Teamsters 839, Public Works regarding 
Standby Pay. 

3. Approve a Letter of Understanding with Teamsters 839, Public Works regarding 
the 4/10 work schedule. 

4. Approve a subscription agreement with Washington Teamsters Healthcare Trust 
for Teamsters 839, Public Works employees. 

5. Approve an agreement with Western Conference of Teamsters Pension Trust for 
Teamsters 839, Public Works employees. 

Reviewed by Citv Attornev: I Approved by Mayor: 

Director: 'llc.,.{LlJ~ -?-7 
1ll{)n ... ~ ~OJY" I .sJJf/;, 
-iv

1

;.20. ;2.t)Ji.j; Date. Date: 

fJU~ 
-ZJ-l'I Date: 

Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

March 18, 2014 

32



LABOR AGREEMENT 

by and between 

CITY OF PROSSER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

And 

TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 839 
Affiliated with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters 

EFFECTIVEJA,,,,UARY 151, 2014 THROUGH DECEMBER 3ls1
, 2016 

33



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I ARTICLE! ·PREAMBLE ·-- ·--___ ---·· ··~-, 31 

ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION A."<D BARGAINING UNIT -L 3 . 

. ~~ I~ 
I i I 
I ARTICLE 4. SENIORITY AND ADVANCEMENT I 4 i 
I 1 I 
j ARTICLE 5 ·HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 

rRT!CLE 6 ·HOLIDAYS AND HOL!DA 

I ARTICLE 7 - VACATIONS 

LRTICLE 8 - SICK LEA~~: LONGEVJT~, BEREAVEMENT LEA VE 

I ARTICLE 9 - DEFINITIONS 

5 1 

6 

7 

9 

i ARTICLE I 0 ·ANTI-DISCRIMINATION 

I ARTICLE 11 - GRIEVANCE AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

9 . 

9 

1----------------------
ARTJCLE 12- UNION SECURJTY AND CHECK-OFF OF DUES 12l 

I 

l ARTICLE 14- PENSION DIVERSION 
LJ I !SJ 

r A.:RncLE 1 s : llivrPUJYEE Discii>LiNEirrfikMm.A.T10N i---16 1 

I I I I ARTICLE 16 - SAVINGS CLAUSE I 17 

i "TI<ll ". "OeAHONA«HM''""''' ' " I 

i ARTICLE 18- COMPLETE AGREEMENT 1 .. ~ 

f Afmn.rn '™''"~M"' rum'" ~·~ 
-ATION clF AGREEMENT i 18 r 

. 181 
ARTICLE 21 -TERM OF AGREEMENT 

APPENDIX "A" 

2 

34



ARTICLE 1 - PREAMBLE 

1.1 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the City of Prosser, 
hereinafter referred to as the "Employer" and Teamsters Union Local 839, affiliated 
with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters, hereinafter referred to as the 
"Union". 

ARTICLE 2 ·RECOGNITION AND BARGAINING UNIT 

2.1 The Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining agent for all 
employees of the following City Departments: ALL PUBLIC WORKS 
EMPLOYEES (STREET.IRRIGATION, SOLID WASTE, WATER, PARKS); 
EXCLUDING ALL DEPARTMENT HEADS, SUPERVISORS, 
CONFIDE.l\i!IAL EMYLOYEES, TEMPORARY, SEASONAL, AND CASUAL 
EMPLOYEES. 

2.2 Only members of the bargaining unit shall perform bargaining unit work. In cases 
where the safe and efficient operation of the City would necessitate, bargaining unit 
employees of the sewer department may be used on a temporary basis to 
accomplish the necessary functions. Bargaining unit employees' hours will not be 
reduced as a result of this language. If either party concludes that this language is 
being and or has been abused this section may be reopened for negotiations 
pursuant to RCW 41.56. Should this process not result in a resolution, then upon 
60 days written notification to the affected party, this section may be cancelled. It 
shall be incumbent upon the party requesting negotiations to show abuse of this 
section before said cancellation can occur. 

ARTICLE 3 · CONTINUATION OF WORK 

3.1 The City and the Union agree that the public interest requires efficient and 
uninterrupted performance of all City services and to that end pledge their best 
efforts to avoid or eliminate any conduct to the contrary of this objective. 
Specifically, during the term of this Agreement, the Union shall not cause or 
condone any work stoppage, including any strike, slow-down, and refusal to 
perform any custommily assigned duties, sick leave absence which is not bona-fide 
or other interference with City functions by employees under this Agreement. 
Should same occur, the Union agrees to take appropriate steps to end such 
interference. Any concerted action by an employee in the bargaining unit shall be 
deemed work stoppage if any of the above activities have occurred. 

3.2 Upon notification in writing by the City to the Union that any of the Union's 
members are engaged in work stoppage, the Union shall, immediately, in writing, 
order such members to immediately cease engaging in such work stoppage and 

3 

35



shall provide the City with a copy of such order. The employee may be subject to 
disciplinary action. 

ARTICLE 4 - SENIORITY AND ADVANCEMENT 

4.1 An employee shall establish seniority when he/she becomes a regular full-time or 
regular part-time employee of the City. An employee acquires seniority status upon 
his/her first date of employment or at the end of his/her last break in service. Parr
time employees shall accme seniority on a pro-rata basis based on the amount of 
hours worked in relation to a full-time (2080 hour) employee. 

4.2 During the period of time before an employee is assigned status as a regular 
employee he/she shall be considered a probationary employee and seniority will 
not apply. After the employee is assigned regular full-time or regular part-time 
status, his/her name shall then appear on the appropriate seniority list as of the first 
date of employment The first date of employment shall be used for purposes of 
figuring vacations, advancement, longevity pay and sick leave for which an 
employee is entitled. 

4.3 Seniority within the bargaining unit shall prevail in the case of layoff or rehire. The 
last employee hired shall be the first employee laid off and the last employee laid 
off shall be the first employee rehired. If there is any questions of any senior 
employee being qualified to perform the work available in the case of layoff and 
rehire, the City must show cause for not rehiring or laying off such a senior 
employee. 

4.4 A break in seniority shall occur if an employee is discharged, providing the City 
shows Just Cause, or quits. Employees laid off shall be placed on a six (6) month 
recall list. After expiration of this six-month period the City shall have no obligation 
to recall and/or rehlre such laid off individuals. 

4.5 In the event two (2) or more employees become regular full-time or regular part
time employees on the same date, the date of written application of such employee 
filed with the City of Prosser for the position involved shall establish seniority. 

4.6 Employees who are specifically directed and assigned to perform the work of a 
supervisor and/or higher classification for a period of five (5) consecutive days or 
longer, and who perform such work, shall be paid retroactively to the start of such 
assignment, at ten percent (10%) above their base rate for all hours spent in the 
higher classification. 

4.7 Part-time employees shall be laid off, prior to full-time employees irrespective of 
seniority. 

4 

36



ARTICLE 5 - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 

5.1 The city of Prosser shall maintain its current scheduling practices. A reasonable 
attempt shall be made to schedule days off consecutively. No overtime shall be paid 
for regularly scheduled Saturday or Sunday work except as outlined in the 
Agreement. 

5.2 The City shall strive to provide 48 hours' notice of schedule changes when 
practicable. This shall not apply in emergency situations. 

5.3 OFF DUTY CALL OUTS - In the event a member of the Union is called out 
during off duty hours, he/she shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours or actual 
call out hours, whichever is greater, at a rate of time and one-half (l-1/2) his/her 
regular wage. Call outs must be approved by the department head and/or his 
designee. Scheduled overtime shall not be subject to this provision, as well as, 
holdover and early reporting time contiguous with the end or start of a regularly 
scheduled shift. 

5.4 The City shall strive to provide regular full-time employees with forty (40) hours 
of work within a week. This shall in no way constitute a guarantee of forty (40) 
hours work within a week. 

5.5 Overtime which has been specifically authorized by supervisory personnel and is 
performed in excess of forty (40) hours in a work week shall be paid at one and 
one-half ( 1- l/2) times the employee's regular rate of pay. 

5.6 There shall be no pyramiding of overtime pay. 

5.7 Except for callouts while an employee is on standby, overtime will be offered by 
seniority, subject to qualifications. The employee on standby will work the 
overtime when a call out is required. 

ARTICLE 6 ·HOLIDAYS AND HOLIDAY PAY 

6.1 Holidays -The following shall be considered paid Holidays: 

New Year's Day 
Memorial Day 
Veteran's Day 
Floating Holiday 

Martin Luther King Day 
Independence Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas Day 

A total of eleven ( 11) paid holidays. 

President's Day 
Labor Day 
Day after Thanksgiving 

5 

37



6.2 HOLIDAY PAY 

a) In the event a holiday falls on Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be observed 
as the holiday. In the event a holiday falls on Sunday, the following Monday 
shall be observed as the holiday. Employees who do not work a Monday-Friday 
work schedule shall if the holiday fall on their first day of rest, observe the 
holiday on the preceding day or if the holiday falls on the second day of rest 
shall observe the holiday on the following day, except that when New Years 
Day falls on a Saturday, it shall be observed on the following Monday. 

b) Eligible employees who are not required to work on the holiday as observed, 
shall be paid eight (8) hours at his/her regular rate of pay. 

c) Eligible employees who are required to work on the holiday as observed, shall 
be paid at the rate of two and one-half (2-1/2) times their regular rate of pay. 

d) In order to be paid for a holiday, an employee must have worked his last 
scheduled work day immediate] y preceding the holiday and his first scheduled 
work day following the holiday unless the employee receives pay for such day 
or days absent under on the benefit provisions of the agreement or if the 
employee is on approved leave. 

e) Floating holiday at employee's choice to be taken hy mutual agreement 
between the employee and the department head and/or his designee. 

f) The floating holiday will be eight (8) hours per full-time employee. Benefit 
eligible part-time employees shall have this benefit pro-rated based on hours 
worked. 

ARTICLE 7 - VACATIONS 

7. l VACATION DAYS EARNED - All members of the union herein above defined 
shall be entitled to vacation, with pay, at his/her regular wage according the 
following schedule (regular part-time employees shall receive vacation on pro-rata 
basis): 

a) After one (1) year of service, but less than five (5) years, one hundred and four 
(104) hours vacation. 

b) After five (5) years of service, but less than ten ( 10) years, one hundred forty
four ( 144) hours vacation. 

c) Alter ten (JO) years of service, one hundred forty-four (144) hours vacation plus 
eight (8) hours vacation for each additional year of service, up to and including 
a maximum accrual (or the equivalent of) twenty-two (22) hours per month. 

6 

38



d) Not more than two-hundred forty (240) hours vacation may be accrued. 

e) No vacations may be taken during the first six (6) months of employment, or 
extension to the probation period. 

7.2 TERMINATION - In the event of termination, the member shall be paid at his/her 
regular wage for all vacation days accrued. This provision shall not apply to new 
hires that are within the probationary period at time of separation. 

7.3 VACATION SCHEDULES 

a) Time of vacation shall be subject to approval of the department head and/or his 
designee and will be approved based upon workforce needs and operations 
conditions. Vacation requests of less than 2 days should be submitted at least 
48 hours prior to the time being requested off. Vacation requests of 2 days or 
longer normally shall be submitted at least 30 days prior to the requested time 
off. 

b) Vacation schedules will be established by the department head and/or his 
designee and in so far as operating conditions and other needs permit, seniority 
will be considered in establishing such schedules and in resolving conflicting 
requests by members of the Union for specific times for their vacations. 

c) No vacation days will be accrued during a leave of absence. 

7.4 VACATION BUY BACK - Annual Vacation Buy Back will be paid out once a 
year in tbe month of December. An employee may elect to exercise the vacation 
buy back option, and if they do so, the City shall compensate them up to the 
maximum of forty (40) hours at the straight time rate of pay. Employees may only 
buy back vacation up to the maximum of forty ( 40) hours of if he/she has taken a 
minimum of fmty (40) hours vacation in the year. Regular part-time employees 
shall not be eligible to receive vacation buyback. 

ARTICLE 8 ·SICK LEAVE, LONGEVITY PAY, BI-LINGUAL PAY. & 
BEREAVEMENT LEA VE 

8.1 SICK LEA VE 

a. All members of the Union shall earn eight (8) hours sick leave per month. 
(Regular part-time employees shall earn sick leave on a pro-rata basis). 

b. All members of the Union may accrue a maximum of nine-hundred-sixty (960) 
hours sick leave. 

c. All members of the Union shall be paid for fifty percent (50%) of unused sick 

7 

39



days accrued at the date of his/her voluntary termination, up to a maximum of 
seven-hundred-twenty (720) hours, provided that at the time of retirement or 
termination, he/she has a minimum of three-hundred-sixty (360) sick leave 
hours accrued. 

d. In the event an employee encounters the Joss of his/her own life, his/her 
beneficiary will receive one hundred percent (100%) of any accrued sick leave 
for that employee, up to a maximum of seven-hundred-twenty (720) hours 
subject w the above stated minimums and maximums. 

e. Any employee, who has been on sick leave for three (3) or more consecutive 
days, may be required to furnish the City with a physician's verification of said 
illness. A physicians release may be required for less than three (3) days, 
provided the situation has been discussed with the Teamster business 
representative. 

f. Abuse of sick leave shall result in disciplinary action up to and including 
discharge. 

g. Probationary employees shall be advanced twenty-four (24) hours of sick leave 
at the time of employment. Probationers who do not complete probation and 
who have used some or all of the advanced sick leave shall be required to pay 
the used po1tion back. Said monies shall be withheld from the final paycheck. 

8.2 SICK LEA VE DONA T!ON 

The employees of the bargaining unit may donate their sick leave to another 
employee subject to the following conditions: 

l. The employee requesting the donation must have exhausted all paid 
accrued leaves, 

2. The employee(s) donating leave must maintain at a minimum one 
hundred-seventy-three (173) hours of sick leave after donation. 

3. No employee may donate more than forty (40) hours sick leave 
within a one (1) year period. 

8.3 LONGEVITY PAY 

All bargaining unit members who have less than ten ( 10) years of service must 
wait until they have reached their tenth (lO'h) year of employment to begin to 
receive Longevity Pay, in accordance with the City of Prosser, Personnel Policy 
402.1. The amount of Longevity Pay will be based on the employee's total years 
of employment. 

8 

40



8.4 Bf-LINGUAL PAY - The employer agrees to begin to implement POLICY 404: 
BI-LINGUAL ALLOWANCE, beginning January 1st, 2015, at the rate of forty 
dollars ($40.00) per month. 

a. Effective 1-1-2016 the city wj]j increase the bilingual pay to fifty 
dollars ($50.00) per month. 

8.5 BEREAVEMENT LEA VE 

All members of the union shall receive paid personal emergency leave of three 
(3) days for a death in the immediate family as defined by the City of Prosser 
Personnel Policy. This personal emergency leave is not deductible from the 
member's accrued sick leave or vacation. Pay will be at his/her regular wage. 

ARTICLE 9 - DEFINITIONS 

9. 1 Part-time Benefit Eligibility- Regular part-time employees will receive benefits on 
a pro-rata basis, based on regularly scheduled hours at date of hire. Should a regular 
part-time employee temporarily receive an increase in hours of work, i.e., up to two 
(2) weeks, they shall continue to receive their regular pro-ration of benefits. 

ARTICLE 10 ·ANTI-DISCRIMINATION 

10.1 It is mutually understood that the City will not in any manner discriminate against 
any member of the Union as a result of such member's legal activities on behalf of 
the Union and in furtherance of the legal purposes of the Union 

ARTICLE 11 · GRIEVANCE AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

11. l Scope of Grievance Procedure - The purpose of the Grievance Procedure is to 
establish effective machinery for the fair, expeditious, and orderly adjustment of 
grievances. Only matters involving the interpretation, application, or enforcement 
of the express terms of the Agreement shall constitute a gTievance. 

11.2 Either the Union or the Employer may process grievances each against the other to 
allege contract violations and enforce the party's respective rights. Union or 
Employer grievances shall enter the procedure at Step 3 and be subject to all 
applicable time limits, other provisions, and to mediation arbitration. 

9 

41



11.3 STEPS 

Step J. The aggrieved employee, with or without his representative, shall meet with 
the department head and/or his designee within the prescribed time limits and 
present the written grievance. The department head and/or his designee shall make 
a decision in writing and present this to the aggrieved employee within fifteen ( 15) 
working days from the initial presentation of the grievance. Every effort shall be 
made by the employee and the Supervisor to resolve the grievance. Every effort 
shall be made by the employee and the supervisor to resolve the grievance at this 
level. The written grievance at this step and at all steps thereafter shall contain the 
following information: 

l) A statement of the grievance and the facts upon which it is based; 
2) The alleged violation of the Agreement; 
3) The remedy or adjustment sought; and 
4) The signature of the aggrieved employee. 

The department head and/or his designee shall respond in writing to this grievance 
within fifteen (15) working days of its receipt. The written response at this step, 
and management responses at all steps thereafter, shall contain the following 
information. 

1. An affirmation or denial of the facts upon which the grievance is based; 
2. An analysis of the alleged violation of the Agreement; 
3. The remedy or adjustment, if any to be made; and 
4. The signature of the appropriate management representative. 

Step 2- If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the aggrieved employee shall 
submit the grievance to the City Administrator within fifteen (15) working clays 
following the department head and/or his designee' s written response. The City 
Administrator shall respond in writing to this grievance within fifteen (15) working 
days of its receipt. The requirement in Step 2 for written grievance and responses 
shall not preclude the aggrieved employee and the appropriate management 
representative from orally discussing and resolving the grievance. 

Management grievances shall be submitted to the Union. Either Union or 
Management grievances shall be submitted within fifteen ( 15) calendar days of the 
occurrence prompting the grievance and shall be answered within fifteen ( 15) 
working days. Union and Management grievances shall he subject to expedited 
mediation arbitration and other provisions in Step 11.4. 

Step 3- If the grievance has not been resolved at Step 2, the Union may refer the 
dispute to Expedited Mediation Arbitration as provided below. The Union shall 
notify the Employer in writing of submission to Expedited Mediation Arbitration 
within ten (IO) working days after receipt of the City Administrator's written 
response at Step 3. 

10 

42



11.4 PANEL OF STANDING MEDIATOR-ARBITERS 

The parties agree to timely establish a panel of three (3) standing mediator-arbiters 
to hear and resolve all contract disputes. If the two parties cannot agree on a panel, 
then a list of eleven (11) names shall he obtained from either the Public 
Employment Relations Commission or the American Arbitration Association. The 
parties shall alternately strike names until three (3) remain. Each person selected 
shall serve in turn regarding a single grievance dispute. If unavailable, the next 
listed person shall serve. The mediator-arbiters shall thus serve in rotation. PERC 
staff members shall not serve on the panel. 

Either party may unilaterally remove a mediator-arbiter at any time as long as there 
is no dispute pending at the time. Mediator-arbiter panel vacancies shall be filled 
as in the above paragraph. 

The panel member assigned to a grievance shall meet without delay with the parties 
and the grievant and attempt to mediate/conciliate the dispute. If an agreement is 
reached, it shall be reduced to writing, shall be signed by each of the above parties, 
including the grievant, and shall be final and binding. 

If, after a concerted effort, a single mediation meeting does not produce a 
settlement, the mediator-arbiter shall immediately convene an informal arbitration 
hearing. Witnesses, evidence and exhibits shall be kept to a minimum and the mles 
of evidence shall not apply. 

The mediator-arbiter shall. on the same date of the hearing, provide a written 
"bench award" as a binding settlement of the grievance. 

The mediator-arbiter shall not have the power to add to, subtract from, or modify 
the provisions of this Agreement in arriving at a decision of the issue or issues 
presented; and shall confine his/her decision solely on the interpretation 
application. or enforcement of this Agreement. The mediator-arbiter shall confine 
himself/herself to the precise issue submitted for arbitration, and shall have no 
authority to determine any other issues not so submitted to him/her. The decision 
of the mediator-arbiter shall be final and binding upon the aggrieved employee, 
Union and Employer. 

The Employer and the Uuion shall share equally the fees and expenses of the 
mediator-arbiter. 

Each party shall pay their own expenses as related to this section. It is further agreed 
that employees needed to testify at an arbitration and/or hearing shall not suffer any 
loss in pay and/or benefits. 

Either party has the right to have a representative represent them at any step of the 
grievance procedure. 

l I 

43



The following grievance principles shall govern and be controlling in any and all 
grievances: 

L Time limits at any step may be extended by mutual agreement as long as 
the applicable time limit has not expired. 

2. While a grievant may be "made whole" any punitive award shall be void 
and unenforceable. 

3. Unless agreed otherwise, only one grievance will be heard at a time by an 
arbiter. 

ARTICLE 12 - UNION SECURITY AND CHECK-OFF OF DUES 

12.1 The Employer agrees that all employees covered under this Agreement who have 
been in the employment of the Employer for thirty (30) days or more, shall become 
and remain members of the Union in good standing. 

12.2 The Employer further agrees that all new employees hired subsequent to the date 
of the signing of this Agreement shall, as a condition of employment, after thirty 
(30) days of employment, become and remain members of the Union in good 
standing. 

12.3 In the Event an employee member of the Union as defined in Article I of this 
Agreement who joins the Union fails to maintain his membership in the Union in 
good standing therein by the payment of Initiation Fees and by regular payment of 
dues, the Union will notify the Employer, in writing, of such employees' 
delinquency. The Employer agrees to advise the employee that his employment 
status with the Employer is in jeopardy and that failure to meet his membership 
obligation will normally result in termination of employment within five (5) days. 

12.4 The Employer will furnish the Union, on a current basis, notice of all regular 
employees as defined in Article 2 who have been hired, rehired, transferred, laid 
off or terminated. 

l 2.5 Nothing in the above sections will interfere with the employee's right under RCW 
41.56.122 of the Public Employee's Collective Bargaining Act 

12.6 The Union agrees to defend, indemnify, save and hold the City harmless from, for 
and against any and all claims arising from the application of the Article. 

12.7 The Employer agrees lo deduct Union dues from the wages of each employee as 
qualified in Section 12.8 below. The Employer agrees to forward such dues to the 
office of the Union monthly. 

12.8 The employee shall have the freedom of option to have their dues deducted, or not 
to have them deducted, by signing an authorization card to that effect, copies of 
which shall be mailed to the Employer and the Union for certification purposes. 

12 

44



12.9 It is agreed between the City and the Union that certain members of the Union, 
being the elected officers or agents of the Union, will have occasion to attend 
meetings, conferences and be involved in other duties with reference to the business 
of the Union who are acting as officers and agents shall be given time off from their 
duties will full pay and allowance to attend such business of the Union. 
Time off with pay for members to attend conferences shall be a maximum of forty 
(40) hours per year for the total bargaining unit. Time off must be approved by the 
Supervisor. 

ARTICLE l3 ·HEALTH & WELFARE 

13. I Effective January l", 2014 the Employer shall pay each month into the following 
employee health care benefit plans, on account of each member of the bargaining 
unit who was compensated for forty (40) hours or more in the preceding month. 
The following plans will remain in effect for the term of this agreement: 

a. W<Lshington Teamsters Welfare Trust - Medical Plan A (with Domestic 
Partners) 

b. Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust - Dental Plan A (with Domestic 
Partners) 

c. A WC Vision Plan - VSP $10 Deductible 
ct. Retiree's Welfare Trust - Plan RWT Plus 

Payments required providing benefits set forth in this section shall be made on or 
before the tenth (JO'hl day after the last business day of the month. The employer 
accepts and agrees to be bound by the Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust 
Agreement and Declaration and the Retiree's Welfare Trust Agreement and 
Declaration as long as it is obligated to provide benefits offered by the Trust. 

The premium distribution is as outlined below. The employee cost shall be paid 
through payroll deduction. Any premium increase over the January 2014 levels 
shall be split on a 50/50 basis. Employer pays 50% of the premium increase -
employee pays 50% of the premium increase 

13 

45



. Employee 

Employee Spouse 

1222.55 

1222.55 

1013.58 
--·· --- - -- -- --- -- ·-· '""" 

955.73 

208.98 

266.83 
···-··----···-··- ··- - ·-··-·------ ·- . -------··. -

Employee+ Child 1222.55 995.78 226.78 
-·- ·-·-··-· ·-----------· _,, . 

. Employee+ Spouse+ Child 1222.55 946.83 275. 73 

235.68 

284.63 

Employee Children 1222.55 986.88 
--- ····-··----

Full Family 1222.55 937.93 

~-· . ~ . . . . . . 'ERi'TAJi . . . Ii~ . ~ :'~ 
~fllEES ~~BB . ~emifim ~ ·• 0Rate 
Emp.lo.yee.. ·- . . • • . • 

0

94.85 94.85 .. o" I 
1--··-······ ····· .. ··-··---··-··-·-·· ·-·····-··············--·--· ··--·---··--·-·----· - .... -···-· ... - .. 
1 Employee Spouse 94.85 94.85 0 . 
1 .. -·····-·-.. ·-·• .... _, ________________ ,.,_,, __ ,,_____________ • -·---·-"•"'"·-·----·-.-··-·--------···-···-- : 

I Employee+ Child 94.85 94.85 0 I 
\·E;;p;;;;~+ spou;~-+chiw··-------···--·-··- ··-94.ss-·-· ··94~35 .. -----0·--; 
I Employee Children . - 94.85 --- 94.85 a··---·-1 
,-r:;;!IFa-;:;;;IY·--.. ----··--------------------94-:85----94~3·5·· ·-· ... o·-------

L .. --·==~===:=:==:::=:==-J i 
! Th;- rate established by the Board of T~ustees effective January 1, --- --j 
I ~ . 
·-·--····-···-.. ---·-··-----------------··-··· . ···--··---·-·--··-··· .... . J 

I Employee 132.70 121.10 11.60 

i Employee Spouse 132.70 113.95 18.75 

t: ... " ., •• +Child 132.70 118.90 13.80 

tr , · , +Spouse+ Child 132. 70 112.85 19.85 

tr.."., •• Children 132.70 117.80 14.90 
----·---"·---·--···~-·-·---~~------, 

Full Family 132.70 111.75 20.95 

14 

46



Employee Spouse 20.75 20.75 0 
. -_, ___ ..... -· .. __ .... ---·-··-- ---·--- .. _ ----- --. ... -·. -· ............. " . -· ---- -- -· "' - ... _ .. , """ ..... .,, "" - ----. "'" - ..... - ..... """" ... --·· .. " .. - ... -- .. -·-··-"""'"' --··--··· --· 
Employee+ Child 20.75 20.75 0 
---··.- - -· __ _, ________ "" .... , ....... -........ _,.,. .. ,., ____ ,,,_ .... --- ' -- .. ------ " ----- -"" -' - -- - - -····---- -·-- -·- - -... -"_,,.,,_ "''"""'' -- '" ·--- ,, . -· ---- -- ------·-··--· --.. -····- -

___ ,, ___ 

Employee + Spouse +Child 20.75 20.75 0 
---- ...... -.. ---.-·- ......... --.. --·-- .. "''" ........ ,, •.. _,, ________ _,,,_ ........ -- ----.. ---·-·-··· ,, __ ,, __ .., __ ,,___ --·-- - --"'-""'"''" --·- ---·-·----- " --,,_ _,, ____ ,,___ - '" ..... _ ... -- . .. --- ..... -- -- .... - ...... 

Employee Children 20.75 20.75 0 
... --- -···-···--·-···· --·-···-·--""""'""""'"-- .................. ·---·-··-···------· __ _, ........ ,, .. ~ ... - .. - ... _, .. __ . __ .,_,. _____ _. ..... , ... _ .... _, ....... ______ ,,_,, _________ ·-----....... -... - .... ------- ·-· ... ·- .,. ... .,, .. , .. .,., ______ 

Full Family 20.75 20.75 0 

i::_· ~- ~ 
1 

-~' ~.' • .---::_: :;-'',:z~z~s ·~_-.:.·~ :~-";: ~-::; ~ :: '.~-.:·~~:,~:~ ~.-:0~~' _:.~~-:_-~-~~t~ 
Employee 1470.85 - . - - 1250.27 --- - --

E., ., . Spouse 1470.85 1185.27 
' 

.t.-.r--:~,...:: +Child 1470.85 1230.27 

Employee + Spouse +Child 1470.85 1175.27 

Employee Children 1470.85 1220.27 

Full Family 1470.85 1165.27 

January!", 2015 and January!", 2016 - Any medical or dental premium increase 
over the January 1 ", 2014 levels shall be split on a 50/50 basis. Employer pays 50% 
of the premium increase - employee pays 50% of the premium increase. 

Should the January 151
, 2015 or January 1 ", 2016 premium increase be greater than 

6% the parties agree to reopen insurance to discuss cost containment features. Said 
re-opener shall not affect the cost share feature of this Article unless otherwise 
agreed to by the parties. 

ARTICLE 14 - PENSION DIVERSION 

14. l Employees have elected to divert by way of wage reduction the following amount 
to the Western Conference of Teamsters Pension Trust (the Trust). The diversion 
shall be applicable to all compensable hours including overtime hours, and shall 
be computed monthly. The overtime rate of pay will be calculated based 011 the 
total wages and pension diverted. The employer will pay into the Trust amounts 
diverted on account of each member of the bargaining unit, but otherwise there is 
110 Employer contribution, and the Union agrees that, during the term of this 
Agreement, it will not request that the Employer make any contribution. Upon 
ratification, the hourly wage reduction shall be Fifty Cents ($0.50) per 
compensable hour. 

15 

220.58 --- - -

285.58 

240.58 

295.58 

250.58 
Ont: ro 

47



The Employer hereby acknowledges that it has received true copies of the 
Western Conference of Teamsters Pension Trust Agreement and Declaration of 
Trust Regulations and shall be considered a party thereto. The Employer (City of 
Prosser) agrees that the employer trustees in the said trust are and shall be its 
representatives and consents to be bound by the actions and determinations of the 
Trustees. 

November 131
, 2014 and November P', 2015, the Union will reserve the right to 

open the contract for limited negotiations regarding the Pension Diversion. If the 
employees bound by this Collective Bargaining Agreement choose to increase 
their pension diversion above. the fifty cent ($0.50) per hour rate, they will do so 
in November at no cost to the city. 

ARTICLE 15 ·EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/TERMINATION 

15.l DUE PROCESS JN DISCIPLL'\IE - Employees shall be disciplined only for cause
Such discipline shall be in private and the City agrees to follow, where appropriate, 
a practice of progressive discipline which may begin with verbal warning, progress 
to written reprimand, then to snspension without pay, demotion or discharge. 

Formal discipline is defined as that in which a written record of the action is placed 
in the employee's personnel file. 

In any proposed formal disciplinary action, the employee shall be entitled to have 
present the Union's business representative or another representative of the 
employee's choosing. H will be given one working days' notice as time to prepare 
and informed in advance as to the nature of the matter. 

Formal discipline (excluding verbal warnings) shall be administered only following 
an informal hearing to determine all of the facts and permit oral and 
written rebuttal by the involved employee. Derogatory statements or complaints 
will promptly be shown to the employee and he shall have an opportunity to attach 
his statements before the items are placed in his personnel file. 

Disciplinary records will, after two (2) calendar years from the date of the incident, 
be returned to the employee unless in the intervening period related infractions have 
occurred. At the discretion of the Supervisor or designee, a disciplinary letter may 
be removed from the file. 

Discipline involving written reprimand, suspension, demotion or discharge shall be 
subject to appeal set forth in the Grievance Procedure provided in this Agreement. 

16 

48



15.2 An employee suspended without pay may request to, at management's discretion; 

!. Forfeit anuual leave, 
2. Work otherwise scheduled days off, or 
3. Any combination thereof, on a day-for-day basis in lieu of the suspension. 

ARTICLE 16 - SAVINGS CLAUSE 

16. l If any Article or Section of this Agreement, or any addendum thereto, should be 
held invalid by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, the 
Article or provision shall not invalidate the entire Agreement, it being the express 
intention of the parties hereto that all other provisions not declared invalid shall 
remain in full force and effect. The parties shall enter into collective bargaining for 
the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such Article or 
Section that has been declared invalid. 

If the parties are in disagreement about an item and whether in fact it has been 
rendered invalid, then this item will be temporarily inoperative pending a resolution 
of the matter. 

ARTICLE 17 - PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES 

17.l The probationary period of all employees shall be one ( 1) year. Probationary 
employees shall be subject to all provisions of this Agreement but shall be only on 
a trial basis during which they may be separated from employment without cause 
and without recourse. 

ARTICLE 18 • COMPLETE AGREEMENT 

18. l Both parties specifically waive their right to require the other party to reopen this 
Agreement during its term, except as modified by specific re-opener language or 
by specific contractual provision. 

ARTICLE 19- MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

19 .1 The Union recognizes the prerogatives of the City to operate and manage its 
affairs in all respects in aecordance with its responsibilities and powers of 
authority. 

19.2 The City has the right to schedule work as required in a manner most 
advantageous to the department, consistent with requirements of municipal 
employment public safety and consistent with the Bargaining Agreement. 

19.3 It is understood by the parties that every incidental duty connected with 
operations enumerated in job descriptions in not always specifically described. 

17 

49



19.4 Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the City reserves the right: 

a) To recruit, assign, transfer or promote members to positions within the 
department; 

b) To detennine methods, means and additional personnel necessary for 
departmental operations for employees; 

c) To control the departmental budget; and 
d) To take whatever actions are necessary in emergencies in order to assure 

the proper functioning of the Department. 

19.5 The exercise of Management's Rights shall be an exclusive authority matter, and 
as such, shall not be subject to grievance and/or arbitration. 

19.6 In matters not covered by specific language of this Agreement, the City retains 
the exclusive right to take action(s) and such action(s) shall not be subject to the 
grievance procedure contained herein 

ARTICLE 20 - SUBORDINATION OF AGREEMENT 

20. 1 It is understood that the parties hereto and the employees of the City are governed 
by the provisions of applicable federal and state law. When any provision thereof 
are in conflict with or are different from the provision for this Agreement, the 
provisions of said federal Jaw or state Jaw are paramount and shall prevail 

ARTICLE 21 - TERM OF AGREEl\1ENT 

2L1 All Articles and Sections of this Agreement shall be in effect for a period from 
January 1, 2014 and shall continue in full force and effect until December 31, 
2016. 

Either party desiring to negotiate any changes, additions or modifications in this 
agreement to become effective Jannary l, 2017, or any annual extension thereof, 
shall notify the other party in writing to that effect at least sixty (60) days 
immediately preceding the expiration date. In the event such notice to negotiate 
changes, additions or modifications is given, the terms of this agreement shall 
remain in effect during the course of negotiations, The term of this contract shall 
not extend beyond that permitted by applicable State and Federal laws, and that 
each and all of the terms and provisions of this contract are subject to State and 
Federal Law. 

City of Prosser Teamsters Union Local #839 

______ Date ~// Date Ir l 

18 

50



APPENDIX "A" PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES 

Clas;;ifications - Wage Rates - Other Provisions: 

Effective January 1, 2014, there will be one rate established for each class with automatic 
progression from one class to the next as follows: 

Utility Worker 1 - 0 to 24 months 
Utility Worker 2 - 25 to 36 months 
Utility Worker 3 - 37 to 60 months 
Utility Worker 4 61 months+ 
Public Works Field Leader 
Public Works Supervisor, Water Division 
Public Works Supervisor, Parks & Streets Division 

In addition to time in service, new employees will have required licenses and certifications that 
must be obtained and maintained in order to progress to the next class and as a condition of 
continued employment. A committee will be formed to set up the criteria for required licenses 
and certifications at each level. CmTent employees will progress through the classes as indicated 
on the attached list and shall be subject to the requirements in effect on January 1, 2004. 
Although continued employment and advancement shall not be contingent on the new licensing 
and certification requirements, current employees will make a good faith effort to obtain required 
licenses and certifications as soon as possible. 

Effective 1/1/2014 (The salaries below reflect a 2% COLA beginning 1/1/2014) 

Utility Worker I 
Utility Worker 2 
Utility Worker 3 
Utility Worker 4 
Public W arks Field Leader 
Public W arks Supervisor, Water Dept. 
Public Works Supervisor, Parks/Streets 

Effective 1/1/2015: 

$20.00 
$22.03 
$23.74 
$26.19 
$27.30 
S29.73 
$29.73 

COLA - 100% US All Cities CPI-W June-June 2% floor, 4r70 ceiling 

Effective l/l/2Ql 6: 

COLA - 100% US All Cities CPI-W June-June 2% floor, 4% ceiling 

The City agrees to pay for the cost of CDL required physicals. 

19 

51



Education Incentive 

Bargaining unit members shall receive twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per month for an "AA" 
degree and fifty dollars ($50.00) per month for a "BA" degree, for degrees related to their 
employment as determined by the City. The school used to obtain tbe degree shall be recognized 
and accepted by the City of Prosser. 

Uniforms 

The City shall provide a once a year uniform allowance of four hundred and fifty dollars 
($450.00) (taxable) for 2014. Effective as of 1-1-2015, the City will increase the uniform 
allowance to five hundred and fifty dollars ($550.00) (taxable). The uniform allowance is to be 
provided in the month of January for the purchase of approved items as specified below: 

Shirts -
Pants· 
Coat
Boots 

Uniform short or long sleeve with name and Prosser ID 
Uniform trousers or uniform bih overalls with name 
Heavy and/or lightweight with name and City ID 

Coveralls or lab coat as appropriate 

20 

52



STANDBY 

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING 
BY AND BETWEEN 

CITY OF PROSSER (PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT) 
AND 

TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 839 

The City, at its sole discretion, may require an employee to be on standby duty. Standby 
duty time shall be from 4:30 pm to 6:00 am on non-holiday week days from Monday 4:30 
pm to Friday 6:00 am. Weekend standby shall be from 4:30 pm on Friday until 6:00 am on 
Monday. Holiday standby shall be from 4:30 pm on the eve preceding the holiday, until 
6:00 am on the day following the holiday. Friday and Monday holidays shall be considered 
part of Weekend Standby and shall begin at 4:30 pm on the eve preceding the holiday and 
end at 6:00 am on the day following the weekend holiday, whichever is later. 

Said employees shall be compensated as follows: 

l.) A For 2014, each employee required to be on standby on Monday through Friday, provided the 
same are not holidays, shall be compensated at the rate of fifteen dollars ($15.00) per day for each 
day of required standby. Beginning January F', 2015, each employee required to be on standby on 
Monday through Friday, provided the same are not holidays, shall be compensated at the rate of 
twenty-two dollars and fifty cents ($22.50) per day for each day of required standby. Beginning 
January l ", 2016, each employee required to be on standby on Monday through Friday, provided the 
same are not holidays, shall be compensated at the rate of thirty dollars ($30.00) per day for each day 
of required standby. 

B. For 2014, each employee required to be on standby on a holiday or weekend shall be 
compensated at the rate of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per holiday or day of the weekend. Beginning 
January l", 2015, each employee required to be on standby on a holiday or weekend shall be 
compensated at the rate of thi11y-seven dollars and fifty cents ($37.50) per holiday or day of the 
weekend. Beginning January l", 2016, each employee required to be on standby on a holiday or 
weekend shall be compensated at the rate of fifty dollars ($50.00) per holiday or day of the weekend. 

2.) Employees called out to work while on standby shall be paid their appropriate rate of pay for 
hours worked in compliance with Article 5 .3 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA); 

3.) To be eligible for standby duty for a particular anticipated call out, employees must be available 
by telephone and must possess the necessary skills, knowledge, and certificates to properly perform 
the anticipated work: 

4.) After eligibility for a particular anticipated call out is met, standby duty will be on a rotating 
basis among employees qualified, as set forth in number 3 above; 

5.) Employees on standby will be provided with a City vehicle while on standby: 

53



6.) This Letter of Understanding (LofU) in no way changes or modifies the current CBA between 
the City of Prosser and Teamsters Local Union No. 839. This LofU is intended to define 
compensation for standby time and a means to distribute standby opportunity as fairly and equitably 
as is prncticable. 

City of Prosser Teaphsters Local Union No. 839 

(Date) .34/i (Date) 
I I 

54



LETTER OF AGREEMENT 

between 

CITY OF PROSSER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

and 

TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 839 

From January 1st, 2013 through December 31st, 2016, the parties agree to continue to 
allow employees to work on a 4-10's schedule. Some employees on the 4-10's 
schedule will work Monday through Thursday and some employees will work Tuesday 
through Friday. All employees on the 4-10's schedule will work from 6:00 a.m. to 4:30 
p.m. with Yz hour lunch period. Employees may choose to remain on a 5-8's schedule. 
Those employees who remain on the 5-8's schedule will be scheduled to work Monday 
through Friday, 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. with 1 hour lunch. 

Holidays will continue to be paid at 8 hours. During holiday weeks, employees on a 4-
1 O's schedule may choose one of the following options: 

1. Work four 8-hour days in addition to the holiday for a total of 40 hours. 

2. Work three 10-hour days in addition to the holiday for a total of 38 hours. 

3. Work three 10-hour days in addition to the holiday and use 2 hours vacation for a 
total of 40 hours. 

In compliance with Article 19, Management Rights, the City has the right to temporarily 
suspend the 4-10 shifts in the event of an emergency situation (emergency work 
project, natural disaster, civil unrest, etc.) including a staffing shortage. The 4-10 shifts 
will be reinstated upon the conclusion of issue requiring~u;igension. 

Paul Warden, Mayor 

Date 

55



WASHINGTON TEAMSTERS WELFARE TRUST 
SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT 

COLLEC11VE BARGAINING AGREEMENT PROVIDING FOR PART!Cll'A110N IN TRUST 

The Employer and Labor ()rganization below are parties to a Collective Bargaining ,L\.greement providing for participation in the 
above Trust. /\n enforceable Collective Bargaining Agreen1ent 1nust exist as a condition precedent to participation in the 'I'rust. 

city of prosscr- public \Vorks employees 
Employer Name 

60 J 7th street 
Address 

teamsters local union no. 839 
Labor Organization (Union) Na1ne 

l 103 \V sylvester street 
·~~~~~~~~~ 

Address 

p_rosscr WA 99350 £aSCO WA 99301 
City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

The parties' Co Hee ti ve Bargaining Agreement is in effect from: l/l/2014 to: 121311!6 --·---· 

0 ;New Account ~Renewal-Account No. 106519 Approximate No. of Covered E1nployees 8 

INFORMATION CONCERNING TYPE OF EMPLOYER'S BUSINESS 

Etnployer is: [2J Public Entity D Corporation - State of D Partnership D Sole Proprietorship D LLC 

If Partnership or Sole Proprietorship, provide. na1nc/s of the owner or partners: 

BENEFIT PLAN!S) DES!GNATED IN COLLECTIVE BARGAINING .4GREEMENI' 

The Collective Bargalning Agreement provides that contributions will be made to the Trusl on behalf of all en1ployees for 
whom the Employer is required to contribute under the Trust Operating Guidelines for the purpose of providing such 
employees and their dependents ·with the following benefit plan(s): ('Ifie undersigned parties acknowledge the receipt of a 
copy of the Trust ()perating Guidelines whieh by this reference are made a part hereof.) 

COVERAGE IN BARGAINING AGREEMENT (For renewals, list all coverages, not just changes) i Monthly Rate 

Medical Plan l8J A . 0 B DC D WT-l(lO ' $ 1-208.55 

Life/AD&D DA -$30,000 0 B. $15.000 D c -$5,000 _,__ ' $ 

Time Loss D A - $400/week 0 B -$300/weck D C - $200/week D D - $100/week I $ --·----
LID 0 Long Term Disability Income Plan j $ 
Disability Waivers_QMditional 9 months Disability Waiver of Contributions -Medical only $ 
Domestic Partners ~ Dornestic. Partners-Medical l $ 14.00 

I Dental Plan [81__6._ ___ ····· D B ·-- ·- - - D C -- - --: $ 130.50 

' Domestic Partners [8J Don1estic Partners - Dental $ 2.20 \ 

/Vk;;;;;pj;,n 0 EXT · $ 
I Domestic Partners ~[J Do~estic Partners - Vision ---+i _$ _____ __, 

Will there be any coverage changes before the Collective Bargaining Agreemenfs expiration? 0 Yes l2J No. If yes, attach 
a Subscription Agreement for each change. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - A Subscription Agreement must be submitted in advance of the effective date below. 

Contributions above are effective (1nonth, year) January, 20 14 based on eniployn1ent in the prior nu;nth. 
bnpartant: Coverage is effective in the monthfvllvwing the tnonth in which the contributions are due based on the Trust's eligibility 
lag month. For example1 contributions efjectlve April based on March entpWyrnent will provide coverage in May. 

EXPIRATION OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

Upon expiration of the above~referenced Collective Bargaining Agreen1ent. the En1ployer agrees to continue to contribute to 
the Trust in the same amount and 1nanner as required in the Collective Bargaining Agreement until such tilne as the Employer 
and the Labor ()rganization either enter into a successor t-:ollective Bargaining Agreement, which conf-Onns to the Trust 
()perating Guidelines, or one parry notifies the other in writing (with a copy to the Trust) of its intent to cance.\ such 
obligation five (5) days after receiving notice, whichever occurs first. ~fhc 'fn1st reserves the right to immediately tennlnate 
participation in the Trust upon the failure to execute this or any future Subscription ~mci,1t or to comply \Vith the Trust 
()perating Guidelines as amended by the Trustees from ti1ne to tin1c. 

For Employer 

Title/Assn Date 

For lJnion 

Title SecretMy:-Treasurer Date 3/6/14 

56



ELIGIBILITY TO PARTICIPATE IN TRUST 
Eligibility for benefits is determlned in accordance with the requirements established in the Collective Bargaining Agreemenl 
provided such requirement<; are consistent with the Trust guidelines. To establish eligibility for benefits, Trust guidelines require 
that eligible employees must have the required number of hours in a month and have the contractually reguired contributions 
paid on their behalf. Eliglbility will co1nmence according to the Trust's lag month eligibility rule. Ellgibility continues as long 
as the e1nployee ren1ains eligible, has the contracrually required nu1nber of hours per n1onth) and has the required contributions 
n1ade. The rfrust, however, will not recognize any contractual provision that conditions continued eligibility on having less than 
40 or more than 80 hours in a 1nonth. Eligibility will end according to the Trust's policy for employees who do not have the 
required number of hours and contributions in a month and who do not qualify for an applicable extension of eligibility, if any. 

En1ployecs of a participating employer not perforn1ing work covered by the Collective Bargaining Agreement may participate in 
the Trust only pursuant to a written special agreement approved in 'writing by the l'rustccs. The 1'rustees reserve the right to 
recover any and all benefits provided to ineligible individuals from either the ineligible individual receiving the benefits or the 
employer responsible for misreporting them (if applicable), 

REPORTING OBLIGATION AND CONSEQUENCES OF DELINQUENCY 
Employer contributions are due no later than ten ( 10) days after the last day of each month for which contributions are due. The 
Employer acknowledges that in the event of any delinquency, the Trust Agreement provides for the payment of liquidated 
damages, interest, attorney fees, and costs incurred in collecting the delinquent amounts. 

TRUSTEES' AUTHORITY TO DETERMINE TERMS OF PLANS 
The parties recognize that the detail of the benefit plans provided hy the 'frust and the rules under which employees and their 
dependents shall be eligible for such benefits is determined solely by the Board of Trustees of the Trust in accordance with the 
tern1s of the governing Agree1nent and Declaration of Trust (Trust Agrecn1cnt). The Trustees retain the sole discretion and 
authority to interpret the terms of the Trust's benefit plans, the plans' eligibility requirements, and other matters relate.d t.o the 
administration and operation of the Trust and its benefits plans. The Trustees may modify benefits or eligibility of any plan for 
the purpose of cost cont.ain1nent, cost 1nanagement, or changes in medical technology and treatment. 

MECHANISM FOR HANDLING CONTRIBUTION INCREASES 
'fhe 1'rustees' authority shall include the right to adjust the contribution rates to support the benefit plans offered by the Trust and 
to 1naintain adequate reserves to cover any extended eligibility and the Trust's contingent liability. 

The parties recognize that it is the intent of the Trust not to provide employee benefit plans for less than the full cost of any such 
plan. If the Collective Bargaining Agreement does not provide a mechanism for fully funding the designated benefit plans, the 
Board of Trustees may substitute a plan then available that is fully supported by the employer's contribution obligations. The 
disposition of any excess e1nployer contributions will be subject to the collective bargaining process. 

ACCEPTANCE OF TRUST AGREEMENT 
The Employer and the Labor Organization accept and agree to be bound by the tenns of the. Trust Agreement governing the 
Trust, and any subsequent amendments to the Trust Agreement The, parties accept as their representatives for purposes of 
participating in the Trusr the Trustees serving on the Board of 'frustces and their duly appointed successors. 

Provided, however, that in the event that either Section 2 or 3 of Article VIII of the 1'rust Agreemenl is ainended to change or 
modify an Ernploycr's liability as specified therein, such amendment will not be deen1ed applicable to an Employer until such 
tlmc as the Employer enters into a successor Collective Bargaining Agree1nent after the expiration of the Employer's then 
current Collective Bargaining Agreement. 

APPROVAL OF TRUSTEES 

This Agreement has been approved by the Board of Trustees of the Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust. 

Date 
Administrative Agent 
Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust 

SA 28 (REV 01/07) 

57



WASIDNGTON TEAMSTERS WELFARE TRUST 

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT GUIDELINES 

To participate in the Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust, the bargaining parties must co1nplele a Subscription Agreement and file it 
with the Trust Administrative Office. Additionally, the bargainlng parties are advised of the following general participation and 
benefit information. See Trust ()perating Guidelines for more detailed information. 

1. The Subscription Agree1nent language may not be modified or altered, 

2. A Subscription Agreement must be submitted to the Trust .A..dministratJve Office for each new or renewed collective bargaining 
agreement, which provides for participation under the Trust. 

3. For nev> accounts, an enforceable coUecrive bargaining agreement, with contribution requirements and eligibility thresholds for 
benefits consistent with Trust guidelines, must be subrnitted prior to the activation of the account. 

4. Contributions for changes in plan benefits or new accounts are effective the first of the month following the date the Trust 
Office receives the- documents in #2 and #3. Trust policv does not allow retroactive changes in contributions or benefits, 

5. A nevv Sul?_scription 1t\.2Tee1nen~ is reguired for each change in be11efits. If a collective bargaining a,b:rreement provides for benefit 
changes subsequent to those listed on the Subscription Agreement submitted to the 1~rust {)fficc for the new or renewed 
agree1nent and the changes take effect prior to the termination of the collective bargaining agree1ncnt, the bargaining parties are 
responsible for formally notifying the Trust Ad1ninistrative Office of the changes; this 111ay be done by completing and submitting 
another Subscription A .. greement, either \Vith the initial agreement or anytime prior to the clJective date of the contribution rate 
changes for the new benefits. Subinission of a collective bargaining agreement by itself docs not constitute fonnal notification of 
changes. 

(Please Co1 lete- the Entire Subsai ti.on Agreetnent aud Teal" 0 fj These Guiilelints Before Mailing to the Trust Ad1ni11i~1rati.ve OJ]ice) 

58



THE WESTE&"J\J CONFERENCE OF TEAMSTERS PENSION TRUST FUND 
EMPLOYER- UNION PENSION CERTIFICATJON 

THE UNDERSIGNED EMPLOYER AND UNION HEREBY CERTIFY THAT A \VRITTEN LABOR AGREEMENT JS JN EFFECT BETWEEN THE P.A.RTIES 
PROVIDING FOR CONTRIBUTlON.S TO THE \VESTERN COJ\'FERENCE OF TEAMSTERS PENSlON TRUST FlJND ("TRUST FUND") AND THAT SUCH 
AGREEMENT CONFORMS TO THE TRUSTEE POU CY ON ACCEPTANCE OF EMPLOYER CONTR!BUTJONS (AS REPRODUCED ON n!E REVERSE OF THIS 
FOHM) AND IS NOT OTHERWISE DETRIMEN1AL TO THE PLAN. A C01v!PLETE COPY OF Tl!E LABOR AGREEJ\.1ENT JS ATTACHED OR. JFNOT YET AVAILABLE. 
~VJLL BE FURNISHED TO TfiE AREA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE AS SQQ},! AS AVAILABLE TFIE UNDERSIGNED AGREE THAT THE PROVISIONS OF ANY 
MEMORANDUM OF LTNDERS1ANDING, SUPPLEMENT. AMENDMENT; ADDENDUM OR OTHER MOD!FfCATION OF 111E LABORA(JREEMENT DIRECTLY 
OR INDIRECTLY AFFECTING THE EMPLOYER'S OBLIGATION TO CONTRIBUTE TO THE TRUST FUND SHALL NOT BIND THE TRUSTEES UNLESS AND 
UNTIL A CO.MPLETE WRITTEN AND SIGNED COPY OF THOSE PROVISIONS IS FURNISHED TO THE AREAADJVlINISTRATJVE OFFICE AND ACCEPTED BY 
THE TRUSTEES, AND FURTHER AGREE TO FURNISH THOSE PROVJSJONS TO THE AREA ADMINJSTRATJVE OFFlCE JN A TIMELY MANNER lF A NEW 
PENSION ACCOUNT, THE EMPLOYER AGREES TO PROVJDE THE AREA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE WlTH COMPLETED PAST EMPLOYMENT DATA 
FORM.S. THE NEGOTIATING PARTIES CERTIF'Y THAT THIS DOCUMENT HAS NOT BEEN MOD.lFfED IN ANY MAN'NER. 

NAME OF EMPLOYER~0. o.C Pr.a~ J2 NAME OF ASSOCIATlON ?~x::i(£:c.._~=S 
IF AN ASSOC!AT!ON W!TH Alf'fi=iERJTY TO SIGN ONb'Ef'.iALf()f EMPLOYERS, ATIACH LIST OF NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF EACH SUCH EMPLOYER 

STREETADDRESs_G6l 7.fu o+- CITY,STAT~,ZJPCODE:J?ro55g!2 ,c,,,J4 593s:-Q 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS LABOR AGREEMENT -· ·1/1 I ;:101£...\ ' 
!F THIS CEJIT!FlCAT!ON JS SIGNED BY AN ASSOCIATION,' THE .ASSOCIATION WARRANTS AND REPRESENTS THAT rr HAS·WJUTTEN AUTHO!UZATJOJ;( FROJ,,f E.d£ll l!STED EMPLOYER 
TO SJG'N THIS Cl:'.fl:T!FICATJON 4J'!J2 TO'SJG!l/·.TflB.LAB0RAGRF£MENT ON BEHALF OF SUCH EMPLOYER (IF THE LAHOR r1GREEMENT]SNOT SIGNED BY THE EMPLOYER) 

INDICATE: NEW PENSION ACCOUNT BUTEMPLOYER 

RENEWAL 0 NEWPENS!ON ACCOUNT J8;j PREVIOUSLYMADEPENSION CONTRlBUTIONS 0 
EMPLOYER OWNERSHIP CHANGE L! DATE OF CHANGE SEioLER ____ " 

EMPLOYER IS PART OF A CONTROLLED GROUP OF CORPORATJONS FORFEDERAL TAX PURPOSES 0 
NAME OF PARENT COMPANY -------

STREET ADDRESS CITY, STATE, ZIP ___ _ 

FOR LABOR AGREEMENT RENEWALS: 
INDICATE PENSION ACCOUNT NUMBER(S) -----------------~ ____ " 

EMPLOYER IS A.: CORPORATJON 0 PARTNERSHIP 0. UNINCORPORATED SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP 0 
PUBLIC ENTITY ~ LJMITED LIABILITYCOMPANY {] (INDICATE - PARTNERSHIP 0 CORPORATION 0) 
(PARTNERS OR UNINCORPORATED OWNERS ARE f!!EL!GJELE.TO PARTJCJPA'TEPERSONALLYJNTHL~ TAX-EXEMPT TRUST) 

APPROXIMATEl\fUMBER OF GOVERED EMPLUYEES~j 
THE tJNDERSfGNED UNION,t.\ND El\~PLOYERAGREE TO.BE BOUNP BY'. rnE WESTERN CONFERENCE:OF .r'.tAMSTERS AGREEMENT AND DECLARATION 
OF TRUST AND PENSION PLANAS NOW CONSTITUTED ORAS HEREAFTERAMENDED,-AND TO BE BOL"'"N'D·BY-THE ACTS OF THEIR RESPECTIVE UNION 
AND EMPLOYER TRUSTEES OR.THEJR SUCCESSORS" THE EMPLOYERAGREES TGPAYT.HE TRUSTFUNDTHffPENSJON .CONTRlBlJTIONS SPEClFJED IN 
THE LABOR AGREEMENT W!TH THE UNJOK THE ONDERSJGNED UNION AND EMPLOYER SHALL BECOME PARTIES TO SAITl AGREEMENT AND 
DECLARATION OF TRUST UPON ·ACCEPTANCE AS SUCH BY THE TRUSTEES. UPON THE EXPIRATION :.OF':T:HLS 'OR ANY SUBSEQUENT LABOR 
AGREEMENT, THE E!V1PLOYER AGREES"TO,CONTINUE TO CONTR1BUTE TO THE TI\UST FUND IN THES.AJ\1E AiY10'UNT AND MANNER AS REQUJRED IN 
THE MOST RECENT EXPIRED LABOR AGREEMENT-:UNTIL SUCH. A TGv1E AS THE VN.DERS!GNED··.EITHEJ(· .. NOTlFJES THE OTHER PARTY IN \VRJTJNG 
(WITH A COPY TO THE TRUST FUND) OF 1TS lNTENT:TO-CANCEL,.SUCH .OBLJGATJON 'FIVE DAY:S AFTER RECEIPT Of .NOTICE OR. ENTERS fNTO A 
SUCCESSOR LABOR AGREEl\ifENT \VH!CH CO-NFORMS TO -THE 'TRlJSTEE--POLICY; ·WlHCHEVER EVENT OCCURS FIRST. SlMilARLY, THE TRUSTEES 
RESERVE THE RIGHT TO GIVE NOTICE TO THE EJ\1PLOYER AND UNlON OF INTENT TO TERJ\lUNAT'E ACCEPTANCE or: FURTI-JER CONTR1BUTJONS 
FROM THE EMPLOYER. THE UNDERSlGNED AGREES THAT UPON RENEWAL OF THE LABOR AGREEMENT A COMPLETE COPY OF THE RENEWED 
LABOR AGREEMENT, INCLUDING MODIFlCATlONS TO THE AGlZEEM_ENT, WILL BE FURNISH'ED TO THE AREA ADiVHNlSTRATIVE OFFICE AS SOON 
AS AVAILABLE; AND, UPON V/R!Tl"BN ACCEPTANCE OF THE RENEWED LABOR AGRE.ETvlENT BY THE TRUSTEES, THE FOREGOING TERMS OF THE 
E!\1PLOYER-UNJON PENSION CERTIFICATION SHALL BE APPLJCABLE TO SUCH RENEWAL OF THE LABOR AGREEMENT. THI:: UNDERSIGNED UNION 
AND EMPLOYERACKNO\.VLEDGE RECElPT OF THE TRUSTEE POL!CY ON ACCEPTANCE OF EMPLOYER CONfRIBUTIONS EFF£CTJVEAPRIL 1, 1970AND 
OF THE TRUSTEE POLICY ON ACCEPTANCE OF EXTENDED, RENEWED, i'vlODIFlED OR REPLACED PENSION AGREEMENTS WHERE THE EJ\11'LOYER IS 
ON REFERRAL TO DELINQUENCY COLLECTION AT1URNEYS" 

+e.- \ L1,!:'~IV.o-13_~ EMPLOYER"---------------
BY . \ DATE~- ~-(2_ 

JRE) 

.B-~{ 
---(SlGNATlJRE)--------" 

DATE ____ _ 

_'.f..o\:x.c.1,,. c. . H=~s 
(PRINT NAME OF JNDJVfDlJAL SIGNING) (PR!NT NAME OF INDIVIDUAL SIGNING) 

TJTLES~ :\r:~HONE No[c:zti) ~3 TITLE----- PHONE NO" 
ACCEPTED UY THE TRUSTEES OF THE WESTERN CONFERENCE Of TEANISTERS PENSION TRUST FUND. 

BY DATE 

'ilrm 1.14Tf' RevtSll(i 4111 {See back side tar instructions) /lJ~'[¢ 

r>'<'f~;h,, ... ,~~. (\-oN•--' '"'"''~-' ''-••-+ "'··-"·-~-' -"-59



rev!s0d for ainenctments, ext.Sri-.£i.1i:H1s·.and ne\'\f P~~ns·ion,)~gree1Tierd:s 6:'. 

Tru~:;tees of tho \i\lt:1stern Conference Qf 1-e.sn,slers Pension ThJ;;,t ;::und to f.Ccept as Ci::JntrifJutlon~l 
ri:;;111r1 ~:.rn,~ rnaUB in 01ccorGanr::e v,;ith a Pension tliat is not detrirnentai to the Pia.TL of 

\s detr\rr1enta\ i:o the Plan shal! bE rrtr~de t~1e Trustees ir! iheir sol& cfrScretion-_ 
thE; !isi. oi orovisicns thaYfoiiovvs is furnished a.s an Hlustration of th·::ise inc;iusi.on in a Pension Aors1emeht 

r;-iay result ;n a d1:;te.r;r1inat1on bv th& Trustees that the Pension Ao;rSie1nent ,is cietr'frnenta: to tho Pian. Lt ~:;houlcl be noted. 
r:iov-1e.ve;. t.hst thf, 1:1'::~\ '.z; rv::A \p,te,nd-•.:::<.i as an \nr.).ur:,'1vs ni' r:1\I such _of rxovl::,\ons. 

2, 

2.L 

Provisions ~f,at iin1it tr10 e-rnpioyees. on account .c;ontdtutions ~0.fe to t;e n1a.d.e tc1 B sppc1c _age. 

ret\rernent vvithir; H 

er;1pioyees -c:in vvhose ac-colff1·\ contributions a.re to be made to those vvho vv'i\i· b.e 0\ig.ib\6' fo_r 
i::.H:ir;ocL 

RrY:nioV~C·PO:: on vVhOSE co-nrributions·· are to b~·:i rnads 

:naj< '!or a period not to 
ton ('10) ,:::f;nts µer hour, 

-exceed caiendar dO./'S-, be covered 
Casuals, e:<tra::;,, jobbers 

.under a 
halJ 

err:D\oyee~·i &P:; net suLJ\E:c1 to the tnrecroi.no exception 

.t. F'r-:h is.ions that lirnh: the er:1p\cYyE:,es on 1Nhose 2ccourTt con~rlbutio11s arr;;: to be rns.de to those vvno 11ave vvorl<ed 

S. 

rr10E? than c·1 snec:1e-c n-1!nirnurr1 nun1bf.F of hourb 1n 2 part1e:u!ar 

Pro"1isionc that p.::1rTni~ co:ltributions on 8 basis that vvi!! oroduc:e f( Gontribution .less th.an on an stre1gh1. tirne h0Lw2. 
1Nork.od 
lnciuded 

the ernp!ovee, provided that for of tfd'S ruie paid vacai:ion and paid holiday hours shs~ll' be 
stra:g-~1t ~ion<::~ hours vv.orked. 

6. Prov\sior..s ;,\i'n!ch pern1it or pf~nston contributions tor persorY.:'\ vvh-0 c::re not r:ienibt';~G ot the 1Jnit 

Pr('1Vis1ons vvrde-!! reduce contribution:; to~·- each cornpensab!f; hOUT to less tt1an that lf<filch appl1ed·prio1· to nnv·fi<:il"e 
except fiH r;rovidod 1n Nurnber 3 e.tKYJe, 

H Pra..,1is\0-ns. th2t prov'i<J;;; dif!~~ren1 contr'1butlon 1·ates. v,ihh\n 1he sarn0 
cs-clsned in !\!u1r1ber ;.:; above. (f)!ffr.::vPnT t:onttibution re:tes for 

ciclB-.<:>iD&tions are DE:ifln\ssibie E.-1.f::> cfr.~to1·rnined the Trust::;e~:, in their sol~~ ciLscretlor;. 
diTJBi', \.Ni:l.if:':i .. \(;USE\ 

c~assicc1't:ions undBr this 
rn2chanic. Hales.. production vlfou!d be considered sutJstant1a!iy 
;rovlsion 

\n tht:, the Trustees. Vv"iti": :eoard to t!xe; .interoreta.tion o·t thnss Guideiines, vvill stterT1pt 
tc, the DL'ir13 needs nf to Pen~:;ion as as the Pension ,.11,green11::1nts are 
not deti"iT103nte! tc tho::; Pian_ in'.; Tn.!stees. reteininq soie discretion over these issues. invite th0 oartiias to F\:;:;nsJnr: 
trcircrerrnrn's to pn;ssi1t ;::>roDos.:olls 10 the Tr-ustees in .c:idvanc&·Df thei~ so thrrt tho Trustees IT\H':f ad11lse th13 
on thf; of ,:.;uc.h proµosais, 

it z;i. ·C;overt:.;d lV'.:\f.; bee!·1 o:, r£fe1Ta! \c the Ttus1 FdnCfE} att\iiTP0yr; fol' a period o.f thr-ee JT1onths or more ·for C:{)i]ectlcn 
of' cl~d'1nquHn1 pc::nston corrtr\but'iuns clue~ unde: 8. Pennicn ,l\gn::srnc~n!, thtH'J th~-; d.e-::::k;iorr o·f 111hether to L'lccept r.:.s s Pe-nsicH"~ 

anv exten~l!OilS:, ri::ineve':'J rnodication Oi" reoiacemerr:. oi that Pension si·1a!I be r·nade by the ·cha.irman 
tF\d Co-Ch.einT1<::in:'Secretary, actinq rather than by an /.Vea Adrriinisi'rative of '{he Trust !=unci. 

Thi;::; shad , .. 1;;:1: h::i dll e.xk:,;ns1orL rnne'NRL rnodicatior or reoLsct-,rnsnt a Pension /.;,qre&;r1ent 1JVhG·r8 the i;o!e 
1·ea,_::,on 'J:;;-J ·1oueqcv cllsc:cve-;"ed an BAGrn1nation ot rns books anci re -;an:1:2. F10n:c,,:r~,, 13 ct, reierTa·: is a. 

tns Trustf.;es Dr C>f th~s ,:::>ovS<rP.'.i F:rni::-1v or tror:. ,;: Tru;:r: bElin\:; tor contrib;Jt1c:irr ::1rnc.Jur:ts 
Co f'::i'ec; to tic:; Trust. F:un0 en transrniiial report-forrns, 

T!' lS !~." sup;J!en1enta! i:::L 3nd nol. ir~ den::igs.t1on o!. the <::>~:stir:a of the 1~;na1rrnan and C~o-.C~hairrr-:arffSecretarv 
1:c dete:rn:ne \\'n1:rthe; a ccii~ectivs f>;_:vqainin9 21greernent 01 otner 'Hrittsn qu;J.1ie-s as 2 Pension PJ"nr-•Rrnr.;nt 
'vV'.'1r-" tte" E1-ri1.::10·/~·)i" ::::<>n~:ributior:s u 1·;.tet suet; agn-;~;·rnsnt ati::~ 3::.;c~Jc:AHc~ ~}nch.;:- the. ru1t:s anc1 re.q,Jl8.tions of :the 

L.!::\bor . ..::..n'·(::·:~,r-r1enf. ;;<evi~YIV\-'.:;(j tJy Date_ 

60



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve payment of claim Meeting Date: 
Check no. 10371 and 10372 in the amount March 25, 2014 
of $214.05 for the period ending March 25, Regular Meeting 
2014. 

Det;!artment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Finance Regina Mauras Toni Yost (509) 786-2332 

Cost of Prof;!osal: Account Number: 
$214.05 See Attached 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
. See 2014 budget for each item listed. See Attached 

Reviewed by Finance De~artment: 

~~Lv~ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: • 

1. Check Register# 10371 and 10372 

Summar:y Statement: 
Approve payment of claim check no. 10371 and 10372 in the amount of $214.05 for the 
period ending March 25, 2014. 

Consistent with or Comf;!arison to: 
City's policy to pay bills in a timely manner. 

Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 
Approve payment of claim Approve payment of claim check no. 10371 and 10372 in the 
amount of $214.05 forthe period ending March 25, 2014. 

• 

Reviewed by Def;!artment Reviewed by Citv Attorney: Af;!f;!roved by Mayor: 
Director: 

~~ r<\0- )Jlw>.Dir 
¥/ ·· .. ·· NIA t'cc~f !~~ 

L . 
I Date: ~·'.l.Q>· l.0.4 · Date: Date: ":J--2'( -/ LJ-

Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

March 20, 2014 

61



CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 13:34:23 Date: 03/25/2014 City Of Prosser 

MCAG#: 0205 03/01/2014 To: 03/31/2014 Page: I 

Trans Date Type Acct# Chk # Claimant 

638 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10371 James Castagne 

117 - 517 91 20 001 - Personnel Benefits 

639 03/25/2014 Claims 1 10372 Gerald Sherman 

117 - 517 91 20001 - Personnel Benefits 

517 Employee Benefit Programs 

117 Employee Benefits Security 

~# 
Signature 

Amount Memo 

174.05 LEOFF 1 Rcimbursen1cnt 

174.05 LEOFF 1 Reimbursement 

40.00 LEOFF 1 Reimbursement 

40.00 LEOFF 1 Reimbursement 

214.05 

214.05 

-----Claims: 
214.05 

(.j/ 2.011---1 

Date 

214.05 

62



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
' 

Agenda Title: Consideration of an Meeting Date: 
Acceptance of gift of Right-of-Way by March 25, 2014 
Catholic Charities Housing Services along Regular Meeting 
the Southern Boundary of the Parcel 
Commonly Addressed as 480 North River 
Road for the Construction of a New Street. 

. .. 

De12artment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Planning Paul Warden Steve Zetz (509) 786-8212 

Cost of Progosal: Account Number: 
NA 

I 

Amount Budgeted: I Name and Fund# 
NA 

I 
1 Reviewed by Finance De12artment: 
I 

1\cw..?~J\. ~ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 
1. Deed 
2. Survey Map 
3. Notice 
4. Title Report 
5. Date Down Endorsement 
6. Email from CCHS and Bob Peterson Housing Finance Commission 
7. Request for Partial Reconveyance 

Summary Statement: 

Catholic Charities Housing Service (CCHS) is proposing to grant the City of Prosser 
Right-Of-Way (ROW) along the southern boundary of 480 North River Road for the 
construction of a new street that will eventually be improved to serve its property. When 
CCHS constructs a project, it will be required to improve the street to city standards and 
extend water, irrigation, and sewer lines to the end of that street. Depending on the 
eventual future development, CCHS may have to gift additional right-of-way to the City. 

CCHS is making the request based on their funding limitations and requirements. 
According to John Probst, from CCHS, and Nathan Poel, from the Office of Rural and 
Farmworker Housing, the project funding can only be released when the project parcel is 
created. CCHS has 12.65 acres but will only be using approximately 5 acres for this 
project. In order to satisfy the funding requirements, the property must be divided into at i 
least two lots. Since the Prosser Municipal Code does not allow a short plat to create a 
land locked parcel, CCHS proposes to dedicate the right-of-way which would then allow 
a proposed short plat and thus satisfy their funding requirements. City staff has asked 

I CCHS to prepare a detailed letter explaining why the dedication is needed and to identify \ 
I other jurisdictions where a similar process has taken place. Staff has also asked them to 

63



provide any additional materials that may help explain the process and show the need 
for such a dedication as opposed to conveying it via a subdivision application. CCHS has 
indicated they will provide this information and be available at the meeting March 25'", 
2014. 

Although, notification is not required, the Planning Department mailed out a notice to I 
surrounding property owners in the interest of keeping the citizens informed and I 
ensuring that the process is open and transparent. ' 

As you can see from the Title Report, CCHS has several loans encumbering the property 
and has delinquent taxes and irrigation assessments against the property. Therefore, 
the acceptance of the gift of the right-of-way must be contingent upon the lenders 
releasing their security interests and delinquencies on the portion being given to the City. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

Consistent with Prosser Municipal Code and State Law. 

I Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

I Accept the gift of Right-of-Way from Catholic Charities Housing Service contingent upon 
the release of all security interests from the portion being gifted to the City and the 
payment of all real estate taxes and irrigation charges owing against the property. 

Reviewed by De11artment Reviewed by City Attorney: A1111roved by Mayor: 
Director: 

;fa/I/~--~JU~,f--, ~· /. 
I'-. 

Date: 7· /_/ --{ t.t Date:~0o/A Date: 7-21-fLf 
Today's Date: Revision Number/nate: File Name and Path: 

I 
I March 20, 2014 

I .. 

64



~.l?..t!'l'.'Co,~p.,\).cCli\~i;:-):\i_~(l_11-s~~ses:,i~"i;~_-C\211:J.~ecl1Y(),tiJ'.'OO.,li! Nrin.-:. 
Gran!.;J(s)~~--···· ...• C.1±u:-\! ....... SS!':.C.,"'-b. N\.\!i,NI'.. ;~.\ . LlZj:,\?Rfl<l.TI;j_O .... --····· 
Abbrovialed legal Desorip!lon1 •. '.tll<;::\IJ:?.<LO\': .... ta 1-5 ).. )._:;.g-z.:L .... f'.r.f'I'. .. . . ....••.•••• 

Assessor's Property Tax Parcel or Account No: _J.":-'_.(,)2.~~"':J .. ~"'-~::·_QQ2J)_~::~ .. ----~----------

paid. 
conveys and warrants to 

-~."t'.~~~'i=oiei·::::::::::·:::::.G::::r~:1~1t~e:::e, all right, title and interest in the foUowing described real estate, situuted in _. 
County, State ofW11shin1ito.n: 

Se.e. B\'v\;b1-t A 
yo.I"\- \'\ere.,~. 

\\ere.~ C\,l/'\d 

DATED • , r.Jf'.:/./.,;;;. ~!~{..... .. .. . . . . . ....... 

STATE WASHINGTON, ~ . 
certify that I know or have evidence thai 

0. 

is/are the individuaJ(s) who hefon:: rne, and ».vho 
acknO'Nledged that this instrument and a-.cknowlcdgcd h his/her/their free and volurHBJY uct 
f{)r 1hc and purposes n1entioned in rhe in:stru1:nen1, 

D.fl:.rED ~. 

Notary Public for 

My aor>orrllmem 

Pl.J!JUS11ER'S NOTE: li 11 C<:li"p1':>1'.Ul<.i grnr1\or, comp!dG nnd 11\tnch Form No. 6!1, Cwpnmlt Acknow!wdgmenL 

hnm ND. P53 Form) ES 

Vl ::ions W3ohiMlonl:;;s;llNClTC•N l.ECIAL www.wlbJDmw.com 
v< BLANK FOBM Mt::J BE i1F.Pf1QDUCED IN ANY BY ANY CLSCTHOMG OR NIECHANIC.l\l.. MLANS. 

65



CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
,~~----~-'~''"~~~··-~~--~-::::"~-:::.=::::::.;,;. 

STATE OF WASHJNG'fON, 

that I know or have evidence that ____ :~=:'£,{§c:!C''.--+-----/"-cC<:c1".1_1~--------

---· ----·· ... -------------- _ --····----------------- _____ --· -· --------· _ ls individual who hefore me, as1d who 

for 

!his _i1ostrurno.ot, on oath stated !hat heh>he was 141thurlzed to 

;;--1-fi- -/_,_.;:;J.C.!}'.:" ' .. L ________________ of 

uses and purposes mentioned in 

DATED 

\\\\Ulll111, 

~""" ""?.!': .1)10 .... ,, 
~ J'::.:,1SSlON ,.:.,'1f.~ 
~o·~, """fA:t"'/" :::: x.:~~ ~-.. ~-:. 

::: :"t.:.OTA""'"'~.--:: • nr .., : 
-:::: ~ PUBLIC :.,,::: 

,!IP fl • .... 
,,r tR"0r~ • ..,.. 
4' ~ "',,':IV1: o'°! .. "'~ ~ .::, ~ .. -. } ' J .. ·,.i::s .;:. 

";,_ OF WASTll,,."',.\"" 
11111; 11111'' 

to be his/her free and voluntary act 

Jnstrurncnt. 

REP-PDDUCED JN AOJY <'ORM on GY ANY ELECTRONIC OH MECFAMCAL MEANS. 

66



Stntutor.Y V!mmnty Deed 

EXHIBIT A 

x 
' 

Government Lot 5, 

line of Lot 5, a 
distance 
thence I 0 01 a ooint on south line Parcel X and 

Government Lot 5, Section 2, 8 Range 24 

west line thereof 
the west of the cou1nty 

cJe1;re11s 19 East said cmmt1yrnad 151.9 to 

EXr:::CEf'T that porltJon oonvev1ed 
2002 rl'lcmdinJY llO, 2002-042146 

AND ALSO EXCEPT 
2003 records 

Government 
of the nmthvvest 

recorded Uc:tolJer 

recorded 

67



:0 
M 

§! 
""' 0 

"" g "' "" -< 

'" c 
::l 
< m 
"" 

I 
I 

•I ?1 
~1 

~::E: 
'~H wr 

-I 
0 z 

~ro 
<C 
~J:l 
~< 

rn 
"< 'H 

z 
"' 
g 
6 • ' 0 
:;; 
~ 

~I 

'I 
ill' 

I 

I~ 
!" 
I 

!1J O'OO'!lO"!': - R.i! 

Ii OO'(l<;l" lG" !': 

[fl(J!WH - Im) 

-, 

l1H1l.77" 

--+ 

68



~~--·~~~~~~~~~~~~~-· 

March 4, 2014 

E 

The of Prosser is to locate a new road for residential as identified in the 

Prosser Comorehensive Plan. The Citv Council is exoected to decide on the dedication of the omoosed 

rieiht-ot-wav at a March at 7:00 p.m. at the Prosser Council Chambers 

located at 601 Street. While this is the believes that It is 

for the public and the surrounding propertv owners to be aware of and to 

in on issues. prc1posed location and attached 

The City is also for the name of the road. If you have a please feel free lo 

contact me" 

Steve Zetz 

Planner 

time thll' 

(509) 786-8212 

Address: 

601 7th Street 

Prosser, WA. 99350 

-~----~·---·---· 

have dev,elopme11t, this ls the 

----~------~·-~---·--

69



70



Statutory W11rnmty Deed 

EXHIBIT A 

south 60 nnrtinn of the hereafter Parcel X, f':~~t.P:r!v of the 

distance of !lb\!,)~ 
thence South I 0 0 I' 44'' 
the of traverse line, 

north 305.3 of Government 5, 

to the nmth line of said Lot 5, a 
traverse 

to .a on the south line Parcel X and 

That Government Lot 5, Section 2, 8 North, 24 East, 
W.M., described as fr.Hrn:o.1c::' 

thence 
thence east 907 .6 feet to 
thence North I 
true of be15irnoing; 
thence west 958.3 feet more or 

west 

COttn!Y road; 
said country road 15 L 9 feet to 

to the west line of said Oovernment 
305.3 feet south 

thence west line to the true 

EXCEPT portion Prosser by deed October 
2002 under recorclinff 

AND ALSO EXCEPT that portion to Benton deed recorded 
March 2003 under recording 110, 2003-014204, of Benton 

I )ff/9-0 t 

71



POLICY OF 

Schedule A 
Issued with Policy No.: LX-08755094/LX-01!755!0 

Loan 
97737 OX-08337119 

Date Amount of Insurance Premiun1 
2011 at3:06 

Address Reference: 480 NORTH RIVER i'Rl)SSER, WA 99350 

L Name oflnsurcd: 

CATHOLIC CHAIDTIES HOUSING SERVICES - DIOCESE OF YAKIMA, a W.shln~lon Noo-Pmll! 

2. The estate or interest in the land whleh is covered by this policy is: 

FEESJMPLE 

3. The estate or interest in the land is vest.ed in: 

CATHOLIC CHARITI.ES HOUSING SERVICES -DIOCESE OF YAKlMA, a W•shinl?lon Non-Profit 

The referred to this is situo!ed in BENTON 

See Exhibit A •tl•ehed hereto ~ml m~<lo • hereof. 

ALTA Owners Pnlicy ~ Stiindard 
(061l7106) 
S~hedu!e A 

Ws:shlogt1on ood is described ss follows: 

BENTON FRANKLIN TITLE COMP ANY 

72



OX"083371l9 Order No,: 97737 
B 

EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE 

This does not insure against loss or damage and the wlll not costsi fees or expenses that arise 
by reason of: 

STANDARD EXCEPTIONS: 

A, Taxes or assessments which are not now payable 01· which are not shown as existing Hens by the records taxing aulh01·ity 
taxes or assessments on rea1 or by the public records; proceedings by a public agency which mey result Jn tuxes or assessmemts1 or 
notices or such proceed\ngs1 or not sbo\'1.11 records of such agency or 

R rights, interests or claims which are not shown by the public records but which cou!d be ascertained by an of the land 
t:nay be oosem:d by persons in possession, o.r cfo.hning to be in possession thereof. 

C. Easements, Hens or encumbrnnce.s, or claims thereo4 whkh are not shown by the public reoo·rds. 

D, encroachment, encumbrance, violation, vati!l.tion, or adverse circurnst!IDCe affecting tl1e 
complete land survey of the Land, and that is not shown by the Public Records. 

thn.t would be disclosed an accurate 

E. Any lien, or right to a lien, for labor, material, 
Workmen1s compensation Acts, not disclosed by 

equip1nents or for contributions: to employee benefit or liens under 

F. a) Unpatentcd b) rr..scrvations or exceptions in patents or ln Acts the issuance thereof; Indian treaty or 
1101 HnO!te<: to, easements or equitable servitudes; or claims ar title to wat.er, whether or not 

&1e matters excepted under a), b ), c) or d) are shown by the pubHc records, 

G. of use, oontroi hy the United States of Amer.lea in the exercise overnav~gation; any or limitation 
on use, occupancy or of the hmd resulting :from the of the or rlparian owners to use any waters ·which may 
cover the land or to nftb.e land which is no'w boon covered by water. 

_H, Any service, installation, connection, maintenance or construction cbarges for scwc.t\ water, or collection or disposal, 
or other utilities unless disclosed as an existing lien by the public J""'ve,ords, 

SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS: 

1. Lis,billty to ~ssessment Irrig~•tlo,rd'alsl:ric:t. 1mne 1mw d11e :u1d ~"'"'"'" 

2. for for necessary or water oond1>illl 1md for tel•e,p!nn1e 
and tr1msmisiilon lh1es required cm:mec.tioi'l with the Valley contained 
in iustnm1ent 1'4!COrd. 

3. fil@IT.Ql;:Jl'A.:U~~!'.!Efil, h1c:l111lln11.the covemmtll and lliereof, electric 
transmission and/or dlstrilmtion 

Recorded: 
R•<:orc!i1>g No.: 
In favor of: 

ALT A Owner's Policy -
(06/l 7106) 

Scheduie B 

to~~etl1erwitli 11ecess1u·y as 1Vra0nif•,i1 

1958 

Public Distrkl No. 1 ofBe1>ton Collnty, 
Washi•1gl<•11, a m1n1kip•al 

BENTON 11RANKL1N TITLE COMPANY 
Agent of 

Re;polilic National TitJe Iwisunuice ComDnnv 

73



5. 

6. 

7. 

No.: 101~-11:g3371 Order No.: ro,.,,.,,"l"H 

SCFIED10LE B - C1111ti1111·ed 

~!filfilfilll~~fil, inclu1dlng the 

Recorded: 
No.: 

111 favor of: 

to1;etl1orwitb 11ecess11cy 11mnu·le11i;•11ioes. 

1960 
443795 
Publir District No. 1 of Benton C01i111~y, 
W 11sbh11!to111, a 

LOW tllo terms. oove111u1ts and 
--~~ 

entered 
Recorded: 

No,: 

to secure an 
secured thereby; 
Amount: 
nated: 
Recorded: 

No.: 
Gr1111tor: 

Tr11stcr: 
Ilenefiri 

to sec,,re an 
sec1mill 
Amo11nt: 
Datllll: 
Recorded: 

No.: 
Grantm·: 

Trustee: 

June 6, ::mu 
2011-lll5797 

in'11ebtedneiis, "''"""'"''~ a11y or other 11bl!g11.tlcm.s 

Catlmlk Charities Services - .Dlocesll l'.11ldma,11 
W11shl~gton Non-Prolil Corporation 
Benton Franklin Title a W11sh:i11gto11 t:orpc1ra1tio11 
Impru~I Capital, a Non-Profit Corpo.:ratiol! 

lncie~1te1in•'1l•, im:lm~illtli: a11y interest, or other obligatioas 

June 6, 21!11 
June 6, 2011 
2011-015799 
Catholic Charities Services - Dioce11e 
W11tshl11gt1)1l Nm1-Proftt Co:rllrnrati-on 
Benton Frankll11 Title Insunmce Crnmp:•n:v 
W1111hin~ton Sttlte Ho11sh1! Commission 

l'.11J<.lma, a 

~!QBill~[!Yi;J~2fil1 inclludi10R the covemu1t!l :md provisio11s thereof. entered 
Between: 
A11d: 
And: 

Recorded: 
Recordiluz No.: 

Cai1ltal a Wa1!hil1.1[t!lll 
Waslolm:l!ti"' State Commission 
Catholic Charities Services - Dioi:ese of a 
W1•11hl111!ton No11-Proflt Cm•oo1cati<o11 
J1111e 6, 2011 
21l11-!J15800 

EJ'l1) OF SCHEDUU!: B 

ALTA Owners Policy- Stimcterd 

74



lhhihitA 

That of Government L-Oi 5, Section 2, 8 M EWM described lls follows: 

Boginnl>1g al the Southwest corner of said thence North the West thoroof 
feet; thence E•sl 907,6 feet to the West Ii•• of the Road; Thence North 19 

miHtes East ••Id Ro•d 151.9 feel to tho Troe Thence West 958.3 
fool more or less to Iii• West line said Govemmelll Thence SJ>!d West line to • 

305,J South of !he Northwest corner Thence East to !he West line of ••id Couotv 
Road; Thence So11th said Wes! line fo tho True Point ofJBoirimiinig; 

EXCEPT lhsl portion conveyed lo Ibo 
Reoordloo No. 2002-042146; 

of Prosser dud rocorded October 29, 2002 under 

now<um c101n•ov<ed to Benion recorded 1\1~rch 2003 
under Recordirur No, records of Benton Coenl:y, ~\12:1hi:ngl:m1, 

75



DAT~:-nowN ENnORSEMENT- CONSTRUCTION LOAN 
Attaehed to Policy No.: LX-08755094 

lssucd _ 
OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

Order No.: 97737 
Custome1· No.: 

Re: CATHOLIC CHARITIBS HOUSING 
The Co1npa11y assures ]nsured 

I. espr<'Ssiy provided herein, there are no lieri:s1 encu1nbrances or other 111atters shown the 
records. affecting said esta~e or i11terest1 other thar1 those shown said policy and previous except 

NO CHANGE 

2. That there are no sub•sisl iug or asscss1nent liens which are the referred to Schedule A, other than 
those shown in except am<Jud11ng; 

7, DELINQUENT GENERAL TAXES 
Ainrrunt b!Hed: 
Amount 
Ainount delinquen 

Account No.: 

$2,961.50 
$2,96L50 
l-0284-100-0020-000 

8. ~~~~;;;;;-~~""11QJ~~!lfil!Ml~ 
interest and 
Amount: 
Tax A.ccount No.: l -0284-200-0020·000 

Note: Future irrhzation assessn:tent~ will be assessed 

the year plus interest :and pc1rnil!il::s; 

lrri2:Btinn District, for the year 20131 

!Ile of Proi>1<~r. 

3, That, as shown by the the title to-sald estate or intt~rest is vested in the vestees shown Schedule ,4; 

The hereby insures loss which the Insured shall sustain in the event that the assurances of the Cornpany 
herein prove to be incorrect 

Comiiany further insured the Insured loss whlch the h1sured reason of the estabtish111ent of 
over the Hen of said mortgage, any advance inade which is of the indebtedness evidenced by the 

note or notes secured by said n1ortgage1 upon said estate or interest any statutory lien for tabor and inate.rlal arislne:. out of 
work or irnproverrcent under construction or co1npieted at t.he date hereof, 

This endorsen1ent is rnade a part of the and is to the terrns and prov!slons tbereof and endorsements 
thereto, to the extent stated, it neither 111odifies any of the tenns and provi.slons of the and any 
endorse111ents, nor does it extend the elt'ect!ve date of the and any endorseinents, does It increase the 
mriount thereof 

WA Form Dnt1>·I-Own EndorsemeJJ! 
Construction Lonn {l-!-94) 

at 8:00 •.m, 

llENTON FRANKLlN TITLE COMPANY 
.. of 

OLD REPUBLJC NATIONAL 
LAND TITLE INSURANCf~ COMPANY 

76



I 
' I 
I 

i 
I 

i 

SUITE 

i CATHOLIC CHARITIES SERVICES 
l A TIN: NATHAN POEL 
I 5301 TIETON DR STE G 
I WA98908 

co. 

DESCRIPTION 

Date Down Endoraement 
SALES TAX 

REFERENCE 

CATHOLIC CHARITIES HOUSING 

TERMS ORDER NO, 

97737 

AMOUNT 

I 
50,00T I 

4,15 I 
I 

I 
' 

I 

- ' I UL<:! 

77



BENTON
FRANKUN 
TITLE 
COMPANY 

3315 WEST WA 99336 
TELEPHONE (509) 783"0661, TITLE Fl« {509) WEB SITE WWW.BFTITLE.COM 

9, 2011 at 2:06:47 PM 

DlEITRIBUTICIN LIST 

of this order sent the foll.ow:ing: 

Benton Franklin Title Co:rop:my 
Attn: J. Sue 
3315 W. Clearwater Ave. 
Kerme111rick, WA 99336 

Office of Rural and .Farmw·orker H:om:ing 
Susan Wilson 

lm~la<:t Capital 
Attn: Laurie 

W:!Shing~on State Finance Commission 
Attn: Bob Peterson 

O:rder No.: 97737 

3 

Email 

Email 

78



Steve Zetz 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Steve: 

Please see below. 

John Probst 
Development Manager 

John Probst LJprobst@ccyakima.org] 
Wednesday, March 19, 2014 2:59 PM 
Steve Zetz 
FW: Prosser Land Segregation 

Catholic Charities Housing Services 
jprobst@ccyakima.org 
Direct: 509-853-2793 
Cell: 509-949-7276 
Office: 509-853-2800 
FAX 509-853-2805 
"We Bring Hope to Life!" 

From: Bob Peterson [mailto:Bob.Peterson@wshfc.orgl 
Sent: Wednesday, March 19, 2014 2:54 PM 
To: jprobst@ccyakima.org 
Cc: Bryan Ketcham; Susan Wilson (susanw@orfh.org); Mary Gustaveson; Bobbi Alseth (bobbia@orfh.org) 
Subject: Prosser Land Segregation 

John et al, 

Here is some clarification regarding the land purchase for the Granger-Prosser Family Housing tax credit project. 

As part of the requirements for Low Income Housing Tax Credits and to finalize the financing syndication of the Tax 
Credits, a legal description of the project land must be finalized. In the instance of the Prosser project, the master tax 
parcel exceeds 12 acres. The project will encompass about 5 acres, including the proposed Partial Reconveyance to the 
City for a future new road to be constructed as part of the project development. This Partial Reconveyance is necessary 
to create a legal tax parcel of the remaining land. The Tax Credit project can only purchase the project site and land 
necessary for any roads. 

Should you have questions regarding this please contact me. 

Bob Peterson, Manager 
Multifamily Housing and Community Facilities Division 
Washington State Housing Finance Commission 
1000 Second Avenue, Suite 2700 
Seattle, WA 98104-1046 
800 767-4663 In-State Toll Free 
206 287-4454 Direct, 206 587-5113 Fax 

~ Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail. 

79



Disclaimer: Public documents and records are available to the public as required under the Washington State 
Public Records Act (RCW 42.56). The information contained in all correspondence with a government entity 
may be disclosable to third party requesters under the Public Records Act. 

2 80



REQUEST FOR PARTIAL RECONVEYANCE 
Without satisfaction of debt 

TO: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

The undersigned is the legal owner and holder of the Promissory Note in the original 
sum of $308,507 and all other indebtedness secured by within the Deed of Trust dated June 
6, 2011 . You are hereby requested and directed to re convey, without warrenty, to the 
person(s) entitled thereto the right, title, or interest now held by you thereunder in and to 
that portion of the real property described in said Deed of Trust, situated in Benton County, 
Washington, as follows: 

Parcel C (to be deeded to the City of Prosser) 

The south 50 feet of that portion of the hereafter described Parcel X, lying 
easterly of the following described traverse line; 

Commencing at the southwest comer of the north 305.3 feet of 
Government Lot 5, Section 2, Township 8 North, Range 24 East, W.M.; 
thence South 88°58' 16" East, reference bearing, parallel to the north line 
of said Lot 5, a distance of 669 .58 feet to the point of beginning of said 
traverse line: thence South 1°01 '44" West, 446.20 feet, to a point on the 
north line, of the south 50.00 feet, of said Parcel X; thence North 89°51 '52" 
West, along said north line, 75.00 feet: thence South 0°08'08" West, 50.00 
feet to a point on the south line of said Parcel X and the terminus of said 
traverse line 

Dated: March 11, 2014 

Deed of Trust Recording#: 2011-015798 
Deed of Trust Recording Date: June 6, 2011 

Juditfblsen, Executive Director 
Impact Capital 

Grantor: CATHOLIC CHARITIES HOUSING SERVICES DIOCESE OF YAKIMA 
Trustee: BENTON-FRANKLIN TITLE COMPANY 
Beneficiary: IMPACT CAPITAL 
Assessor's Tax Parcel ID#: 1-0284-200-0020-000 
Benton-Franklin Title Company #: 97737 

-7 

• <- ~·"~-'------M-~--·· 

81



0 

0 

~ 
:; " 0 ~ 

~ 
~ 
0 
0 

c 
" 

w 0 

0 
0 

0 

zl 

~I H O 

i( 
I 
! 

'! 0' 
' 

~1 =~~ "I 

I 
g 
" 
0 

~~ 

~ '.'i;'.i- • 0 

F 
. 0 

'~ ~ x 

" H :r " 0 :r c: ... en 
B H01 0 

~ 
Zm ,, 
"z 

% "' ' en'" > rnen -< 
~ 

J)H 
<en en 
H c 
" " "' < en "' -< 

"'---±"""' __ _ 

IN o ·05' JO·~ - A<) l 
"DQ"Q~'ca- cf 

)( l{' ' 

h o·~s·o~
~G.Oc>' 

• 

I 

p 
" c 

0 • ~ " n 
0 m 

r 
~ 
~ 

x 

Q 

~•r;, lil' 
~ ''<11'«1" t: 

' 

·~· s,~ 
25£ 
211:" 
!" 0 

' ~ 
' i .. 
?, 

~ 
" 

11' ;;'"'!" 

~[ll~ 

fil§ 833 

"!¥ 

~~ 
~~ 
i~ 

~g 
., 
i; 

8~ 

~fil ~~ ici 
"" ,.,ii G~ il~ "',;j go 

~§ "" •• ~; ;j :§ ~.\ 
~! 

,, 
fo·n ~' -.,i; 

·"i ;;:;g SR a;o; 
~8 m~ 

~~ ' ,,il'j 

' ' ~?, 
'il~ fil S· 

~~ g;ffi 

i 
F 

~~ ~ 

~i """ ii 
~8 

§ ~ 

82



CITY OF PROSSER WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
' Agenda Title: Adopt Resolution No. 14- Meeting Date: 

Approving the lnterlocal March 25, 2014 
Cooperation Agreement for Bridge Regular Meeting 
Inspection with Benton County and 
Authorizing the Mayor to Sign the 
Documents. 

Department: I Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 

Public Works I L.J. Da Corsi L.J. Da Corsi (509) 786-2332 I 
-
Cost of Proposal: N/A Account Number: 

Amount Budgeted: N/A Name and Fund# 

I 
I 

Reviewed b~ Finance De12artment: 

~.Qairi\a. M.~ 
--' 

Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Proposed Resolution 14-__ approving the lnterlocal Agreement 
2. lnterlocal Cooperation Agreement between Benton County and the City of Prosser 

for Bridge Inspection 
3. City of Prosser Resolution No. 14-__ (as Exhibit "A") 
4. Benton County Resolution (as Exhibit "B") 

Summary Statement: 

The City of Prosser owns and maintains three City bridges; two crossing the Yakima 
River on Wine Country Road and one crossing the Chandler Canal on Grande Road 
near the City's Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) requires visual field inspections every two 
years, an under bridge inspection every 72 months and an underwater inspection every 
72 months. The City of Prosser is not equipped, nor has properly trained personnel to 
undertake the required inspections and, therefore, must rely upon Benton County to 
inspect the three bridges. Benton County is part of the State of Washington's Bridge 
Inspection Program and can perform the service in conjunction with Washington State 
Department of Transportation (WSDOT), complying with the WSDOT Local Programs 
Bridge Preservation Office. 

The City was at one time eligible for free bridge inspections by the County because the 
;s than 5,000 would fall under 
'cted cities. This is no longer 

1 the case because the City's2op"'u"'l.=a.o.ctio=-n'-'--'-n"'o'"'w'-e"'x"'c"'e'-'e'-'d"'s'-5"''"'0_,,0=0~. ___________ _J 

83



The City is obligated to reimburse Benton County the costs for personnel, equipment, 
etc., for inspection of the City's bridges, preparation and submittal of reports, and 
maintenance of the bridge files. If repairs are necessary there will also be costs 
separate from those for Benton County. These may include retaining an approved 
consultant, private contractor, or WSDOT Bridge Preservation Office to perform 
maintenance and repair of any of the City bridges, if necessary. 

In order to utilize Benton County for this program, the City must enter into an lnterlocal 
Cooperation Agreement pursuant to the Washington lnterlocal Cooperation Act, RCW 
39.34, and RCW 35.21.730-740. The approval of the agreement must be in the form of a 
resolution adopted by the City Council. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

Consistent with policies and procedures for lnterlocal Cooperation Agreements between 
the City of Prosser and other governmental agencies such as Benton County. 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Adopt Resolution No. 14- Approving the lnterlocal Cooperation Agreement for 
Bridge Inspection with Benton County and Authorizing the Mayor to Sign the Documents. 

March11,2014 

Reviewed by City Attorney: 

< =-----) 
= ~-·-· <:: 

Date: J 

Approved by Mayor: 

Uu~ 
Date: J - (. {--r 
File Name and Path: 

84



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ _ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PROSSER APPROVING INTERLOCAL COOPERATION 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PROSSER AND 
BENTON COUNTY REGARDING THE BRIDGE INSPECTION 
PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser has a need to inspect its three bridges as 
required by the Federal Highway Administration (FHW A); and 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser does not have the equipment, resources, or 
personnel trained to undertake bridge inspection as required by the FHW A; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the bridge inspection program with the State of 
Washington, Benton County was required to provide free bridge inspections for cities 
under 5,000 in population; and 

WHEREAS, the City, having passed the population threshold of 5,000 is no 
longer eligible for free bridge inspection by Benton County; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto agree that Benton County should continue to 
inspect the City's bridges pursuant to the Washington Interlocal Cooperation Act, RCW 
39.34, and RCW 35.21.730 - .740; and 

WHEREAS, an Interlocal Agreement defining the responsibilities of the 
County and the City has been prepared and Approved as to Fonn by the Prosecuting 
Attorney's Office and Approved as to Form by the City of Prosser Attorney; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Director has recommended approval of said 
Interlocal Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Prosser that the Interlocal Agreement by and between the City of Prosser and Benton 
County for Bridge Inspection is hereby approved and the Mayor is authorized to sign said 
agreement. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the Mayor 
of the City of Prosser this day of , 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

85



ATTEST: 

RACHEL SHAW, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORl\1: 

~ ~---~///·/· 

HOWARD SAXTON, CITY ATTORNEY 

86



Return to: Benton County Engineer 
P.O. Box 1001 
Prosser. WA 99350 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
BRIDGE INSPECTION 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day of , 2014, ..... h 
by and between the City of Prosser whose address is 601 7' Street, Prosser, WA 99350 
(hereinafter "the City") and Benton County whose address is P.O. Box 1001, Prosser, WA 99350 
(hereinafter "Benton County"). 

WHEREAS, Benton County, as a part of the bridge inspection program with the State of 
Washington, was required to provide free bridge inspection for cities under 5,000 in population; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City, having passed the population threshold of 5,000 is no longer 
eligible for free bridge inspection by Benton County and not having personnel trained to 
undertake bridge inspection as required by the Federal Highway Administration ("FHW A") 
desires to utilize Benton County pers01mel to inspect the three City bridges; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto agree that Benton County should continue to inspect the 
City's bridges pursuant to the Washington Interlocal Cooperation Act, RCW 39.34, and RCW 
35.21.730 - .740. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements and covenants herein 
contained, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Responsibilities of Benton County: Benton County Agrees to provide bridge 
inspection services under the following terms and conditions. 

A. Bridges Covered by Agreement Benton County agrees to provides 
inspection services for the three City bridges identified as follows: 

1. Structure ID# 08591900 - Wine Country Road Bridge East 
2. Structure ID# 08737500- Wine Country Road Bridge West 
3. Structure ID# - Grande Road Bridge 

(This bridge currently has no structure number and has not been 
entered into the Washington State Bridge Inventory System yet. 

87



Assignment from Washington Bureau of Reclamation to the 
City of Prosser filed on 10/30/2006). 

B. Coupty Oversight. Benton Com1ty Project Manager will oversee 
Lead Inspector and Assistant Inspector in all aspects of bridge 
inspection and file maintenance. 

C. Field Inspections. Complete visual field inspections on all three 
bridges will be conducted every 24 months. 

1. Benton County will complete inspection reports and data 
entry; and 

2. Benton County will comply with all requirements of the 
Washington State Department of Transportation 
("WSDOT") Local Programs Bridge Preservation Office. 

D. Under Bridge Inspections. Complete Under Bridge Inspection 
Trnck ("UBIT") every 72 months utilizi11g the WSDOT two-man 
crew. 

1. Benton County will complete inspection reports and data 
entry; and 

2. Benton County will comply with all requirements of the 
Washington State Department of Transportation 
("WSDOT") Local Programs Bridge Preservation Office. 

E. Underwater Inspections. Benton County will help coordinate 
underwater inspections every 72 months with WSDOT. Note: 
WSDOT usually hires a private consultant to complete these 
inspections. 

1. Private consultant will complete all inspection reports and 
send information/reports to Benton County; and 

2. Benton Colmty will review the reports and complete the data 
entry submission to WSDOT Local Programs Bridge 
Preservation Office. 

F. Soundings. Benton County will ensure that soundings are 
completed on the upstream and downstream .sides on both Wine 
Country Road bridges every 72 months coordinating this inspection 
with the underwater inspection which is to be performed under 
subsection 1. D. above. 

G. Digital Photos. Benton County will talrn digital photos whenever 
deemed necessary. 

88



H. Damage/Repair Reports. Benton County will prepare damage 
and/or repair reports if necessary and provide copies of the same to 
the City. 

I. Inspection Reports. Benton County will route a copy of all 
inspection reports to the City along with any damage or repair 
reports prepared under subsection 1. H. above. 

2. Responsibilities of the City of Prosser: The City shall have the following 
duties and responsibilities under this Agreement: 

A. Right of Entry. The City hereby grants and conveys to the County 
and WSDOT the right of entry upon all I.and which the City has 
interest, within or adjacent to the bridges (as described under 
subsection l .A.) for the purpose of accomplishing the work 
described as part of this Agreement. 

B. Review all Reports. The City shall review all inspection, damage, 
and/or repair reports and provide any connnent, inquiry, or request 
for further action in writing within thirty (30) days of receiving said 
report lo Benton County. 

C. Maintenance/Repair. Complete or retain approved consultant, 
private contractor or WSDOT Bridge Preservation Office to perform 
maintenance and repair of all City bridges, if necessary. Note: The 
Bridge Office maintains files on consultants qualified to provide 
bridge inspection services. 

D. Furnish City Personnel to Assist. in Inspections. During UBIT 
inspections conducted every 72 months, and as needed for 
inspections, the City will furnish flag persons to direct traffic flow. 

E. Maintain Current Contact Information. The City shall keep 
information current on level of contact in case of emergency closure . 

. F. Memorandum of UnderstandJng. The City shall enter into a 
Memorandum of Understanding with WSDOT Local Programs 
Bridge Preservation Office for High Cost Bridge Inspections. 

G. Reimburse County for Costs. The City shall reimburse all Benton 
County costs for personnel, equipment, etc., for inspection of the 
bridges, preparation and submittal ofreports, and maintenance of the 
bridge files. 

3. Representation, Warranties, and Indemnities 

89



A. The City represents and warrants to Benton County that it has the 
authority to enter into this lnterlocal Agreement pursuant to RCW 
39.34.030(2). 

B. Benton County represents and warrants to the City that it has the 
authority to enter into this Interlocal Agreement pursuant to RCW 
39.34.030(2). 

C. The City shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend Benton County, 
its officers, officials, employees and agents, from and against any 
and all claims, actions, suits, liability, loss, expenses, damages, and 
judgments of any nature whatsoever, including reasonable costs and 
attorneys' fees in defense thereof, for injury, sickness, disability or 
death to persons or damage to property or business, arising in 
connection with this Agreement, or caused or occasioned in whole 
or in part by reason of the presence of Benton Comity or its 
subcontractors or their property upon or in the proximity of the 
property of the City. PROVIDED, that the City's obligation 
hereunder shall not extend to injury, sickness, death or damage 
caused by or arising out of the sole negligence of Benton County, its 
officers, officials, employees or agents. hl the event of the 
concurrent negligence of the City, its subcontractors, employees or 
agents, and Benton County, its employees or agents, this 
indemnification obligation of the City shall be valid and enforceable 
only to the extent of the negligence of the City, its subcontractors, 
employees and agents. 

D. In any and all claims against Benton County, its officers, officials, 
employees and agents by any employee of the City, subcontractor, 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone 
for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification 
obligation under this Section shall not be limited in any way by any 
limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or 
benefits payable by or for the City or subcontractor under Workers 
Compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit 
acts, it being clearly agreed and m1derstood by the paities hereto that 
the City expressly waives any immunity the City might have had 
under such laws, including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised 
Code of Washington. By executing this Agreement, the City 
acknowledges that the foregoiug waiver has been mutually 
negotiated •by the parties and that the provisions of this Section 
shall be incorporated, as relevant, into any contract the City 
makes with any subcontractor or agent performing work 
hereunder. The City's. obligations under this Section [3] shall 
survive termination and expiration of this Agreement. 

90



E. The City's obligations hereunder shall include, but are not limited 
to, investigating, adjusting and defending all claims alleging loss 
from action, error or omission, or breach of any common law, 
statutory or other deiygated duty by the City, the Cities employees, 
agents or subcontractors. The foregoing indemnification obligations 
of the City are a material inducement to Benton County to enter into 
this Agreement, and have been mutually negotiated by the parties. 

4. Duration of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence 
upon the execution by both parties and shall expire on December 31, 2019. 

5. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated by either 
party by providing written notice to the designated contacts for each party 
identified in Section 12 of this Agreement. This written notice must be 
served on the other party within thirty (30) days of the date of termination. 

6. Partial Invalidity. vVhenever possible, each provision of this Agreement 
shall be interpreted in such a manner as to be effective and valid under 
applicable law. Any provisions of this Agreement which shall prove to be 
invalid, void, or illegal shall in no way affect, impair, or invalidate any 
other provisions herein, and such other provisions shall remain in full force 
and effect. 

7. No Third-Party Rights. Except as expressly provided herein, nothing in 
this Agreement shall be construed to permit anyone other than the parties 
hereto and their successors and assigns to rely upon the covenants and 
agreements herein not to give any such third-party a cause of action (as a 
third-party beneficiary or otherwise) on account of nonperformance 
hereunder. 

8. Assignability. The rights, duties, and other obligations of either party to 
this Agreement may not be assigned to any third party without the prior 
written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. 

9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and any amendments thereto mutually 
agreed to by the parties, constitutes the entire Agreement between the 
parties hereto and no other agreements, oral or othenilise, regarding the 
subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind any of the 
parties. Either party may request changes to the Agreement. Proposed 
changes that are mutually agreed upon shall ,be incorporated by written 
amendment hereto. 

10. Dispute Resolution. It is the parties' intent to resolve any disputes relating 
to the interpretation or application of this Agreement informally throngh 

91



discussions at the staff level. In the event disputes cannot be resolved 
informally at the staff level, then the parties agree to first submit the dispute 
to non-binding mediation/dispute resolution before resorting to litigation. 

11. Litigation. Jn the event that any suit or action is instituted by either party 
to enforce compliance with or interpret any of the terms, covenants, or 
conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
collect, in addition to necessary court costs, such Sl!lllS as the court may 
adjudge as reasonable attorney fees. The venue for any action to enforce or 
interpret this Agreement shall lie in the Superior Court for Benton County, 
Washington. 

12. Notices. All notices and demands shaU be in writing and sent to the parties 
hereto at their address as follows: 

To Benton County: 

To Citv of Prosser: 

Benton County Public Works 
P.O. Box 1001 
Prosser, WA 99350-0954 

City of Prosser 
601 7th Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

13. Filing of Agreement. A copy of this Agreement shall be filed with the City 
Clerk of the City of Prosser and with the Benton County Auditor. 

14. Evidence of Authority. Upon execution of this Agreement, the City shall 
provide Benton County and Benton County shall provide the City with a 
certified copy of the resolution, ordinance, or other authority given to 
execute this Agreement pursuant to RCW 39.34.030(2), and said document 
will be attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit "A" (City) and 
Exhibit "B" (County). 

92



IN WITNESS WHEREOF said parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by 
the duly authorized officials on the day and year first written above. 

CITY OF PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON 

By:-::------
Mayor 

Attest: 

City Clerk 

Date: -----

Approved as to form: , 
~==-~ -L, 
~··· 

Attorney, City of Prosser 

Date: ____ _ 

BENTON COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON 

By:_~--------
Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 

Attest: 

Clerk of the Board 

Date: ------

Approved as to form: 

Benton County Prosecuting Attorney 

Date: -------

93



Exhibit "A" 

CITY OF PROSSER, W ASIDNGTON 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ _ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF PROSSER APPROVING INTERLOCAL 
COOPERATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
PROSSER AND BENTON COUNTY REGARDING THE 
BRIDGE INSPECTION PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser has a need to inspect its three bridges as 
required by the Federal Highway Administration (FHW A); and 

'WHEREAS, the City of Prosser does not have the equipment, resources, 
or personnel trained to undertake bridge inspection as required by the FHW A; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the bridge inspection program with the State of 
Washington, Benton Connty was required to provide free bridge inspections for 
cities under 5,000 in population; and 

WHEREAS, the City, having passed the population threshold of 5,000 is 
no longer eligible for free bridge inspection by Benton County; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto agree that Benton County should continue 
to inspect the City's bridges pursuant to the Washington Interlocal Cooperation 
Act, RCW 39.34, and RCW 35.21.730 - .740; and 

WHEREAS, an Interlocal Agreement defining the responsibilities of the 
County and the City has been prepared and Approved as to Form by the 
Prosecuting Attorney's Office and Approved as to Form by the City of Prosser 
Attorney; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Director has recommended approval of 
said Inter!ocal Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the 
City of Prosser that the Interlocal Agreement by and between the City of Prosser 
and Benton County for Bridge Inspection is hereby approved and the Mayor is 
authorized to sign said agreement. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the 
Mayor of the City of Prosser this day of , 2014. 

94



MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

ATTEST: 

RACHEL SHAW, CITY CLERIC 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
-------, 

~// 

(_---~ -----
HOW ARD SAXTON, CITY ATTORNEY 

95



RESOLUTION 

Exhibit "B" 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON: 

IN THE MATTER OF COlJNTY ROADS, RE: CITY OF PROSSER, INTERLOCAL 
COOPERATION AGREEMENT, BRIDGE INSPECTION 

WHEREAS, ai; a part of the bridge inspection program with the State of Washington, 
Benton County was required to provide free bridge inspections for cities under 5,000 in 
population, and 

WHEREAS, the City, having passed the population threshold of 5,000 is no longer eligible 
for free bridge inspection by Benton County and not having personnel trained to undertake 
bridge inspection as required by the Federal Highway Administration ("FHW A") desires to 
utilize Benton County personnel to inspect the three City bridges; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto agree that Benton County should continue to inspect the 
City's bridges pursuant to the Washington h1terlocal Cooperation Act, RCW 3934, and 
RCW 35.21.730 - ,740, NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement, Bridge Inspection with the 
City of Prosser be approved and the Chairman of the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners is authorized to sign said agreement. 

Dated this day of _______ _ 

Chairman 

Chairman Pro-Tern 

Member 

Constituting the Board of Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 

Attest: -------------County Clerk of the Board 

96



r-- CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

1 
AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Title: Adopt Resolution No. 14-
____ .Approving the lnterlocal 
Agreement Regarding Solid Waste 
Management between the City of Prosser 
and Benton County (Lead Agency), and 
authorize the Mayor to sign the documents. 

Department: Director: 

Public Works I L.J. Da Corsi 
Cost of Proposal: N/A 

Amount Budgeted: NIA 

Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Resolution No. 14------

Meeting Date: 
March 25, 2014 
Regular Meeting 

Contact Person: 

L.J. Da Corsi 

Phone Number: 

509) 786-2332 
Account Number: 

Name and Fund# 

2. Attachment "A" - INTER-LOCAL AGREEMENT REGARDING SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT BENTON COUNTY (2014-2015) 

Summary Statement: 

This Agreement addresses the City-County joint participation in the countywide Solid 
Waste Plan and joins public agencies to exercise their powers, thereby maximizing their 
ability to provide services and facilities which will best fulfill the needs of the community 
as a whole. The parties of this agreement include Benton County as the Lead Agency, 
and the cities of Benton City, Kennewick, Richland, Prosser, and West Richland. 

RCW Chapter 70.95 and RCW chapter 70. 105 require these participating agencies to 
prepare and implement a solid and hazardous waste plan, conduct a public review 
process to develop and review the Benton County Comprehens'1ve Solid Waste Plan 
assuring the Plan fulfills their jurisdictional requirements under said RCW's. This is 
recognized as a cooperative effort to administer, plan, and implement the 
recommendations contained within the adopted Benton County Comprehensive Solid 

, Waste Plan. The Lead Agency, Benton County, will manage, track and provide custody r "'"gmemeo> 

97



Consistent with or Comgarison to: 

Consistent with policies and procedures for lnterlocal Cooperation Agreements between 
I the City of Prosser and other governmental agencies such as Benton County. 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Adopt Resolution No. 14- Approving the lnterlocal Agreement Regarding Solid 
Waste Management between the City of Prosser and Benton County (Lead Agency), and 
authorize the Mayorto sign the documents. 

Reviewed by DeQartment Reviewed by City Attorney: Aggroved by Mayor: 
Director: 

fJJd__ 4J(· ~ 
Date: f; 'b Jr Date: -j) /9'1J Date: J-2-f/~y 
Today's uate: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

March 18, 2014 I 
I 

98



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ _ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER 
APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT REGARDING SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT WITH BENTON COUNTY AND THE CITY OF PROSSER 
ADDRESSING CITY-COUNTY JOINT PARTICIPATION IN THE 
COUNTYWIDE SOLID WASTE PLAN AND JOINING PUBLIC AGENCIES TO 
EXERCISE THEIR POWERS THEREBY MAXIMIZING THEIR ABILITY TO 
PROVIDE SERVICES AND FACILITIES WffiCH WILL BEST FULFILL THE 
NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY AS A WHOLE IN ACCORDANCE WITH RCW 
CHAPTER 70.95 AND RCW CHAPTER 70.105. 

WHEREAS, tl1e City of Prosser recognizes the requirement to prepare and implement solid and 
hazardous waste plans under RCW Chapter 70.95 and RCW Chapter 70.105; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser jointly participates with the cities of Benton City, Kennewick, 
Richland and West Richland, under the Lead Agency Benton County; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser recognizes the adopted Benton County Solid Waste Plan fulfills 
the jurisdictional requirements under RCW Chapter 70.95 and RCW Chapter 70.105; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser wishes to enter into a cooperative effort to administer, plan, and 
implement the recommendations contained within the adopted Benton County Comprehensive Solid 
Waste Plan; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Prosser that: 

The City of Prosser, as a participating agency, approves the Interlocal Agreement Regarding 
Solid Waste Management Benton County, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution, and that the 
Mayor is authorized to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the Mayor of the 
City of Prosser this day of March, 2014. 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk, Rachel Shaw 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

~ 

~ 
~' 

City Attorney, Howard Saxton 

Mayor, Paul Warden 

99



ATTACHMENT "A" 

Description 
lnterlocal Agreement Regarding Solid Waste Management Benton Connty 

100



INTER-LOCAL AGREEMENT 
REGARDING SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 

BENTON COUNTY 

This Agreement addresses City-County joint participation in the countywide Solid 
Waste Plan and joins public agencies to exercise their powers, thereby maximizing their 
ability to provide services and facilities which will best fulfill the needs of the community 
as a whole, and is made and entered into effective the first day of January 2014, by and 
between Benton County, a political subdivision of the State of Washington, hereafter 
referred to as the Lead Agency, and the cities of Benton City, Kennewick, Richland, 
Prosser, and West Richland, political subdivisions of the State of Washington, and 
hereafter referred to as Participating Jurisdictions. The Participating Jurisdictions and 
Lead Agency may be referred to herein collectively as the Parties, also referred to as the 
Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC). 

I. RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto recognize the requirement to prepare and 
implement solid and hazardous waste plans under RCW Chapter 70.95 and RCW Chapter 
70.105, and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto recognize the requirement to conduct a public 
review process to develop and review the Benton County Comprehensive Solid Waste 
Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto recognize the adopted Benton County 
Comprehensive Solid Waste Plan fulfills their jurisdictional requirements under RCW 
Chapter 70.95 and RCW Chapter 70.105; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto wish to enter into a cooperative effort to 
administer, plan, and implement the recommendations contained within the adopted 
Benton County Comprehensive Solid Waste Plan; and 

WHEREAS, each Participating Jurisdiction and Lead Agency shall have one 
equal vote with regards to policies and decisions made pursuant to all matters of policy 
and finance; And 

Interlocal Agreement - 2014 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

-1-101



WHEREAS, the Lead Agency will manage, track and provide custody for this 
Agreement, and 

II. AGREEMENTS 

WHEREAS, the undersigned signatories of this Agreement are duly authorized to 
enter into the same by properly adopted resolutions, 

NOW THERFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual 
agreements and covenants herein contained, the parties agree as follows: 

A. AUTHORITIES 

The parties to this Agreement have and possess, both jointly and severally, the 
primary responsibility for effective solid and hazardous waste management, planning and 
implementation under RCW Chapters 70.95 and 70. l 05. Under RCW Chapter 39.34, the 
Inter-local Cooperation Act, local governments are authorized to cooperate to provide 
themselves with services of the nature herein agreed to. 

B. PURPOSE 

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to RCW Chapter 39.34 for the purpose of 
cooperative management of solid waste within Benton County. It is the intent of the 
parties to work cooperatively in developing a comprehensive solid waste management 
plan pursuant of RCW Chapters 70.95 and 70.105 that is viable and economically 
responsible to their citizens. Specifically, this Agreement will provide for the 
administration, planning and operations of the adopted Benton County Comprehensive 
Solid Waste Management Progran1. 

C. DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following definitions shall apply: 

'Fair Share' - the amount owed by each of the Parties based upon current 
population figures supplied by the Washington State Office of Financial Management 
(OFM), and the corresponding population percentage applied to the Solid Waste Program 
Budget. 

'Solid Waste Advisory Committee' (SWAC) - a committee comprised of a 
representative of each of the Parties. Each Party shall designate its representative to the 
SW AC to the Lead Agency. The SW AC shall review Solid Waste Program budget and 
activities and make recommendations to the Benton County Commissioners. 

'Lead Agency' - Benton County, a political subdivision of the State of 
Washington. The Lead Agency, will administer, plan and implement the Plan and Solid 
Waste Program. 

lnterlocal Agreement - 2014 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

-2-102



'Participating Jurisdictions' - any City who has entered into the County-wide 
Solid Waste Inter-local Agreement with the Lead Agency and who has agreed to 
mutually support and financially contribute to the administration, planning and 
implementation of the Plan. 

'Parties' or 'Solid Waste Advisory Committee' - the collective term for all 
Participating Jurisdictions and Lead Agency. 

'Plan' - the Benton County Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan, as the 
same exists now or may hereafter be amended. 

'Routine Operating Agreement' (ROA) - an agreement that is established for the 
purpose of accomplishing a task set forth by the Parties and is funded within the Solid 
Waste Program Budget. 

'Solid Waste Advisory Committee Members Bylaws' - the bylaws the same as 
now exist or may hereafter be amended. 

'Solid Waste Program Budget' - the annual Countywide Solid Waste Budget, as 
prepared by Benton County and accepted by the SW AC, that appropriates funds to 
Routine Operating Agreements and administrative functions that meet specific 
requirements in RCW 70.95 and/or accomplishes goals as set fourth in the Plan. 

'Task' - a project, program, activity, etc., that is annually funded from the Solid 
Waste Program Budget. All tasks are approved by the SW AC as needed and shall meet 
the recommendations set forth in the Plan. 

'Task Manager' is designated to lead and manage a Task per the ROA. 

D. LOCAL ADOPTION OF PLAN 

Under the authority ofRCW 70.95.080 each Participating Jurisdiction has elected 
to enter into this agreement with the County pursuant to which those jurisdictions shall 
participate in preparing a joint City-County Plan. Prior to the Plan's "Final Draft" phase, 
when it goes to Ecology for review, each Participating Jurisdiction is required to adopt 
the Plan. If any Participating Jurisdiction elects not to adopt the Plan, the Lead Agency 
will call for a SW AC vote. If a supermajority vote (i.e. 5 of 6) is reached in favor of 
adopting, the opposing jurisdiction will have to choose between developing a Plan alone, 
or adopting the favored Plan. If two or more jurisdictions oppose adopting the Plan, then 
the Parties will revert back to the phase of "Revising the Preliminary Draft Plan" during 
which a draft Plan revision will be made to satisfy a supermajority vote. The Plan will be 
adopted by at least the "in favor" supennajority and submitted to Ecology for final 
approval. 

E. PLAN IMPLEMENTATION 

Interlocal Agreement- 2014 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

-3-103



Pursuant to RCW 70.95.080 and RCW 70.l 05.220, the Participating Jurisdictions 
and Lead Agency will jointly prepare a Plan in accordance with "Guidelines for the 
Development of Local Solid Waste Plans and Plan Revisions" (i.e. Department of 
Ecology (WDoE) Publication No. 90-11) and implement the Plan's recommendations. 
Pursuant to RCW 70.95.094, the "Final Draft Plan" shall be deemed approved, if the 
WDoE does not disapprove it within forty-five (45) days ofreceipt. 

F. BENTON COUNTY SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

The Parties hereto recognize and support the SW AC as an advisory board created 
under authority ofRCW 70.95.165. The SWAC is an ongoing advisory committee. The 
SW AC is the focal point of the public involvement effort used in the planning, 
development and implementation of the Plan. The SW AC also provides advice to the 
Parties on solid and hazardous waste issues and assists the Parties in developing solid 
waste ordinances, rules, guidelines and policies prior to their adoption. 

G. REGIONAL PLANNING AREA 

The Parties hereto recognize the geographical planning area covered by this 
Agreement to be the incorporated areas of the Participating Jurisdictions and the 
unincorporated area of Benton County. The Hanford Nuclear Reservation is exempted 
from the Plan and this Inter-local Agreement. 

H. ROUTINE OPERATING AGREEMENT IMPLEMENTATION 

Prior to the annual Solid Waste Program Budget workshop, all task managers are 
required to submit their ROA. As a minimum, an ROA will include: 1). Task 
Introduction Statement; 2) Task Scope of Work; 3) Task Responsibilities; 4) Annual Task 
Cost; and 5) Quality Control. Eligibility of an ROA request is based on task cost and 
meeting recommendations set forth in the Plan. The SW AC will approve tasks based on 
a supermajority (i.e. 5 of 6) in-favor vote. 

I. SOLID WASTE PROGRAM BUDGET 

The Parties agree to mutually and financially support the administration, planning 
and operations of the Plan recommendations or as specified in RCW 70.95. The Lead 
Agency shall prepare a Solid Waste Program Budget each year for the upcoming budget 
year. The budget will also include Routine Operating Agreements that provide 
information on projects funded by the annual budget. 

J. FAIR SHARE 

The Parties agree to pay a Fair Share of the administration, planning and 
operation of the Solid Waste Program, as determined and voted-on by the SW AC and 
approved by the Benton County Commissioners. Said Fair Share shall be a percentage of 

lnterlocal Agreement - 2014 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

-4-104



all program costs that are not covered by Coordinated Prevention Grant Funds, share 
percentages to be updated each January of the Agreement, being based on the most recent 
population figures as supplied by the Washington State OFM. The Parties agree to remit 
their fee to the Lead Agency within sixty (60) days of receiving an invoice from the Lead 
Agency. The Lead Agency's fair share shall be based on the population for the 
unincorporated areas of the County. 

K. DISBURSEMENT OF ASSETS AND DEBTS 

If this Agreement is terminated, all Parties to this Agreement shall determine the 
disbursement of any outstanding debts and the allocation of any assets. If the Parties 
cannot agree to the disbursement of any outstanding debts and the allocation of any 
assets, the issues are to be submitted for arbitration, pursuant to state law, RCW 7.04 et 
seq. The Lead Agency and the contesting jurisdiction agree that such arbitration shall be 
conducted before one ( 1) disinterested arbitrator. 

L. DURATION 

This Agreement shall commence on the date set forth above and will continue in 
effect for one(!) year to December 31, 2014, or until superseded by another Interlocal 
Agreement. As stipulated within RCW 70.95.110(1), each Plan shall be maintained in a 
current condition and reviewed and revised periodically as may be required by the 
WDoE. Upon each review such plans shall be extended to show long-range needs for 
solid waste handling facilities for twenty (20) years in the future, and a revised 
implementation schedule and implementation budget for six (6) years in the future. 

M. REVIEW AND RENEGOTIATION 

Any Party may request a review and/or renegotiations on any provision of the 
Agreement during the six-month period immediately preceding the ending date for the 
Agreement. Such request must be made in writing to the Lead Agency and must specify 
the provision(s) of the Agreement for which review/renegotiation(s) are requested. 
Review and/or renegotiation(s) pursuant to such a written request shall be immediately 
referred to the SW AC for their review and recommendation. Notwithstanding any other 
provisions in this paragraph to the contrary, the Parties may, pursuant to the procedure 
outlined within the Solid Waste Advisory Committee Members Bylaws, modify or amend 
any provision(s) of this Agreement at any time during the term of this Agreement. 

N. TERMINATION 

This Agreement may be terminated by any Participating Jurisdiction, by written 
notice to the Lead Agency no less than thirty (30) days immediately preceding the 
implementation date of the next Solid Waste Program Budget. The Parties agree: (1) that 
the termination will not absolve a terminating Party of any financial responsibility to the 
extent a financial responsibility continues to exist pursuant to the provisions of this 

Interlocal Agreement - 2014 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

-5-105



Agreement; and (2) that prior to termination, a withdrawing City shall submit to the 
SWAC how it intends on meeting its planning obligation under RCW 70.95.080. 

0. WAIVER 

No waiver by any of the Parties of any term or condition of this Agreement shall 
be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of any other term or condition or of any 
subsequent breach whether of the same or a different provision of this Agreement. 

P. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, including the recitals and all subsequent attachments and 
addendums, constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties and shall be governed 
by the laws of the State of Washington. There are no other oral or written agreements or 
understanding between the Parties as to the subject matter contained herein. The venue 
for any action of law, suit in equity and judicial proceeding for the enforcement of this 
Agreement shall be instituted and maintained only in the courts of competent jurisdiction 
in Benton County, Washington. 

Q. SEVERABILITY 

Any provisions of this Agreement that is determined to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable for any reason shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition without 
invalidating the remainder of this Agreement. 

Interlocal Agreement- 2014 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

-6-106



FOR THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHING TON. 

Paul Warden,J'v!ayor Date 

Attest: 

Rachel Shaw, City Clerk Date 

Approved as to Form: 

Howard Saxton, City Attorney Date 

I certify that on this day of , before 
me, the undersigned Notary Public in an for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared Paul Warden and Rachel Shaw, to me known to be the J'v!ayor and 
City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Prosser, Washington, the corporation that executed the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and 
deed of said municipal corporation for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath 
stated that they are authorized to execute said instrument and that the seal affixed is the 
corporate seal of the City of Prosser. 

Witness my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written. 

Notary Public in and for the State of 
Washington residing at ______ _ 
J'v!y commission expires: -------

Interlocal Agreement - 2014 Signature Page - Prosser 
Benton County Solid Waste J'v!anagement 107



[ CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

I AGENDA BILL 
I Agenda Title: Adopt Resolution No. 14-
--- approving all specifications, plans, 
estimates, bid documents, contract 
provisions, prepared by Benton County 
pursuant to the lnterlocal Agreement 
executed on January 14, 2014, and 
accepting the lowest qualified bidder 
Granite Constructions Company bid in the 
total amount of $1,172,000.00, of which the 
City's portion is $74,312.00, and 
authorizing the Mayor to sign and execute 
any documents or contracts, if any, 
necessary for the 2014 Bituminous Surface 
Treatment Project 

Department: Director: 

Public Works I L.J. Da Corsi 
Cost of Proposal: $74,312.00 

Meeting Date: 
March 25, 2014 
Regular Meeting 

Contact Person: 

L.J. Da Corsi 

Amount Budgeted: $80,000.00 from the Transportation Benefit 
I District Fund 

1. Resolution No. 14-__ 
2. Exhibit "A" 

I Phone Number: 

. '509) 786-2332 
Account Number: 

Name and Fund# 

Transportation 
Benefit District 

3. Bid Results as submitted bv Benton Countv Public Works for 2014 
Summary Statement: 

This Resolution provides the following: 

• Benton County agrees to administer and oversee implementation of the 
bituminous surface treatment of certain City streets as defined in Exhibit "A" 

• The selection of a contract is in accordance with all federal, state, and local laws 
and bidding requirements 

• The City of Prosser approves all specifications, plans, estimates, bid documents, 
and contract provisions 

• The lnterlocal Agreement defining responsibilities of the County and City has 
been approved bv Benton Countv and the Citv of Prosser 

108



• The Public Works Director has recommended approval of said bid award for the 
2014 Bituminous Surface Treatment Project 

\ .Qonsistent with or Comparison to: 

jBecommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 
i 

Adopt Resolution No. 14-__ _ 

Reviewed by Department Reviewed by City Attorney: 

~(. 
Date: J'ft &/If' 
Today's'Date: 

March 18, 2014 

Approved by Mayor: 

tJt!~ 
Date: -2 f- l'f 
File Name and Path: 

109



CITY OF PROSSER, W ASIDNGTON 
RESOLUTION NO. 14----

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF PROSSER APPROVING ALL SPECIFICATIONS, 
PLANS, ESTIMATES, BID DOCUMENTS, CONTRACT 
PROVISIONS PREPARED BY BENTON COUNTY 
PURSUANT TO THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
EXECUTED ON JANUARY 14, 2014, AND ACCEPTING 
THE LOWEST QUALIFIED BIDDER GRANITE 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BID IN THE TOTAL 
AMOUNT OF $1,172,000.00, OF WHICH THE CITY'S 
PORTION IS $74,312.00, AND AUTHORIZES THE 
MAYOR TO SIGN AND EXECUTE ANY DOCUMENTS 
OR CONTRACTS, IF ANY, NECESSARY FOR THE 2014 
BITUMINOUS SURFACE TREATMENT PROJECT 

WHEREAS, Benton County agrees to administer and oversee implementation of the 
bituminous surface treatment of certain city streets as defined in Exhibit "A", attached 
hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, and 

WHEREAS, the selection of a contract is in accordance with all federal, state, and local 
laws and bidding requirements, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser approves all specifications, plans, estimates, bid 
documents, and contract provisions, and 

WHEREAS, an Interlocal Agreement defining the responsibilities of the County and 
the City has been approved by Benton County and the City of Prosser, and 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Director has recommended approval of said Bid Award 
for the 2014 Bituminous Surface Treatment Project, NOW, 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Bid Awai·d, pursuant to the Interlocal 
Agreement between the City of Prosser and Benton County for the 2014 Bituminous 
Surface Treatment Project, is hereby approved and the Mayor is authorized to sign and 
execute any documents or contracts, if any, necessary for the project. 

ADOPTED by the City Council. of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the Mayor 
of the City of Prosser this day of , 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

110



ATTEST: 

RACHEL SHAW, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

=:;;;? 
HOWARD SAXTON, CITY ATTORNEY 

111



EXHIBIT "A" 

CITY OF PROSSER 
2014 BITUMINOUS SURFACE TREATMENT PROJECT 

Designated Locations 

BROWN from Myrtle to Bennett 

COURT STREET from Myrtle to Bennett Avenue 

MAIN STREET from Park to Dudley 

GUERNSEY from Park to Dudley 

DUDLEY from Bennett to Guernsey 

PROSSER from Brown to Bennett 

YAKIMA from Brown to Market 

112



t.NGINEER'S 

LO~AflQN BENTON COUN IY COMPANY ASl'HALl, INC GRAVEL, !NC 2131. N Be-d1 Road ESTIMATE 

LEl DY BOARD OF CQ\JMf f COMt11SSIOtH:.l"lS 60 Pond Road p O Box 939 O Box 9337 P()St Fal!s, !D 83-654 

PROJECT· cE1970 PRES .as-r 2014=""--~-=-===-J GAAN!1-E co~sr;uc:r;m;J CENTRAL WASH~G10N-~ 

!DAI! _ _Lebri,ary 11 2Q_1i__~l I' _!--9_,;at ],rr e _ Yakima, WA 98901 _ Moses Lake.L.WA_~--
i[l rEf,1-,--- ---- ----~ I T, I uNlT sio-lfUNn- BlD 
~.~__L- ' 1 I_~'J OESCRl!:.l'.2_1'!._.""'--- QTYUNn PRICE ~Mou1LJL£ .. !3.!GE ' AMOUNT 

_ .. _-sITUMtNOliS sURFACETREATMENT 3f8·; to #10 BENTON cOUNTY ROADS --------·------ -~---~ 

~ 
~_""'Pu~:~lg=~~-=r-AM--~--~~-_T-____ --1 

-oWMmA_A_S_P_l_IA-L :;:-&-- -1·~0E A;;A-~ 1 PA~G, !NC 

------ -· ---lL-==~=~ 

AM~~Nr ][ p~~~1~ _ [ AM~~N 1 ][]R~~TE I AM~eN 
·---,------~---- --·-----.. --~----r-----~,--.,... -----.c---·-.------------w--~-------,r---·-~-

CY. II 31.~-.l--~?I~ 22.00 i 33,5~~ . ___ ,_1.g~_ -~~--~-u 61.55 1 93,1!53.75 r-----=-

~_.,~ .00 j-2!.1~~00 --

"" 75 --~~43.75 

-.. -'--.1-·· 05. rHr\Ll cRs-2r .· ~_L.262.oo__j TON -1~ _.,..-~~~,?~« '120.oti j -eoe,0;10.00 Jl---2-1.~:.2.0_~-- 9022_30.-uu_H--~~ t6u.osi_ I a32,e20.oo lr·-~.:..-
MINERAL AGGREG.A l E FROM Sl OCKPILE 

, ___ L... ~~L7 FOR B.S.i_ (3!8" TO #10) l,525.~ 

MlNERALAGGHEGA\E HtOM STOGKP!LE ----
JJ.-----.--" SITESP-'.3~f-ORB.S.T.(318"10#!l?_L 7,060.00 C.Y.__,j~--?J.:·~- ~~8,26~ ~" 71'; 1 146.4%.00 J!l:.~J-__221,oao.oo Jl._ .. 2:?~ .. -~.440,-~~l-----s?.20 1- 262.632.00 !-~--

1--·---~~-.J--~f:!.!ED SK!P §l~E YE_~~j ___ ~E.:_~j M\LE j[~~--3.221~g_ 125.00 l 3,661.251~!9~- ·~~ --~ ' 
. 3,134.o~t~~~. 3,01s.4s II ''"·"" l ~.125.75 

9, 158.80 300.00 ~""""I H 448.50 II ---
-----~~-H ___ .zas.oo ! ...... __ ~,~l~~?_t_ .. __ 9,t58so., ---·-- -ir_ s ! PAINTEo"souosrn1Pg~9w I 32.71 ! M!!:~JL~o-

---
PA!NTE~J?l~~!fE WHlrE --1 41.$7 / MlLE /~~:9._~J ____ 11,723.60 . 300.00 / 12.se1.ool/ zas.oo / _------11J~~~j______3Bo.Oo j ------1.!J~ 3~0.00 J 14,654.SOJj ____ ~ ------

' ···---- 58,400.00 It J~·p Sum J __ JO,ot~! Lump Su1_1~·-'-_75.000.D~f-----f--·-- --II ~IC coN1 FOL __ ------IJ:~P Sum_j_l-;~W:.~-§-~_rr~-~-- 5o,ooq_._o_~~lJ:urnp Sun:..__.i ___ 75,000.o_~J~i_ip Sui~: 
SPILL PREVENflON, CONT!~Ol and 

;~__Jl____j_ .•. COUNTER MEASURES (SPCC) PlAN 

TOTAL BENTON COUNTY ROADS 
_!..ump Sum! LS. l~.J:.ump Sum J _____ l.'!,38.7..?Jl Lump surn ~.:££JI- Lurnp Sum _L _____ soo.oo \ Lump Sum I --~11 Lun>2.~-- 500.0011-L\Jrnp Suut 

1,097,68B.QO !I 1, 170,805.25 I 1, 196,234.33 1,283,873.60 1, 199,817 .50 

BITUMINOUS SURFACE TREATMENT 3/8" to #10 CITY OF PROSSER STREETS 

.: . i -~·,"··-- __ 69.E£. -~o·F-~ ··± ."':r- ~-FUHNIS!lANO l'LACE \l!NEHAL 

__ 10 AG~lEGA!EJ:£HBS r ~"' !o_'.1_1_0t 408.00 ~ ~400 __ 28112...Q_Q_jJ :.HOO 

11---....J_i _____ 1~Ff~CC0tHRO_I___ Lv'.'.P.Sum ..J::...~ Lump~l_!_m __ 3~_2__ lwnµSun 

TOTAL CITY OF PROSSER 74,312 00 

s1,ooo.oo 11 770.00 ~_pp,oo -~ 40,800.00 730.00 43,800.00 

1s.09s.oo 11 55.00 __ ?_2,440.00 '10.00 28,560.00 54.00 ___ 2?_:9~~:£9. 

_9,500.00 II-Lump~~~!-' __ SJ00.00 Lump ~:!!!.I 7,~l'.._0.00 L~np Sl.Jm __ 12,000.oq II Lump Sum 

75,596.00 74,340.00 77,160.00 77,832.00 

GRAND TOTAL 1, 172,000.00 1,246,401.25 1,270,574.33 1,361,033.60 1,277,649.50 

113



I CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Adopt Ordinance 14 - __ Meeting Date: 
Allowing Persons 21 Years of Age and March 25, 2014 
Older to operate WA TVs on Public Streets Regular Meeting 
Having a Speed Limit of 35 Miles per Hour 
or Less. 

, Degartment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
I Admin Paul Warden Paul Warden (509) 786-8216 

Cost of ProQosal: Account Number: 
$0 n/a 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
$0 n/a 

Reviewed by Finance De!:)artment: 

Tugmt-~ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

! 
1. Proposed Ordinance 14 -__ 

~
mmarv Statement: 

the March 4, 2014, Council Work Session staff brought forward a proposed 
rdinance for consideration allowing WA TVs on public streets within City limits. Council 

' directed staff to correct some typos and bring that Ordinance back for Council 
consideration. Attached is the revised Ordinance. 

Consistent with or Comgarison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

I 
' Adopt Ordinance 14 - __ Allowing Persons 21 Years of Age and Older to operate 

WA TVs on Public Streets Havinq a Speed Limit of 35 Miles per Hour or Less 
Reviewed by City Attorney: 

i ·-:;::::; 
Date::JJ?J//,/,, 

ii.l/27~ 
-'2/_,f <-t Date: 

Reviewed by Department 

,/J/~ 
l Date: 7,-2J-/4. 
Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

l March 20, 2014 

114



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

AN ORDINA.1'/CE ALLOWING DRIVERS 21 YEARS AND OLDER TO 
OPERATE WHEELED ALL-TERRAIN VEHICLES ON CITY STREETS 
WITH A SPEED LIMIT OF 35 MILES PER HOUR OR LESS BY 
ENACTING CHAPTER 10.60 OF THE CITY OF PROSSER MUNICIPAL 
CODE. THE ORDINANCE ALSO SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE 
DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES THAT ITS PROVISIONS 
ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDES FOR 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

WHEREAS, RCW 35A.ll.020 and RCW 35A.12.190 authorize the City Council to 
adopt ordinances of all kinds to regulate its municipal affairs and appropriate to the good 
government of the City; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Prosser ("City") is a non-charter code City duly incorporated 
and operating under the laws of the State of Washington; and; and 

WHEREAS, On June 28, 2013, the Washington House of Representatives passed ESHB 
1632 by a vote of 81-11; and 

WHEREAS, On June 29, 2013, the Washington Senate passed ESHB 1632 by a vote of 
39-5; and 

WHEREAS, On July 3, 2013, Washington's Governor signed ESHB 1632; and 

WHEREAS, On July 28, 2013, ESHB became effective law; and 

WHEREAS, in passing ESHB 1632, the legislature intend to: (a) Increase opportunities 
for safe, legal, and envirorunentally acceptable motorized recreation; (b) decrease the amount of 
unlawful or envirorunentally harmful motorized recreation; (c) generate funds for use in 
maintenance, signage, education, and enforcement of motorized recreation opportunities; ( d) 
advance a culture of self-policing and abuse intolerance among motorized recreationists; (e) 
cau.se no change in the policies of any governmental agency with respect to public land; (f) not 
change any current ORV usage routes; (g) stimulate rural economies by opening certain 
roadways to use by motorized recreationists which will in turn stimulate economic activity 
through expenditures on gasoline, lodging, food and drink, and other entertainment purposes; 
and (h) require all wheeled all-terrain vehicles to obtain a metal tag; and 

WHEREAS, To be consistent with the legislative intent to ESHB, the City Council of 
Prosser ("City Council") fmds that it is in the best interests of the City and its citizens to allow 
licensed drivers who have attained the age of twenty-one years to operate wheeled all-terrain 
vehicles on all City streets with speed limits of 3 5 miles per hour or less; 

115



NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section l. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.010 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.010 Definitions. 

When used in this chapter, the city defines the words and phrases listed below as 
follows: 

"City" means the City of Prosser, its elected officials, its employees, and its 
agents. 

"City street" means every way, lane, road, street, boulevard, and every way or 
place in the City open as a matter of right to public vehicular traffic inside the city 
limits. 

"Motorcycle helmet" has the same meaning as provided in RCW 46.37.530. 
"Sidewalk" means that property between the enrb lines or the lateral lines of a city 

street and the adjacent property, set aside and intended for the use of pedestrians or 
such portion of private property parallel and in proximity to a city street and 
dedicated to use by pedestrians. 

"Rnles of the road" means all the rules that apply to vehicle or pedestrian traffic 
as set forth in state statnte, rule or regulation. 

"Wheeled all-tenain vehicle" means (a) any motorized nonhighway vehicle with 
handlebars that is 50 inches or less in width, has a seat height of at least 20 inches, 
weighs less than 1,500 pounds, and has four tires having a diameter of 30 inches or 
less, or (b) a utility-type vehicle designed for and capable of travel over designated 
roads that travels on four or more low-pressure tires of 20 psi or less, has a maximum 
width less than 7 4 inches, has a maximum weight less than two thousand pounds, has 
a wheelbase of 110 inches or less, and satisfies at least one of the following: (i) Has a 
minimum width of 50 inches; (ii) has a minimum weight of at least nine hundred 
pounds; or (iii) has a wheelbase of over 61 inches. A wheeled allctenain vehicle is an 
off-road vehicle for the purposes of chapter 4.24 RCW. 

Section 2. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.020 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.020 Use of wheeled all-terrain vehicle on city streets. 

Subject the restrictions and reqllirements set f01ih in this Chapter, a person who 
has attained the age of twenty one yea.rs and who has a valid driver's license issued 
by the state of the person's residence may operate a wheeled all-tenain vehicle upon a 
city street having a speed limit of 3 5 miles per honr or Jess. 

116



Section 3. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.030 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.030 Restrictions on use of wheeled all-terrain vehicle on city streets. 

A. A person who operates a wheeled all-terrain vehicle must wear a securely 
fastened motorcycle helmet while the vehicle is in motion. 

B. A person may not operate a wheeled all-terrain vehicle upon state route 
number 22; however, a person may cross state route number 22 at a controlled 
intersection if the crossing begins and ends on a city street with a speed limit of 3 5 
miles per hour or less and occurs at an intersection of approximately 90 degrees; 

C. A person may not operate a wheeled all-terrain vehicle upon a city street with a 
speed limit in excess of 35 miles per hour; however, a person may cross a city street 
with a speed limit in excess of 35 miles per hour at a controlled intersection if the 
crossing begins and ends on a city street with a speed limit of 35 miles per hour or 
less and occurs at an intersection of approximately 90 degrees; 

D. A person may operate a wheeled all-terrain vehicle upon any city street while 
being used under the authority or direction of an appropriate agency that engages in 
emergency management, as defined in RCW 46.09.310, or search and rescue, as 
defined in RCW 38.52.010, or a law enforcement agency, as defined in RCW 
16.52.011, within the scope of the agency's official duties; and 

E. Wheeled all-terrain vehicles are subject to chapter 46.55 RCW. 

Section 4. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.010 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.040 Equipment requirements of a wheeled all-terrain vehicle. 

A wheeled all-terrain vehicle operated on a city street must comply with the 
following equipment requirements: 

A. Headlights meeting the requirements of RCW 46.37.030 and 46.37.040 and 
used at all times when the vehicle is in motion; 

B. One tail lamp meeting the requirements of RCW 46.37.525 m1d used at all 
times when the vehicle is in motion upon a city street; however, a utility-type vehicle, 
as described under RCW 46.09.310, must have two tail lamps meeting the 
requirements ofRCW 46.37.070(1) m1d to be used at all times when the vehicle is in 
motion upon a city street; 

C. A stop lmnp meeting the requirements ofRCW 46.37.200; 

D. Reflectors meeting the requirements ofRCW 46.37.060; 

E. During hours of darkness, as defined in RCW 46.04.200, turn signals meeting 
the requirements ofRCW 46.37.200; 

117



F. Outside of hours of darlmess, the operator must comply with RCW 46.37.200 
or46.61.310; 

G. A minor attached to either the right or left handlebar, which must be located to 
give the operator a complete view of the city street for a distance of at least two 
hundred feet to the rear of the vehicle; however, a utility-type vehicle, as described 
under RCW 46.09.310(19), must have two minors meeting the requirements ofRCW 
46.3 7.400; 

H. A windshield meeting the requirements ofRCW 46.37.430, unless the operator 
wears glasses, goggles, or a face shield while operating the vehicle, of a type 
conforming to rules adopted by the Washington state patrol; 

I. A horn or warning device meeting the requirem'ents ofRCW 46.37.380; 

J. Brakes in working order; 

K. A spark arrester and muffling device meeting the requirements of RCW 
46.09.470; and 

L. For utility-type vehicles, as described under RCW 46.09.310(19), seatbelts 
meeting the requirements ofRCW 46.37.510. 

M. Must have ru1 individual seat for each occupant designed to seat a person. 

Section 5. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.050 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.050 Registration requirements of a wheeled all-terrain vehicle. 

A wheeled all-tenain vehicle operated on a city street must comply with all the 
registration requirements of chapter 49.06 RCW. 

Section 6. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.060 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.060 Duty to obey traffic-control devices and rules of the road. 

Unless a police officer directs otherwise, a person operating a wheeled all-terrain 
vehicle must obey all rules of the road that apply to vehicle or pedest1ian traffic and 
must obey the instructions of official traffic-control signals, signs and other control 
devices applicable to vehicles. A person operating a wheeled all-tenain vehicle upon 
a city street is subject to all of the duties that Chapter 46.61 RCW et seq. imposes on 
an operator of a vehicle, except as to those provisions thereof which by their nature 
can have no application. 

118



Section 7. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.070 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.070' Prohibited Uses. 

A. No person may operate or ride a wheeled all-terrain vehicle in a negligent or 
unsafe manner, but must operate it with reasonable regard for his or her own safety 
and for the safety of others. 

B. No person may occupy a wheeled all-terrain vehicle unless that person is 
seated in a seat designed to carry a person. No person may tow auy devices or persons 
behind a wheeled all-terrain vehicle. 

C. No person may operate a wheeled all-terrain vehicle side-by-side in a single 
lane of'traffic. 

Section 8. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section l 0.60.080 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.080 Prohibited areas. 

A. It is unlawful to operate a wheeled all-terrain vehicle on a sidewalk or other 
area where it is unlawful to operate a motor vehicle. 

B. It is unlawful to operate a wheeled all-terrain vehicle in a park, except on a 
park drive or in a designated parking lot. 

C. It is unlawful to operate a wheeled all-terrain vehicle on auy bicycle trail or 
walking path or in any bicycle lane. 

Section 9. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.090 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.090 Violation - Penalty. 

A person who violates a provision of this chapter is guilty of a traffic infraction 
and will be punished by the in1position of a monetary penalty not to exceed $250.00, 
exclusive of statutory assessments; provided, that conduct that constitutes a criminal 
offense may be charged as such and is subject to the maximum penalties allowed for 
such offenses. 

119



Section 10. The City Cotmcil enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.990 to read 
as follows. 

10.60.990 Severability. 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, paragraph, phrase, or word of this chapter 
should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or nnconstitutionality thereof shall not affect the validity or constitntionality of any 
other section, subsection, sentence, clause, paragraph, phrase or word of this chapter. 

Section 11. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared 
to be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
the remainder ofthis ordinance shall not as a result of said section, sentence, clause, or phrase be 
held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 12. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after passage and publication of 
an approved snnunary thereof consisting of the title. 

PASSED by the City Conncil and APPROVED by the Mayor, this __ day of 
-------' 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

Approved as to form: 
c ....,,,,,.-/ 

rrrv ~v uou1 A -on<> A VTON 

Date of Publication: ______ _ 

120



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the __ day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordinance No. . A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the 
title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE ALLOWING DRIVERS 21 YEARS Al';'D OLDER TO OPERATE 
WHEELED ALL-TERRAIN VEHICLES ON CITY STREETS WITH A SPEED LIMIT OF 35 
MILES PER HOUR OR LESS BY ENACTING CHAPTER 10.60 OF THE CITY OF 
PROSSER MUNICIPAL CODE. THE ORDINANCE ALSO SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE 
DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE 
SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDES FOR PUBLICATION BY 
SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this __ day of , 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

121



I CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
I Agenda Title: Adopt Ordinance No. 14-_ Meeting Date: ---1 

I decreasing the imprest funds or petty cash March 25, 2014 
. for the City of Prosser and identifying its Regular Meeting 
i distribution. 

I Department; I Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 

I Finance '"'_._l:::na Mauras Regina Mauras (509) 786-8225 

] Cost of Proposal: Account Number: 
n/a l Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
n/a 

f Reviewed by Finance Department: 

l~oaM_~--
~nts to Agenda Packet Item: 

I 1. Proposed Ordinance 14-__ 

-------j 

I 

Summarv Statement: 

This proposed Ordinance decreases the City of Prosser imprest or petty cash funds. 
Imprest or petty cash funds are typically used for the purposes of starting till cash and for 
making change throughout the day. Although, in rare situations, the funds can be used to 
make small emergency purchases such as postage for important mailings when the 
postage machine needed repair. In these circumstances, the cost of the purchase (for 
example stamps) would be brought before City Council to replenish the imprest or petty 
cash funds used. 

The proposed ordinance decreased petty cash because the Police Department has ; 
determined that they no longer have need for it. The $500 allocated to the Department · 

I has already been returned and it is now necessary to update this ordinance 

I 
memor'1alizing t~e return of the cash a-~d reducing the a_m_o_u_n_1_a_11_o_c_a_te_d_. ______ -t 

, Consistent with or Comparison to: 

I EXl~~ING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, P~LICIES OR ACTION~ TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Adopt Ordinance No. 14- decreasing the imprest funds or petty cash for the L City of Prosser and identifying its distribution. 

122



Reviewed by Department 
1
1 
Director: 

1~~1>, Ur~ 
I Date: 'D· l.l · 'lD 1LI: 
I Today's Dafe: 

I 
I March 10, 2014 

Reviewed by City Attorney: I Approved by Mayor: 

Date: 3/jq 
Revision Numb~r/ 

1~i~~'I 
File Name and Path: I 

__ j __ 

123



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON, 
REPEALING ORDINANCE NUMBER 13-2824 AND REPEALING 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 08-2594 AND ESTABLISHING AN IMPREST 
(CHANGE AND PETTY CASH) FUNDS FOR CITY HALL AND FOR 
THE PROSSER AQUATIC CENTER. THE ORDINANCE PROVIDES 
THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE SHALL BE 
SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND ALSO SETS FORTH THE 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDING FOR 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

WHEREAS, Ordinances 13-2824 and 08-2594 established imprest funds for the City 
Ha!I, including the swimming pool and the Police Department; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser no longer requires imprest funds for use at the Prosser 
Police Department. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, 
W ASIIINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Ordinances 13-2824 and 08-2594 are hereby repealed. 

Section 2. There is hereby created and established a change and imprest fund within the 
General Fund (Fund Number 00 I) to be designated as the "petty cash fund". The City Finance 
Director shall be the custodian of the petty cash fund. $650.00 is authorized for the petty cash 
li.md. Expenditures from the fund may be made by the petty cash fund custodian for the purposes 
approved and authorized by the City Council All such expenditures shall be reimbursed in the 
like amount to the fund. The Finance Director is authorized to adopt policies and procedures for 
the implementation of this Ordinance and the auditing of the fund. 

Section 3. The petty cash fund shall be distributed as follows: 

$450.00 to the City Hall Cash Drawers as a change fund. 

$200.00 to the Prosser Aquatic Center as a change fund for the Prosser Aquatic Center. 

Section 4. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be severable. If any 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its application to any person 
or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of this 
ordinance shall not as a result of said section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase be held 
unconstitutional or invalid. 

124



Section 5. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after passage and publication of 
an approved summary thereof consisting of the title. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor, this __ day of 

-------' 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

Approved as to fonn: 

c ~ 
c -

CITY ATTORNEY, HOW ARD SAXTON 

Date of Publication: -----

125



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 
of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the _ day of _____ , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordinance No, ------ A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the 
title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON, 
REPEALING ORDINANCE 13-2824 AND PROVIDING FOR IMPREST 
(CHANGE AND PETTY CASH) FUNDS FOR CITY HALL AND PROSSER 
AQUATIC CENTER. THE ORDINAc"i'CE ALSO SETS FORTH THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES THAT THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE SHALL BE SEVERABLE FROM ONE 
ANOTHER. 

The foll text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request 

DATED this ___ day ----·--·--·-' 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

126



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Discuss and Potentially take [ Meeting Date: 
action to adopt Ordinance 14 - I March 25, 2014 

, amending Prosser Municipal Code 2.95 I Regular Meeting 
Regarding the Use of Credit Cards. 

I De12artment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
I Finance Regina Mauras Toni Yost (509) 786-8225 

I 
\ Cost of Pro12osal: Account Number: 

I n/a 

\ Amount Budgeted: 
[ n/a 

Name and Fund# 
I 

I 
[ Reviewed by Finance Department: 

\9~~ 
Attacents to Agenda Packet Item: 

I 
1. Proposed Ordinance 14-__ 
2. Redline Ordinance showing changes 

Summary Statement: 

Currently, staff is working with the State of Washington to obtain both credit cards and 
fuels cards. The attached ordinance has been drafted to allow for the use of both cards. 

I Consistent with or Com12arison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

[ Reviewed by De12artment 
Director: 

l~ffic-~ 

I Reviewed by Citv Attorney: !.~··Aroved by Mayo. r: 
I I (/ H ----===--~·---'")----r. ~ v ~ 

' 3 {JC I 

Today's Date: 
Date: <//W ~ 

1 

Date: -?_, ~t v ~ 
umrrie: File Name and Path: I 

Date: '.) ·::u: 1-0 l 

March 13, 2014 

127



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, AND 9 OF 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 08-2596 AND PROSSER MUNICIPAL CODE 
SECTIONS 2.95.010, 2.95.020, 2.95.030, 2.95.050, 2.95.060, AND 2.95.070 TO 
ALLOW EMPLOYEES WHO ARE NOT APPOINTED OFFICERS TO 
USE CITY CREDIT CARDS AND MAKING OTHER MINOR CHANGES 
TO THE REGULATIONS REGARDING THE USE OF CITY CREDIT 
CARDS. THE ORDINANCE ALSO DECLARES THAT THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE 
ANOTHER AND SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE 
ORDINANCE AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

WHEREAS, the State of Washington has contracted with a credit card vendor for credit 
card services; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the State credit card contract, the City can receive rebates 
calculated based on the use of the credit card services and these rebates could be a financial 
benefit to the City; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to clearly define the use and administration of the City's 
credit cards; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Section 3 of Ordinance Number 08-2596 and Prosser Mnillcipal Code Section 
2.95.010 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

2.95.010 Purpose. 

The purpose of this chapter shall be to set forth the policy of the city of Prosser, 
Washington, for the use of credit cards by elected officials, appointed officers, and city 
employees. This chapter shall be interpreted to provi_de for the use of credit cards by authorized 
persons to the fullest extent allowed by RCW 43.09.2855 and 42.24.115. 

Section 2. Section 4 of Ordinance Number 08-2596 and Prosser Municipal Code Section 
2.95.020 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

2.95.020 Distribution of Credit Cards 

City elected officers, city appointed officers, and employees of the city are authorized to 
use credit cards for official government travel and purchases. The credit cards issued may be 
ones that accrue airline miles or rebates at no extra cost. All earned flyer miles or rebates shall be 
used for city of Prosser business purposes only. 

128



Section 3. Section 5 of Ordinance Number 08-2596 and Prosser Municipal Code Section 
2.95.030 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

2.95.030 Authorized use of Credit Cards 

Elected officials. appointed officers and employees who are issued cards are authorized 
to use credit cards for the following purchases and travel related expenses: 

(A) Fuel (for city owned vehicles), supplies, copies, equipment and other official city 
purchases and acquisitions. 

(B) Registrations for training seminars and related conferences. 

(C) Travel and training expenses inclnding deposits to hold rooms, lodging, airline 
tickets, parking and gasoline. 

Section 4. Section 7 of Ordinance Number 08-2596 and Prosser Municipal Code Section 
2.95.050 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

2.95.050 Prohibited Use of Credit Cards 

The following uses for credit cards issued in accordance with this chapter are prohibited: 

(A) Cash advances of any natme. 

(B) Personal purchases. 

(C) The purchase of meals associated with business travel or business meetings. Food 
which is purchased as part of a general gathering or buffet is acceptable. 

Section 5. Section 8 of Ordinance Number 08-2596 and Prosser Municipal Code Section 
2.95.060 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

2.95.060 Accounting of Credit Card Charges. 

City elected officials, appointed officers, and city employees shall forward detailed 
receipts for authorized purchases to the Finance Director within seven business days after the 
credit card is used by the person. The Finance Director is authorized to make administrative 
policies to implement this section. If detailed receipts are not snbmitted on a timely basis, the 
city shall have a prior lien against and a right to withhold any and all funds payable to the elected 
official, appointed officer, or employee in the amouut of the pmchase, interest, and any 
associated fees or penalties charged by the company which issued the credit card for the period 
of time that the charges were not paid. The Finance Director will pay all submitted charges on a 
monthly basis. 

129



Section 6. Section 9 of Ordinance Number 08-2596 and Prosser Municipal Code Section 
2.95.070 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

2.95.070 Use of Credit Cards for an Unauthorized Purpose 

The Finance Director and the city council's budget and finance committee shall review 
aud audit all credit card purchases for compliance with this chapter. Any 1mauthorized charges 
discovered during the audit shall be disallowed and shall be paid by the elected official, 
appointed officer, or employee by check, US currency, or salary deduction. If, for any reason, 
disallowed charges are not repaid before the credit card billing is due and payable, the city shall 
have a prior lien against and a right to withhold any and all funds of the disallowed charges and 
interest at the san1e rate as charged by the company which issued the credit card. In the event that 
the elected official, appointed officer, or employee disagrees with the disallowance of the claim 
he or she may submit a reqnest for reimbursement of the charge ammmt to the city council. Such 
request shall be made on forms adopted by the Finance Director. 

Section 7. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared 
to be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, sentence, clause, or phrase be 
held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 8. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after passage and publication of 
an approved summary thereof consisting of the title. 

PASSED by the City Com1cil and APPROVED by the Mayor, this __ day of 

-------' 2014. 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

Approved as to fonn: 
~-:-----·--,, 

r--- ------~ 
CITY AITOlt~EY, HOWARD SAXTON 

Date of Publication: 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

130



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the __ day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordinance No. . A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the 
title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINAJ-JCE AMENDING SECTIONS 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, AND 9 OF 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 08-2596 AND PROSSER MUNICIPAL CODE 
SECTIONS 2.95.010, 2.95.020, 2.95.030, 2.95.050, 2.95.060, AND 2 95.070 TO 
ALLOW EMPLOYEES WHO ARE NOT APPOINTED OFFICERS TO USE 
CITY CREDIT CARDS AND MAKING OTHER MINOR CHANGES TO THE 
REGULATIONS REGARDING THE USE OF CITY CREDIT CARDS. THE 
ORDINANCE ALSO DECLARES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
ORDINANCE ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND SETS 
FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDING 
FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this __ day of ____ ,2014 

CITY CLERI(, RACHEL SHAW 

131



Chapter 2.95 
,...,.,...~,~ CARD POI IC 

Sections: 

2.95.01 O Purpose. 

Distribution of credit cards. 

2.95.030 Authorized use of credit cards. 

Credit card limits. 

2.95.050 Prohibited uses of the credit cards. 

Accounting of credit card charges. 

2.95.070 Use of credit card for an unauthorized purpose. 

Severability. 

2.95.010 

The purpose of this chapter shall be to set forth the policy of the city of Prosser, Washington, for the use of 

credit cards by elected officials af!G, appointed officers, and city employees. This chapter shall be interpreted 

to provide for the use of credit cards by authorized persons to the fullest extent allowed by RCW 43 09.2855 

and (Ord. 2596 § 3, 2008). 

2.95.020 SHARE 

City elected officers, city appointed officers, and employees of the city are authorized to use credit 

cards for official government travel and purchases. Credit cards mav tie issued tn eleG!ed officialr ann 

those officers appointed under Prosser Municipal Code ~ection 2.01.010(/\)(1 ), (3), (4 ), (5), (6) and (7), lly the 

ITTayor or lly the city adITTinistrator under direction of the ITTayor. The credit cards issued may be ones that 

accrue airline miles at no extra cost. All earned flyer miles or rebates shall be used for city of Prosser 

business only. toward airline licl<ets associated with training for eITTployees, officers, or electe9 officials. (Ord. 

2596 § 4, 2008). 

2.95.030 Authorized use of credit cards. SHARE'. 

Elected officials aoo, appointed officers and employees who are issued credit cards are authorized to use credit 

cards for the following purchases and travel-related expenses: 

A. Fuel (for city-owned vehicles), supplies, copies, equipment and other official city purchases and 

acquisitions only if a purchase order cannot Ile issued or an open charge account is not availaille. Charges 

132



unEler this seotion shall not e"oeeEI two thousand Elollars per item without the prior approval of the oily 

adminislratGF, 

B. Registrations for training seminars and related conferences. 

C. Travel and training expenses including deposits to hold rooms, lodging, airline tickets, meals (except 

alcoholic beverages), tips, parking and gasoline. (Ord. 2596 § 5, 2008). 

card limits. •·' ... ?.S'n~.~~~ 

The credit limit on each credit card issued in accordance with this chapter shall be not more than five thousand 

dollars. (Ord. 2596 § 6, 2008). 

uses the credit 

The following uses for credit cards issued in accordance with this chapter are prohibited: 

A. Cash advances of any nature. 

B. Payment of invoices or statements received by the city. (Ord. 2596 § 7, 2008). 

C. The purchase of meals associated with business travel or business meetings. Food which is 

purchased as part of general gathering or buffet is acceptable. 

of card 

City elected officials "" appointed officers and city employees shall forward detailed receipts for authorized 

purchases to the city clerk/finance director within seven business days after the credit card is used by such 

person. ~finance director is authorized to make administrative policies to implement this section. If 

detailed receipts are not submitted on a timely basis, the city shall have a prior lien against and a right to 

withhold any and all funds payable to the elected official er, appointed officer or employee in the amount of the 

interest charged by the company which issued the credit card for the period of time that the charges were not 

paid. The oily olerl<lfinance director will pay all submitted charges on a monthly basis. (Ord. 2596 § 8, 2008). 

2.95.070 Use of credit card for an 

The oitv clerk/finance director and the city council's budget and finance committee shall audit all credit card 

purchases for compliance with this chapter. Any unauthorized charges discovered during the audit shall be 

disallowed and shall be paid by the elected official Sf, appointed officer or employee by check, U.S. currency, 

or salary deduction. If, for any reason, disallowed charges are not repaid before the credit~ card billing is 

133



due and payable, the city shall have a prior lien against and a right to withhold any and all funds payable of the 

disallowed charges and interest at the same rate as charged by the company which issued the credit 

card or io become payable to the elected o#ieial or appointed officer, er empleyee "P to an amo"ni of !Re 

disallowed charges and interest at the same rate as charged by the company which iss"ed the charge card. In 

the event that the elected official m, appointed officer, or employee disagrees with the disallowance of the 

claim he or she may submit a request for reimbursement of the charged amount to the city council. Such 

request shall be made on forms adopted by the city clerk/finance director. (Ord. 2596 § 9, 2008) . 

2.95.900 .. 5.HRRE 

The provisions of this chapter are hereby declared to be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, 

clause, or phrase of this chapter or its application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of this chapter shall not as a result of said section, subsection, 

sentence, clause, or phrase be held unconstitutional or invalid. (Ord. 2596 § 10, 2008). 

134



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve various 
agreements which allow for the acceptance 
of debit/credit cards and other electronic 
payments. 

I 
Department: I Director: 
Finance I Regina Mauras 

' Amount Budgeted: n/a 

Meeting Date: 
April 8, 2014 
Regular Meeting 

Contact Person: 
Toni Yost 

, Phone Number: 
(509) 786-8215 

Account Number: 

Name and Fund# 

1. Gateway and Administrative Service Agreement with Xpress Bill Pay and BIAS 
Accounting. 

2. ODFI Originator Agreement with the City of Prosser and the Bank of American 1· 

Fork. 
3. Chase Paymentech - Merchant Application and Agreement and pricing schedules i 

(one for utility payments and one for other payment types) I 
4. Chase Setup Disclosure Authorization 
5. Bill Payment Service - Electronic Payment File with Metavante 'i· 

6. Merchant Account Retrieval System with iPay Technologies. 
7. Fiserv Electronic Check bill pay application , 
8. Online Resources Xpress Bill Pay Lockbox Pro _J 

Summarv Statement: j 

As you are aware, the Finance Department is in the midst of a financial software 
conversion to BIAS software. As part of this process we have the ability to integrate 
electronic and credit/debit card payments. 

Xpress Bill Pay is a partner with BIAS and can provide some important service ' 
improvements to our customers. The contracts provided continue of current practice of 
accepting debit/credit cards and other electronic payments over the counter, over the 
phone, or from online at no cost to our customers. As you may recall, this has been a 
popular service used by many of our customers and they are thankful for it. One 
important addition we can now add is the user based system that customers can log into, 1· 

review their bill, billing history, and make payments. 
I 

In order to implement this service the attached contracts must be approved. Here is a 1· 

summary of the purpose behind each agreement: 

135



11. Gateway and Administrative Service Agreement with Xpress Bill Pay and BIAS 
Accounting. 

This document is your agreement with both Xpress Bill Pay and BIAS 
Accounting with regards to the processing of electronic payments. It discusses 
the general terms of our partnership, the services we will be receiving, policies 
on technical support, along with the fee schedule. 

2. ODFI Originator Agreement with the City of Prosser and the Bank of American 
Fork. 
The ODFI agreement is from the Bank of American Fork. This is the bank that 
Xpress Bill Pay use to process the ACH transactions through the Federal 
Reserve. This agreement is in place primarily between Xpress Bill Pay and the 
Bank of American Fork but the NACHA rules require the City sign a copy as 
notification that you are aware of this relationship and the agreements in place 
between Xpress Bill Pay and the bank .. 

3. Chase Paymentech Merchant Application, Agreement, Pricing, and Disclosure 
Authorization 
While we will use Xpress Bill Pay to enter in the credit/debit card payments, 
Chase Bank will process the payments. The attached application, agreement, 
disclosure, and pricing relate to the services they provide us as the processer of 
the transactions. · 

4. The last four contracts are for bank bill pay electronic conversion services. As 
part of Xpress Bill Pay's services, they provide electronic conversion of on line 
banking payments, referred to commonly as bank bill pay. When a customer 
makes a payment to the City of Prosser via their online banking system we would 
most likely be currently receiving a paper check in relation to that payment. 
These four (4) applications will allow for the electronic conversion with the main 
processors of online banking payments. They cover approximately 80% of all 
online banking payments and Xpress Bill Pay's relationship with them allows for 
the removal of paper checks and conversion to electronic payments through their 
system. Although they all look different, each of the applications are essentially 
the same. 

o Bill Payment Service - Electronic Payment File with Metavante 
o Merchant Account Retrieval System with iPay Technologies. 
o Fiserv Electronic Check bill pay application 
o Online Resources Xpress Bill Pay Lockbox Pro 

Once these services are implemented, staff will begin the process to terminate contracts 
with our current credit/debit card service providers. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

! Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

1. Approve Gateway and Administrative Service Agreement with Xpress Bill Pay 
and BIAS Accounting. 

2. Aoorove ODFI Orioinator Aqreement with the Citv of Prosser and the Bank of 

136



American Fork. 
3. Approve Chase Paymentech -Application and Agreement and Pricing 

Schedules. 
4. Approve Chase Setup Disclosure Authorization. 
5. Approve Bill Payment Service - Electronic Payment File with Metavante 
6. Approve Merchant Account Retrieval System with iPay Technologies. 
7. Approve Fiserv Electronic Check bill pay application 
8. Approve Online Resources Xpress Bill Pay Lockbox Pro 

I
, Reviewed by Department 

Director: 

I 
i~~V'i\~ ilcwn.o.D 

' Date: :'.i·V· 2Dl'f 
Today's Date: 

March 18, 2014 

Reviewed by City Attorney: Approved by Mayor: 

~U~~ 
--z (;._I y 

.~::7) 
Date: --'3 J J f J/ Date: 
Revision Nurribef/Date: File Name and Path: 

137



innovative 1nternet!!!lye!JY" I 
F 

Gateway and Administrative Service Agreement 

This Gateway and Administrative Service Agreement is entered into this 15 day of October, 2013, by and between 
Xpress Solutions, Inc. ("Xpress"), BIAS Accounting ("BIAS") and City of Prosser, WA ("Customer") upon such terms 

and conditions as are set forth below. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and the receipt of consideration, 

the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1.0 Initial Term: The Initial Term of this Agreement shall be thirty six (36) months from the date of this 

Agreement. 

2.0 Renewals: This Agreement shall be automatically renewable for an additional twelve (12) months at 

the end of the Initial Term or any subsequent renewal term by the Customer upon the receipt by 
Xpress of the applicable Fees and under the same terms and conditions set forth herein, so long as 

the Customer is not and has not been in default in any term of this Agreement. If Customer is a 
political subdivision, the Parties agree that an automatic renewal cannot occur if Customer's 

governing board does not budget for payment of the Fees set forth in Section 3.0 in any given fiscal 

year·of Customer. 

3.0 Fees: BIAS shall pay to Xpress a one-time setup and configuration fee for each new customer that 

BIAS adds. The customer shall pay monthly maintenance, support, and hosting fees, and various 

transaction fees as set forth in Exhibit A Pricing Schedule (collectively the "Fees"). Xpress reserves the 
right to change fees at any time so long as Customer is provided no less than 30 days advance notice 

of a change. 

4.0 Payment of Fees: BIAS and their resale customer authorizes Xpress to initiate an electronic ACH debit 
entry from Customer's bank account provided in Exhibit B on or about the 5th of each month for the 

amount of al! Fees that accrued during the prior month for any service, support, or maintenance Fee 

that is due as described in Exhibit A. If there are insufficient funds in Customer's account to cover the 
debit, or if the debit is rejected for any reason, Xpress will contact customer for resolution which will 

include resubmission up to 3 times. Customer agrees to pay any returned item fees assessed by 
Xpress' bank for any such return. Any outstanding Fees that are not paid when due shall bear interest 

at the rate of 18% per annum until the outstanding balance and all accrued interest are paid in fu!!. 

BIAS's resale Customer shall handle all charge back, stop payments, and other such payment issues 
that arise. 

5.0 Services Provided: Xpress will provide BIAS with an Electronic and Internet Payment System to be 
resold by BIAS to merchants who wish to offer online bill payment services to their customers. Xpress 

has developed an application to facilitate the processing and deposit of Lockbox payments sent 
directly to Xpress on behalf of Customer's account holders (the "End Users"). Xpress has developed 

an application to receive and repair all data errors from customer initiated online banking payments, 
and delivers them to Customer in an electronic format. Xpress acts as a Payment Gateway and Third 

Party Processor for Customer's account holders to make payments. Xpress will provide the EFT and 

Lockbox services directly using their established banking relationships. Customer authorizes Xpress to 
endorse checks and other payment items on behalf of Customer for deposit into an Xpress deposit 
account, and deposlt funds as necessary for the clearing of payments received for Customer. Xpress 

will facilitate the acquisition of the necessary Merchant Service accounts for credit card. Only 

Merchant Service accounts and electronic funds transfer accounts that are certified by Xpress may be 
used. 

1 of 9 

138



6.0 Licensee Suoport Services and Service Levels: BIAS will provide technical support services, including 
telephone, email (seven days a week), or other technology support implemented by Xpress, from 
8:00 am to 5:00 pm (PST or PDT) for customers within the continental United States. The maximum 
response time for service shall not exceed 5:00 pm (Licensee local time) of the next business day 
following the request for service by Customer. 

7.0 Software or Hardware: BIAS will not rece'1ve any hardware or software from Xpress under this 
Agreement. Customer will use its own computers and agrees to have Internet services through an 
Internet Service Provider. Customer agrees that the computers it uses will have sufficient memory 
and capacity to run at least Internet Explorer 7 or Mozilla Fire Fox 10.0. 

8.0 Technical Support and Problem Resolution Policies: Xpress will provide telephone technical support 
for BIAS. Only those problems related to services provided by Xpress should be referred to Xpress, 
which will be assigned a cal! tracking number. Calls are processed in the order in which they are 
received. Under no circumstances is it appropriate for BIAS to provide their resale Customers or 
end users with the Xpress toll-free support phone numbers. If Xpress receives calls as described 
above, Xpress will bill BIAS for standard time and materials as referenced in paragraph 6.0 above. 

9.0 Billing Information: BIAS warrants that it or its resale Customer wi!! provide Xpress with relevant 
billing information, to be used in the bill payment product, for End Users accounts that this service 
has been resold for. BIAS agrees to indemnify and hold Xpress harmless from any claim or liability 
relating to any inaccuracy in Billing Information provided to Xpress. 

9.0 Record Keeping. BIAS agrees to keep full and accurate records of its customer's utilization of Xpress 
services and of the transactions giving rise to Billing Information for at least three {3) years after the 
date of the relevant transaction. BIAS understands that Xpress will be required to participate in 
certain audits in connection with the credit card and electronic funds transfer services provided by 
Xpress. BIAS agrees to cooperate with Xpress in the performance of such audits on its customers, 
including providing information required in the course of such audits. 

10.0 Compliance. BIAS and their resale Customer warrants that all products and services offered, sold, or 
provided by Customer are offered, sold, or provided in compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations. Customer agrees to comply with Xpress's Acceptable Use Policy as required by the 
Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI DSS) as provided in Exhibit C. Xpress will meet or 
exceed a!! applicable compliance requirements as required by current and future Payment Card 
Industry (PCI) rules of operation as well as the Operating Rules of the National Automated Clearing 
House Association (NACHA). 

11.0 Termination. This agreement may be terminated by either party upon not less than ninety (90) days 
written notice to the other party specifying.the effective date thereof. In the event this Agreement is 
terminated by BIAS or its resale Customer through no fault of Xpress, Xpress shall be paid for all 
services performed up to the date of termination. 

12.0 Litigation/Attorney Fees: The parties agree that any dispute between them requiring litigation
whether or not arising under this Agreement- shall only be commenced and determined within the 
State of Utah. Each party will be responsible for their own costs incurred for any litigation. 

13.0 Genera! Provisions. This Agreement and the exhibits hereto constitute the entire understanding and 
agreements among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and there are no other 
agreements or understandings among the parties other than those contained herein. In the event 
any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, the same shall not affect in any respect 
the validity of the remainder of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced 
under the laws of the State of Utah. This Agreement may not be amended nor may any rights 
hereunder be waived except by an instrument in writing signed by the party sought to be charged 
with such amendment or waiver. 

2 of 9 

139



14.0 Indemnification. Xpress agrees to indemnify and hold BIAS, its officers, employees, representatives 
and agents harmless from any loss, claims, causes of action or demands, including attorneys' fees and 
costs of defense arising out of {i) negligent or improper performance by Xpress of its obligations or 
work pursuant to this Agreement, (ii) any claim that the services provided by Xpress hereunder 
infringes or violates any third party's copyright, patent, trade secret, or trademark, or other 
intellectual property right; or (iii) any actual, alleged or contributory patent or copyright 
infringement, misappropriation of Confidential Information, or violation of other intellectual or 
proprietary rights related to the provision of the services hereunder. BIAS agrees to indemnify and 
hold Xpress, its officers, employees, representatives and agents harmless from any loss, claims, 
causes of action or demands, including attorneys' fees and costs of defense arising out of negligent or 
improper performance by Licensee of its obligations or work pursuant to this Agreement. 

15.0 Immigration Laws: Xpress shall comply with all applicable federal and state immigration laws that 
relate to its employees. A breach of this paragraph shall be deemed a material breach of this 
agreement that shall entitle Customer to terminate this Agreement. Customer may inspect Xpress' 
records to ensure compliance. 

3 of 9 

140



By signing below Xpress, BIAS and the Resale Customer shall be legally bound and agree to the terms of this 
Agreement and all of its Attachments. 

Accepted by: Accepted by: 

Xpress Solutions Inc. City of Prosser 

BY: ____ -+-------~ BY: ____________ _ 

(Authorized l>ignature} (Authorized Signature} 

Paul Grinceri 

(Print or Type Name) (Print or Type Name) 

TITLE: Operations Manager TITLE: ___________ _ 

DATE: 02/13/14 DATE: ___________ _ 

Accepted by: 

BIAS Software 

BY: ____________ _ 
(Authorized Signature) 

Mark Felchlin 

(Print or Type Name} 

TITLE: President 

DATE: ___________ _ 

4 of 9 

141



EXHIBIT A 

PRICING SCHEDULE 

The below fees are applicable for customers who will be utilizing the following solution: 

Xpress Bill Pay branded on line bill pay on line and reporting system 

Non Recurring Fees 

1. Initial Setup Configuration and Development 

Online Payment Module 
Auto Pay module 
Card sw·1pe Module 

2. Training 

Recurring Fees 

3. Gateway Fees: 
Credit Card Processing (per transaction) 
Bank Bill Pay (per transaction) 
EFT Online Payments (per transaction) 

EFT Returned Item 
(Invalid account number or unable to locate account) 
(NSF or Closed Account) 
(Customer Stop Payment) 

XBP Deposit Account Withdrawals 
(6 free per month then $3.25) 

Lock Box Service (per transaction) 
Check Conversion (per transaction) 
800 Operator Assisted Payment (per successful transaction call) 
800 IVR Assisted Payments (per successful transaction call) 

4. Support & Hosting (Monthly Recurring) 
($0.015 per billing statement hosted. Minimum $75.00) 

5. Monthly Account Keeping Fee 
(Waived if you keep a $25,000.00 minimum balance in your Xpress Deposit Account) 

Additional Fees (if needed) 

6. Credit Card Swipes 

* if service is activated 

5 of 9 

See BIAS 

See BIAS 

$ 0.30 
$ 0.20 
$ 0.40 

$ 5.00 
$ 10.00 
$ 25.00 

$ 0.48 * 
$ 0.30 * 
$ 1.95 * 
$ 1.95 * 

$ 75.00 
minimum 

$ 19.00 

$ 100.00 per unit 

142



EXHIBIT B 

CUSTOMER ACCOUNT INFORMATION 

Please provide the following information regarding Customer's bank account to which the debit entries 
will be directed for the payment of the Fees: 

Name on Account: 

Account Type: 

Routing Number: 

Account Number: 

Bank Name: 

6 of 9 

143



EXHIBIT C 

ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY 

Introduction 

The Acceptable Use Policy (AUP) was created by Xpress Solutions and its subsidiaries (the "Company") to protect 

its network, including, without limitation, the products and services which the Company offers and the related 
Internet Data Center Services (as defined in the Master Services Agreement) it provides (collectively, the "Xpress 

Solutions Network"). The Company reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to interpret and apply this AUP. The 

Company reserves the right to modify this AUP at any time, effective upon posting at 
www.xpressbil!pay.com/aup.asp. Any use of the Company's Network or other services after a modification shall 

be deemed an irrevocable acceptance of such modified AUP. 

Purpose/Scope 

The purpose of this AUP is to help protect the Company's network, each of the Company's clients and third-party 

users of the Internet, generally from harassing, deceptive, irresponsible and/or illegal activities. 

The scope of this policy is all the Company's clients. 

Policy 

This AUP governs the usage of the Company's network by any person (regardless of whether that person is a 
Customer). Each person utilizing the Company network in any manner is responsible for complying with this AUP, 

and for providing assistance to the Company in furtherance of the objectives hereof, as the Company may request 
from time to time. The Company's Clients will be held solely responsible for the actions {or inactions) of any of 

their customers, downstream users, or third-party agents that use the Company's Network. 

1.1 Prohibited Actions 

It shall be prohibited by this AUP to utilize the Company network in any manner which, in the sole discretion of the 
Company, ls (A) illegal, disruptive, harassing or deceptive, or (Bl a risk to the Company's network, its stability or 
secur"1ty, or {C) inconsistent w·1th this AUP and/or the Company's Rules and Regulations and/or any rules or policies 

of upstream Company network service providers. Set forth below, is a non-exclusive list of certain actions, 

omissions, etc., which are expressly prohibited under this AUP: 

• Transmitting, distributing or storing any material in violation of applicable law, code or regulation is 

prohibited. This includes, without limitation, material protected by copyright, trademark, trade 
secret, protective order, contract, or other intellectual property right used without proper 

authorization. Also prohibited is material that is obscene, libelous, and defamatory, constitutes an 
H!ega! threat, and/or violates export control laws. 

• Sending unsolicited bulk email messages and/or other advertising material to individuals who did not 
specifically request such material. This includes, but Is not Hmited to, messages sent as email, 

"Spam," ICQ traffic, instant message traffic, GSM/GPRS data, or posting the same or similar message 
to one or more newsgroups (excessive cross-posting or multiple-posting). The Company's accounts 

or services may not be used to solicit customers from, or collect replies to, messages sent from 
another Internet Service Provider where those messages violate this AUP or the policy of the other 

provider. The Company reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to determine whether commercial 
email on the Company's Network complies with this AUP, 

• Utilizing the Company's network (or any relay, proxy or other network element in conjunction with 
the Company network) to (A) forge the signature, IP address or other identifying mark or code of any 

7 of 9 

144



other person, (B) impersonate or assume the identity or any other person, or (C) engage in any other 
activity (including 11 spoofing") to attempt to deceive or mislead other persons regarding the true 
identity of the user, including system identification information. 

• Unauthorized attempts by a user to gain access to any account or computer resource not belonging 
to that user (e.g., "hacking" or "cracking"). This includes providing, or assisting in the provision of 
names, passwords or access codes to persons not authorized to receive such materials by the 
operator of the system requiring the password or access code. 

• Obtaining or attempting to obtain service by any means or device with intent to avoid payment, 
violate policies or violate law. If a user is restricted or terminated from the Company's network, it is 
prohibited for a customer to make such services available to such user in an indirect manner. 

• Unauthorized access, alteration, destruction, or any attempt thereof, of any information of the 
Company or any of the Company's clients or end-users by any means or device. This includes any 
deliberate or other attempt or activity to distribute or post any virus, worm, Trojan horse, or 
computer code intended to disrupt services, destroy data, destroy or damage equipment, or disrupt 
the operation of the Company's network or the network of a third-party; 

• Knowingly engaging in any activlties that will cause a denial-of-service (e.g., synchronized number 
sequence attacks) to users whether on the Company's network or on another provider's network. 

• Advertising, transmitting, or otherwise making available any software, program, product, or service 
that is designed to violate this AUP or the AUP of any other Internet Service Provider, which includes, 
but is not limited to, the facilitation of the means to send e-mail spam, initiation of pinging, flooding, 
mail-bombing, denial of service attacks, and piracy of software. 

• Using the Company's network in any manner which interferes with the use of the Company's network 
by other customers or authorized users. 

• Utilize the Company's network in any manner that might subject the Company to unfavorable 
regulatory action, subject the Company to any liability for any reason, or adversely affect the 
Company's public image, reputation or goodwill, in duding, without limitation, sending or distributing 
obscene, hateful, vulgar, racially, ethnically or otherwise objectionable materials as determined by 
the Company in its so!e discretion. 

• Using the Company's network to host, access, promote or otherwise distribute any child pornography 
or obscen'1ty. 

• Causing or allowing the Company's network and/or the customer, its IP space or other elements of 
identification to be placed on so-called "SPAM Block Lists," "Spam Early Warning Systems," or other 
directories of spam or unsolicited bulk email originators and/or network abusers. It shall be 
incumbent upon each of the Company's Clients to monitor and modify their usage, and that of their 
users and customers, to insure compliance with this AUP generally, and also of this provision 
specifically. 

1.2 Enforcement 

The Company reserves the right, with or without notice, to restrict, block, modify or terminate services to any 
Client or user upon the threat or occurrence of a violation to the AUP. The Company reserves the right to 
cooperate with any court, law enforcement agency, investigator or network service provider in the investigation of 
threats to the integrity, stability, reliability and/or legality of the products and services offered by the Company 
and of any violations to the AUP. 

8 of 9 

145



1.3 Client Duties 

Each Client is obligated to assist the Company in the investigation of any threatened, alleged or actual violation of 
this AUP. The Client shall cooperate with designees of the Company in this regard. Clients of the Company are 
responsible for immediately reporting to the Company any issue which could compromise the stability, service or 
security of any user or system connected to the Company1s network. 

1.4 Client Password Policy 

The Company's clients are required to follow the payment industry's user identification (User ID) and password 
best practices to protect the Company's sensitive credit card data. Client User IDs and passwords must meet the 
following requirements: 

• User IDs must be unique to an individual and forever connected with a single user to whom it has been 
assigned. 

• User must never share their !Os and/or passwords. 

• Users must choose easily remembered passwords that are, at the same time, difficult for unauthorized 
parties to guess. 

• Passwords are required to have a minimum of seven (7) characters. 

• Passwords must meet strong password requirements. Passwords will contain both alphabetic and 
numeric characters. Passwords will also utilize upper and lower case letters and symbols. 

1.5 Reports and Complaints 

Any reports or complaints about the use or misuse of the Company's products or services should be directed to: 

Keith Jenkins, CEO 
Xpress Solutions 
387 S 520 W, Suite 110 
Lindon, UT 84042 
800-768-7295 
kljenkins@xpressbillpay.com 

1.6 Digital Millennium Copyright Act 

Xpress Solutions maintains a separate policy on the handling of complaints under the Digital Millennium Copyright 
Act, which is incorporated into this AUP hereby and which may viewed at www.xpressbillpay.com/copyright. 

1.7 Handling Charges 

The Company reserves the right to assess a handling fee, at its usual emergency project labor rate, to respond to 
abuse complaints incurred by the Company relating to a client and/or to handle, address, clean up and/or correct 
damage done to the operation of the Company's Network and business operations supported thereby. The fees 
will be billed in one (1) hour minimum increments. The Company hereby agrees to waive such fee for the first 
instance per customer of any such complaint, but shall impose the fee from and after the second such complaint. 

9 of 9 

146



ODFI ORIGINATOR AGREEMENT 

This ODFI Originator Agreement (this "Agreement"), dated as of , 20_, is 
between City or Prosser, a Washington Municipal Corporation ("Company"), and Bank of American Fork, 
a Utah state chartered bank ("Bank"). 

RECITALS 

A. Company wishes to initiate debit Entries (with such debit Entries to include Accounts 
Receivable Entries ("ARC Entries")) and credit Entries by means of the Automated Clearing House Network 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the Third-Party Sender Agreement (identified below) and the rules 
of the National Automated Clearing House Association (the "Rules"), and Bank is willing to act as an 
Originating Depository Bank with respect to such Entries. 

8. Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms shall have the meanings provided in 
the Rules. The term "Entry" shall have the meaning provided in the Rules and shall also mean the data 
received from Company from which Bank initiates each Entry. 

AGREEMENT 

1. Transmittal of Entries By Company. 

(a) Through Xpress Solutions Inc., a Utah limited liability company dlbla Xpress Bill 
Pay, as a third-party sender (the "Third-Party Sender"), Company shall transmit credit and debit Entries to 
Bank in compliance with the formatting and other requirements set forth in the ODFI I Third-Party Sender 
Agreement between Third-Party Sender and Bank (the "Third-Party Sender Agreement") (or as otherwise 
determined or directed by Bank in its sole discretion). 

(b) Company agrees that its ability to originate entries under this Agreement is subject 
to exposure limits in accordance with the Rules and as set forth in the Third-Party Sender Agreement (or 
as otherwise determined by Bank in its sole discretion). 

(c) Nothing in the agreements between Or'1g·1nator and Third-Party Sender shall limit 
or affect the obligations and responsibilities of Company as an Originator to Bank under this Agreement 
and the Rules. 

2. Security Procedures. 

(a) Bank shall comply with the security procedures requirements described in the 
Third-Party Agreement (together with such other procedures as Bank may provide or determine). Company 
acknowledges that the sole purpose of such security procedures is an attempt to determine verification of 
authenticity and not to detect an error in the transmission or content of an Entry. No security or other 
procedures for the detection of any such error has been agreed upon between Bank and Company, and 
Bank assumes no such responsibility. 

(b) Company, in its agreement with Third-Party Sender, is solely responsible to 
establish and maintain the procedures to safeguard against unauthorized or erroneous transmissions. If 
Company believes or suspects that any such information or instructions have been known or accessed by 
unauthorized persons, Company agrees to notify Bank immediately followed by written confirmation. The 
occurrence of unauthorized access will not affect any transfers by Bank prior to receipt of such notification 
and w'ithin a reasonable time period thereafter to respond and to put in place measures to prevent 
unauthorized transfers. 

3. Compliance With Security Procedures. 

(a) If an Entry (or a request for cancellation or amendment of an Entry) received by 
Bank purports to have been transmitted or authorized by Third-Party Sender, it will be deemed effective as 
Company's Entry (or request) and Company shall be obligated to pay Bank the amount of such Entry (or 
any return with respect thereto) even though the Entry (or request) was not authorized by Company or 

1 of 7 

147



Third-Party Sender, provided Bank accepted the Entry in good faith and acted in substantial compliance 
with the Third-Party Agreement. 

(b) If an Entry (or request for cancellation or amendment of an Entry) received by Bank 
was transmitted or authorized by Third-Party Sender, Company shall pay Bank the amount of the Entry (or 
any return with respect thereto), whether or not Bank complied with the Third-Party Agreement with respect 
to that Entry and whether or not that Entry was erroneous in any respect or that error would have been 
detected if Bank had complied with such provisions. 

4. Recording and Use of Communications. Company and Bank agree that all telephone 
conversations, emails or data transmissions between them or their agents made in connection with this 
Agreement may be electronically recorded and retained by either party by use of any reasonable means. 

5. Processing, Transmittal And Settlement By Bank. 

(a) Except as provided in Section 6 and Section 7, Bank shall (i) process Entries 
received from Third-Party Sender to conform with the file specifications set forth in the Rules and the Third
Party Sender Agreement, (ii) transmit such Entries as an Originating Depository Bank to the ACH Operator, 
and (iii) settle for such Entries as provided in the Rules. 

(b) Bank shall transmit such Entries to the ACH Operator as set forth in the Third-
Party Sender Agreement. 

(c) If any of the requirements is not met, Bank shall use reasonable efforts to transmit 
such Entries to the ACH Operator by the next deposit deadline which is a Business Day and a day on which 
the ACH Operator is open for business. 

6. On-Us Entries. Except as provided in Section 7, in the case of an Entry received for credit 
or debit to an account maintained with Bank (an "On-Us Entry"), Bank shall credit or debit the Receiver's 
account in the amount of such Entry on the Effective Entry Date contained in such Entry, provided the 
requirements set forth in Section 5 are met. If either of those requirements is not met, Bank shall use 
reasonable efforts to credit or debit the Receiver's account in the amount of such Entry no later than the 
next Business Day following such Effective Entry Date. 

7. Rejection of Entries. Bank may reject any Entry which does not comply with the 
requirements of Section 1, Section 2, or the Third-Party Sender Agreement or which contains an Effective 
Entry Date more than two (2) days after the Business Day such Entry is received by Bank. Bank may reject 
an Entry for any reason for which an Entry may be returned under the Rules. Bank may reject any Entry if 
Third-Party Sender has failed to comply with its obligations under the Third-Party Sender Agreement. Bank 
may reject any Entry if Third-Party Sender does not adhere to security procedures as described in the Third
Party Sender Agreement or as otherwise determined by Bank. 

8. Cancellation or Amendment By Company. Company shall have no right to cancel or amend 
any Entry submitted by Third-Party Sender to Bank. 

9. Notice of Returned Entries; Notice of Change. Bank shall notify Third-Party Sender by 
phone, electronic transmission, including email, or by other writing of the receipt of a returned Entry from 
the ACH Operator no later than one (1) Business Day after the Business Day of such receipt. Bank shall 
have no obligation to retransmit a returned Entry to the ACH Operator if Bank complied with the terms of 
this Agreement with respect to the original Entry. 

Bank shall provide Third-Party Sender all information, as required by the Rules, with respect to 
each Notification of Change (NOC) Entry or Corrected Notification of Change (Corrected NOC) Entry 
received by Bank relating to Entries transmitted by Company. 

2 of 7 

148



10. Unconditional Payment by Company for Entries: Payment by ODFI for Entries. 

(a) Company shall unconditionally and promptly pay Bank the amount of each credit 
Entry transmitted by Bank pursuant to this Agreement at such time on the date of transmittal by Bank of 
such credit Entry as Bank, in its discretion, may determine. 

(b) Company shall unconditionally and promptly pay Bank the amount of, and shall 
otherwise indemnify and hold Bank hanmless with respect to, each debit Entry returned (for whatever 
reason, except due to Bank's gross negligence or willful misconduct), including without limitation an ARC 
Entry return, by an RDFI that was transmitted by Bank pursuant to this Agreement. 

11. The Account. Bank may, without prior notice or demand, obtain payment of any amount 
due and payable to it under this Agreement by debiting the settlement account of the Third-Party Sender 
identified in the Third-Party Sender Agreement (the "Account"). Company agrees that Bank may debit any 
account maintained by Company with Bank or that Bank may set off against any amount it owes to 
Company, in order to obtain payment of Company's obligations under this Agreement. Upon request of 
Bank, Company agrees to promptly provide to Bank such information pertaining to Company's financial 
condition as Bank may reasonably request. 

12. Account Reconciliation. Entries transmitted by Bank or credited to a Receiver's account 
maintained with Bank will be reflected on Third-Party Sender's periodic statement issued by Bank with 
respect to the Account pursuant to the agreement between Bank and Company. Third-Party Sender has 
the responsibility of determining the accuracy of all such statements pursuant to the terms of the Third
Party Sender Agreement and the Account agreement. Bank has no obligation to provide any such 
information to Company. 

13. Company Representations And Agreements: Indemnity. 

(a) With respect to each and every Entry transmitted by Company, Company 
represents and warrants to Bank and agrees that (a) each person shown as the Receiver on an Entry 
received by Bank from Company has authorized the initiation of such Entry and the crediting or debiting of 
its account in the amount and on the Effective Entry Date shown on such Entry, (b) such authorization is 
operative at the time of transmittal or crediting or debiting by Bank as provided herein, (c) Company shall 
perfonm its obligations under this Agreement in accordance with all applicable laws, regulations, and orders, 
including, but not limited to, the sanctions laws, regulations, and orders administered by OFAC; laws, 
regulations, and orders administered by FinCEN; and any state laws, regulations, or orders applicable to 
the providers of ACH payment services, and (d) Company shall be bound by and comply with the provision 
of the Rules (among other provisions of the Rules) making payment of an Entry by the RDFI to the Receiver 
provisional until receipt by the RDFI of final settlement for such Entry. Company specifically acknowledges 
that it has received notice of the rule regarding provisional payment and of the fact that, if such settlement 
is not received, the RDFI shall be entitled to a refund from the Receiver of the amount credited and 
Company shall not be deemed to have paid the Receiver the amount of the Entry. 

(b) With respect to each and every ARC Entry, Company represents and warrants that 
the Company has provided the requisite notice to the Receiver prior to the receipt of Receiver's check 
stating that the check will be used as the basis for the origination of an ARC Entry, stating substantially the 
following: 

When you provide a check as payment, you authorize us to use the information from your 
check to make a one-time electronic fund transfer from your account. In certa"1n 
circumstances, such as for technical or processing reasons, we may process your check 
as a check transaction. 

(c) Such notice also gives the Receiver the right to give a notice to Company opting 
out of the use of the check to generate an ARC Entry. 

(d) With respect to each and every Entry transmitted as an ARC, Company represents 
the amount of the Entry, the routing number, the account number, and the check serial number are in 

3 of 7 

149



accordance with source check. In addition, Company represents to Bank that with respect to each ARC 
Entry: 

(i) the Entry was not transmitted to an account of a Receiver who did not receive 
prior notice of the check conversion or who opted out of check conversion; 

(ii) the source check was not presented for payment; 

(iii) the check used for the debit Entry is in proper form; 

(iv) the check has the necessary MICR line for an ARC Entry; 

(v) the check is for an amount no greater than $25,000; 

(vi) the check is not a third-party check or a draft; 

(vii) the check has not been remotely created; 

(viii) the check has not been provided by a credit card or home equity line lender 
for purposes of accessing credit; 

(ix) the check is not drawn on an investment company; 

(x) the check is not an obligation of a financial institution (e.g. a travelers check, 
cashier's check, money order, etc.); and 

(xi) the check is not payable in a currency other than United States currency. 

(e) Company shall indemnify Bank against any loss, liability or expense (including 
attorneys' fees and costs) resulting from or arising out of any breach of any of the foregoing warranties, 
representations, and agreements. 

14. Bank Responsibilities; Liability: Limitations on Liability: Indemnity. 

(a) In the performance of the services required by this Agreement, Bank shall be 
entitled to rely solely on the information, representations, and warranties provided by Company pursuant 
to this Agreement and by Third-Party Sender pursuant to this Third-Party Sender Agreement, and shall not 
be responsible for the accuracy or completeness thereof. Bank shall be responsible only for performing the 
services expressly provided for in the Third-Party Sender Agreement, and shall be liable only for its gross 
negligence or willful misconduct in performing those services. Bank shall not be responsible for Company's 
acts or omissions (including, without limitation, the amount, accuracy, timeliness of transmittal or 
authorization of any Entry received from Company) or those of any other person, including, without 
limitation, Third-Party Sender, any Federal Reserve Bank, ACH Operator or transmission or 
communications facility, any Receiver or RDFI (including, without limitation, the return of an Entry by such 
Receiver or RDFI), and no such person shall be deemed Bank's agent Company agrees to indemnify Bank 
against any loss, liability or expense (including attorneys' fees and costs) resulting from or arising out of 
any claim of any person that the Bank is responsible for any act or omission of Company or any other 
person described in this Section 14(a). 

(b) To the extent that Company incurs losses caused solely by Bank's willful 
misconduct or grossly negligent conduct in performing the services provided herein, Bank shall be liable 
only for Company's actual damages; Bank shall not be liable for any consequential, special, incidental, 
punitive or indirect loss or damage which Company may incur or suffer in connection with this Agreement, 
whether or not the likelihood of such damages was known or contemplated by the Bank and regardless of 
the legal or equitable theory of liability which Company may assert, including, without limitation, loss or 
damage from subsequent wrongful dishonor resulting from Bank's acts or omissions pursuant to this 
Agreement 

(c) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing provisions, Bank shall be excused 
from failing to act or delay in acting if such failure or delay is caused by legal constraint, interruption of 
transmission or communication facilities, equipment failure, civil strife, war, emergency conditions or other 

4 of 7 

150



circumstances beyond Bank's control. In addition, Bank shall be excused from failing to transmit or delay 
in transmitting an Entry if such transmittal would result in Bank's having exceeded any limitation upon its 
intra-day net funds position established pursuant to present or future Federal Reserve guidelines or in 
Bank's reasonable judgment otherwise would violate any provision of any present or future risk control 
program of the Federal Reserve or any rule or regulation of any other U.S. governmental regulatory 
authority. 

(d) Subject to the foregoing limitations, Bank's liability for loss of interest resulting from 
its error or delay shall be calculated by using a rate equal to the average Federal Funds Rate at the Federal 
Reserve Bank of San Francisco for the period involved. At Bank's option, payment of such interest may be 
made by crediting the Account. 

(e) Bank does not warrant to Company that the Bank's ACH services and related 
system (whether mechanical, computerized or otherwise) will be free from error or that it will meet the 
specific requirements of Company. Company shall assume complete responsibility for any Company 
decisions or actions taken based on information obtained as part of the Banking ACH services or from use 
of the related system. In the event of a breach of warranty, Bank's sole obligation and liability shall be to 
take commercially reasonable efforts to protect Company against loss and to provide competent services 
as expected from a financial institution consistent with industry standards to correct any errors identified in 
the System and to re-perform any services which fail in a material respect to meet the limited warranties 
provided herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Bank makes no warranties, express or implied, including 
but not limited to, implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. 

15. Inconsistency of Name And Account Number. Company acknowledges and agrees that if 
an Entry describes the Receiver inconsistently by name and account number, payment of the Entry 
transmitted by Bank to the RDFI may be made by the RDFI (or by Bank in the case of an On-Us Entry) on 
the basis of the account number supplied by Third-Party Sender, even if it identifies a person different from 
the named Receiver, and that Company's obligation to pay the amount of the Entry to Bank (or any return 
with respect thereto) is not excused in such circumstances. 

16. Amendments. From time to time Bank may amend any of the terms and conditions 
contained in this Agreement and the Third-Party Sender Agreement. Such amendments shall become 
effective upon thirty (30) days after receipt of notice by Company or such later date as may be stated in 
Bank's notice to Company. 

17. Notices, Instructions, Etc. 

(a) Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, Bank shall not be required to act 
upon any notice or instruction received from Company or any other person, or to provide any notice or 
advice to Company or any other person with respect to any matter. 

(b) Bank shall be entitled to rely on any written notice or other written communication 
believed by it in good faith to be genuine, and any such communication shall be deemed to have been 
signed by such person. 

( c) Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, any written notice or other written 
communication required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be delivered, or sent by United 
States registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or by express carrier, and, if to Bank, addressed to: 

Bank of American Fork 
P.O. Box 307 
American Fork, Utah 84003 
Attn: Janet Lopez 

5 of 7 

151



and, if to Company, addressed to: 

City of Prosser 
601 71" Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Attn: Finance Manager 

unless another address is substituted by notice delivered or sent as provided herein. Except as otherwise 
expressly provided herein, any such notice shall be deemed given when received. 

18. Data Retention. 

(a) Company shall retain all information about its digitizing of checks and related items 
and source documents for thirty (30) days following the date of their transmittal to Third-Party Sender, and 
shall provide such data to Bank upon its request. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing provis'1on, 
Company specifically agrees to be bound by and comply with all applicable provisions of the Rules 
regarding the retention of documents or any record, including, without limitation, Company's responsibilities 
to retain all items, source documents, and records of authorization in accordance with the Rules. 

(b) Company will retain each check used to originate debit Entries for a reasonable 
period of time, but in no event fewer than ninety (90) days after such check has been digitized and 
transmitted to Third-Party and no more than one hundred eighty (180) days alter such date. Company will 
use commercially reasonable methods to destroy such checks including without limitation prior storage in 
a locked, secure location and cross-shredding. 

19. Tapes and Records. All magnetic tapes, Entries, security procedures and related records 
used by Bank for transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be and remain Bank's property. Bank 
may, at its sole discretion, make available such information upon Company's request. Any expenses 
incurred by Bank in making such information available to Company shall be paid by Company. 

20. Evidence of Authorization. Company shall obtain all consents and customer authorizations 
required under the Rules and Section 13 of this Agreement and shall retain such consents and 
authorizations for two (2) years alter they expire. 

21. Cooperation in Loss Recovery Efforts. In the event of any damages for which Bank or 
Company may be liable to each other or to a third party pursuant to the services provided under this 
Agreement, Bank and Company will undertake reasonable efforts to cooperate with each other, as 
permitted by applicable law, in performing loss recovery efforts and in connection with any actions that the 
relevant party may be obligated to defend or elects to pursue against a third party. 

22. Termination. Bank reserves the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon 
provid'1ng written nor1ce of such term·1nation to Company. Any termination of this Agreement shall not affect 
any of Bank's rights and Company's obligations with respect to Entries initiated by Company prior to such 
termination, or the payment obligations of Company with respect to services performed by Bank prior to 
termination, or any other obligations that survive termination of this Agreement. 

23. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Third-Party Sender Agreement, is the 
complete and exclusive statement of the agreement between Bank and Company with respect to the 
subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior agreement(s) between Bank and Company with respect to 
such subject matter. In the event performance of the services provided herein in accordance with the terms 
of this Agreement would result in a violation of any present or future statute, regulation or government policy 
to which Bank is subject, and which governs or affects the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, 
then this Agreement shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to comply with such statute, 
regulation or policy, and Bank shall incur no liability to Company as a result of such violation or amendment. 
No course of dealing between Bank and Company will constitute a modification of this Agreement, the 
Rules, or the security procedures or constitute an agreement between the Bank and Company, regardless 
of whatever practices and procedures Bank and Company may use. 

6 of 7 

152



24. Non-Assignment. Company may not assign this Agreement or any of the rights or duties 
hereunder to any person without Bank's prior written consent. 

25. Waiver. Bank may waive enforcement of any provision of this Agreement. Any such waiver 
shall not affect Bank's rights with respect to any other transaction or modify the terms of this Agreement. 

26. Binding Agreement; Benefit. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors and assigns. This Agreement 
is not for the benefit of any other person, and no other person shall have any right against Bank or Company 
hereunder. 

27. Headings. Headings are used for reference purposes only and shall not be deemed a part 
of this Agreement. 

28. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be 
invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be impaired or 
otherwise affected and shall continue to be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

29. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by 
the laws of the State of Utah. Company consents to the nonexclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal 
courts of the State of Utah to consider any matter or lawsuit with respect to the enforcement of this 
Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 
duly authorized officers. 

Bank of American Fork City of Prosser 

By ______ ___ By __________ _ 

Name_~~~~~~~~~~-Name __________ _ 

Title _____________ _ Title __________ _ 

7 of 7 

153



TM 

you nH1ke any correction2', Brandon Rowe 

yoQJ l'v1UST Ga.ch chanae. 

[ Merchant OBA Name 

, The City of Prosser 

. Date Business Started (MM/yYYY) 

i / 
[ OBA Street Address (No PO Box or Paid Mai! Box) 

i 601 7th Street 
I City ·- .... -

I T e!ephone # 

'(509) 786-2332 
Zip.Code----) Fax# 

-------i 

[ 
1 Prosser 
rNam-;~-f-Pr-im_a_ry_C_ont.~ct 
I 
[!oni Yost 

I State 

WA 99350 

Merchant OBA Email Address 

tyost@cityofprosser.com 

---··--____j 
! 

--~. ------- ----

Complete this section if different from OBA Information. 

[ L~gal Street Address -----

' 601 7th Street 

fcity 
---------- ... -151~;;;· 

I Telephone # 

·- -·- ~09) 786-2332 
I Zip Code 1 Fax# 

i Prosser 
----

' I I 

_. ____ l\fl/...A 199350 · 
j Legal Email Address 

l tyost@cityofprosser.com 
L--------... ·---·-·------

---. J 

~ D LLC •i ta_xed as OS Corporation D <? Corporation 0 Partnership 0 Disregard~d Entity1 --1 

· O Individual/Sole Proprietor 1 A Disregarded Entity is a busmess that is separate from its ownerfo_r legal purposes but the owner chooses 1· 

i to "disregard" that separation for federal income tax purposes_ If an individual owns a Disregarded Entity, it is 
I D Pa.rtners~~ .. --... . . \ 5reated as a sole proprietor, lf an~!.~er legal entity owns it, it ·1s treated as a branch or division of the ow~er._ ·, 

, D Private ~~'.£.?ra~1~~.~Pu?l1c Corporation ~i taxed.~_::; __ O S Corporation Q<? Corporation .. _ ___j 
j 0 Governme~t Agency or D Non-Profit2 -~if D Exempt fro~ IRS backup withhol~i:_t.~ ·--·-----~-·-- ! 
'. 

2 Non-profit companies need to submit form 501C and, if exempt from sales tax, should also submit their state tax exempt certificate. ~ 
c______: ___ ,, ···--·----····· ' 

~---------- ... ~·---·-------"--"""------------, 

i Has business ever been in bankruptcy? 

I What ls your business industry type? 

[ Is you .. ~ business home-based? 

: If "Yes» above, where is the inventory located? 

DYes IBl No [ 

I What merchandi~e do you sell or services do you provid~;-

D Yes [8] No 

ml Retail D Restaurant 0 Lodging 
1. 0 Auto Rental D Cash Advance D Convenience Store/Gas 
1 D Other: 

! D Internet (You are required to list all website addresses); 
I I www. www.cityofprosser.com 

___ D_Yes IBl N~l L _____ _ 

1 UTJLJTIES & Govem~ent Services 

~.~ ... ?_ur business seasona.!? 

0 Resource Online Set up a Resource Online and 
use the following email address as the user login: 

Email statements to 
D Legal email address 
D OBA email address 

Mail requests to 
IE Legal address 

D OBA address 

·---·------· _ _J 154



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. 

I What is the estimat~d annual breakdown (in o/o) of your annual 
j Payment Carel Transactions? 

o o/o V.ia;.:m·~1\.9.f:,pfi011~.jQ'r,~~r 
-----

0 °!o E&>iTi.fiiStdCf;;'aCC~·~ted ,dii ,,Y.Quf.:W.Sb$'ite 

o % c~r.a ·tt~: 0.~Wi·p·ec:1 
--~ ___ ,,,,_ 

o 0/o carq:~s.:pre$ent6U(k~ye~ ----
L 

100 % Total 

If your business is privately owned y one or more individuals (e.g. 
LLC, Sole Proprietor, Partnership, or Private Corporation), 

• Complete section A or A and B for one or two owners with 
the greatest% of ownership. 

at All owners listed below must sign the Application and Agreement in 
Section 11and12. 

Rev. NAPSTAND 10/2013 Page 2of17 

-I~------

j Do you ever charge a Customer on a recurring basis? 
! 

D Yes D No 

] If "Yes" above, how often will you charge? 
i D 30 Days D 60 Days D 90 Days D Annually 

ID Other: 

~ 
.

1 

If Customers are required to pay a deposit, what 0/o of total sale? 

If your business is a non-profit organization, publicly owned 
corporation, or government entity, 

• Complete section C only 

If a parent company owns your business, 

% 

• Enter the name of the legal entity(ies) owner(s) in section A or A and 8 
• Provide the name of an Authorized Representative in Section C. 

• Substitute the parent company's Federal Tax ID for the Social Security#. 

~Name of Individual/Sole Proprietor or Parent c~;Pany 

! 
··-T;ercentage : Social Security# 

I I I I i % 
! of Ownership: 

r -·- . -· ... -·-I Street Address (Individual/Sole Proprietor use home address) (No PO Box or paid mailbox) i·oate of Birth 

\--.---·-·----------
I City 

~---------

._ __ ,, ... -- --1 
I State 

! 

I Zip Code 

-------'----~-

I Telephone # 
I 

~Name of Individual/Sol~ .. Proprietor or Parent C~;,;-p~ny 
i Percentage Ofc Social Security# ~ 

! 1 ! I · i L __ ! of Ownership: 0 
+--'----11 I i ; 

i. Date of Birth ..:...-···---1 I Street Address (Individual/Sole Proprietor use home address) (No PO Box or paid mailbox) 

I 

L------
[City I State 

---------+-
Zip Code ! Telephone # 

' 
I 

gName01·;.;.~·~~eaRepre-,.s-e.n-·tat;~-~------- fTitle 

I ------ ---- _J __ ----

The Merchant must own the bank account you provide below and it must be used primarily for business purposes. Chase Paymentech may: 
deposit into thls account amounts owed to Merchant by Chase Paymentech, such as proceeds from Merchant's Payment Card Transactions 

• debit this account for amounts Merchant owes to Chase Paymentech associated with its Merchant account. such as fees for processing 
Merchant's Payment Card Transactions 

• debit this account for any negative amounts presented, such as refunds, returns or Chargebacks 

I f\larriebf.Balilk Designating thls barik account for the purposes outlined above must not 
v!olate any of Merchant's organizational documents or any agreement to 
which the .Merchant is a party. 

[i~~tinglf\ILlrJ\ber (always ~onsists of 9 digits) I f-''.cc~unt N~mber1 (num~er of digitswi!lva-~-)------

I -· -·· _ __L I I ___ l_J_L :_ . ! I . LJ __ '_! _LJ _ _L __ ~ '--· 
I The image below shows where to find your Routing Number and Account Number, Do not use the internal routing number that begins with a 5. I 

DO NOT PROVIDE CHECK NUMSIEiR 
.Rt:Nt.t:fng Nun:Hll.wf !b::{OlHH N.umbtt:t *'M<h.~ 

{i:f10 9 v q.1to; 1: tyctt'l;t©<11;i '"'''"Wt : 
·----------·· 

____ _j 

155



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page3of17 

!f you have previously accepted payment cards, please include your three (3) most recent monthly processing statements. 

Please check all payment methods you wish to accept: 

0 Visa 0 MasterCard 
D Voyager 0 Wright Express 

Current Payment Processor: 

IZl Discover/JCS 
D Gift Card 

D American Express 
D PIN Debit 

I 
----···-·-~ .. --··---- _,,_, __ . 

Has Merchant ever had a breach involving lost card data or received a 
notification for any violation of the Payment Brand Rules? 0Yes 0 No 

Estimated Annual Visa/MC/Discover Sales Volume $ 

Estimated Annual PIN Debit Sales Volume $ i 
--~---j 

Average Ticket Amount $ 

If your American Express annual processing volume is greater than $500,000.00, please complete Section A only. 

If your American Express annual processing volume is, or is expected to be, $500,000.00 or less, please complete Section B only. 

If you do not know your American Express SE#, or you would like to apply for one, please contact American Express directly at (855) 894-6570. 

If you know your American Express SE#, please provide it here: 

' 

Estimated Total Annual American Express Safes I$ 
Volume 

! All American Express fees are set by American Express and are subject to change by 

I
, American Express. The fees s.et forth _herein are only quotes, based upon the then-current 

American Express pricing guidelines, which may be modified from time to time. 

I
, If Merchant operates an internet/physical delivery, mall order/telephone order, or home-based 

business, Merchant will not be charged the Amencan Express Discount Rate. Instead, 

Merchant will be charged a flat monthly fee of $7.95. If Merchant is charged a flat monthly fee, 

for any reason, that fee will continue until Merchant's American Express volume exceeds 

$4,999 in a \2.monlh period. At such time American Express will begin charging Merchant the 

applicable industry-specific American Express Discount Rate. 

Except for Education merchants within MCC 7032, 8211, 8220 and 8351 an Inbound fee of 
0.40% will be applied to any charge made using an American Express Card, including a 
Prepaid Card, issued by an issuer located outside of the United States 

Estimated Average American Express Transaction 
Amount 

American Express Discount Rate* 

American Express Prepaid/Gift Card Discount Rate+ 

$ 

% 

1.95 % 

*Based on Merchant's MCC, an additional per transaction fee of no more than $0.15 may be 

assessed. For Merchants with a Retail, Restaurant or Travel Agency MCC, an additional 0.30% 

downgrade will be charged by American Express for transactions whenever a CNP or Card Not 

Present charge occurs. 

+Based on Merchant's MCC, an addi\ional per transaction fee of no more than $0.20 may be 

assessed. Independent Gas Stations, Mail Order & lnlemet, and Supermarket MCCs will be assessed 

a Prepaid/Gift Card rate of !1.30% + $0.12], [2.25% + $0.20), and [0.45% + $0.20], respectively, in 

lieu of the 1.95% rate listed. 

By signing below. I represent that I have read and am authorized to sign and submit this application for the above entity which agrees to be bound oy the Amen can Express"' Card Acceptance 
Agreement ("Agreement"), and that all information provided herein is true, complete and accurate. I authorize Paymentech and American Express Travel Reiated Services Company, Inc. ("American 
Express") and American Express's agents and Affiliates to verify the information in this application and receive and exchange information about me personally, including by requesting reports from 
consumer reporting agencies, from time to time, and disclose such information to their agents, subcontractors, Affiliates, and other parties for any purpose permitted by law. l authorize and direct 
Paymentech and American Express and Amen can Express's agents and Affiliates to inform me directly, or inform the entity above, about the contents of reports about me that they have requested from 
consumer reporting agencies. Such information will include the name and address of the agency furnishing the report. I also authorize American Express to use the reports on me from consumer 
reporting agencies for marketing and administrative purposes. I am able to read and understand the English language. Please read the American Express Pnvacy Statement at 
http:/!www.americanexpress.com/privacy to learn more about how American.Express protects your privacy and how American Express uses your information. I understand that I may opt out of 
marketing communications by visiting this website or contacting American Express at 1-(800)-528-5200. I understand that upon American Express's approval of the application, the entity will be 
provided with the Agreement and materials welcoming It to American Express·s Card acceptance program 

Print Name 

lf your business is selected for a site visit, Chase Paymentech, or a 
third party representing Chase Paymentech, will contact you at the 
number provided. You MUST assist with the site visit and Chase 
Paymentech MUST approve the results of the site visit. 
The site v\sit includes, but is not limited to, 

I • an interview with you regarding the nature of your business, and 
· • photographs of your business operation. 

If the site visit is not completed or the results of the site visit are not 
approved, Chase Paymentech may, 

decline your application for a merchant account 
withhold your funds, or 
terminate your Agreement with Chase Paymentech and close 

i your Merchant account. 

[To help expedite the proce~~: ... ~e require the follo~~ng.information: 

1 Best phone# to contact you: I Preferred language: 
' :, D English D Spanish 

I Best time··· to reach~· ·~---1 D Other: 
. _,._,,,,,,,_, __ ._ 

----~-.----· 

Title Date 

Under penalty of perjury, I certify that: 

1. The number shown on this form (Section 1) is my correct taxpayer 
identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), 
and 

2. 1 am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from 
backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal 
Revenue Service (!RS) that r am subject to backup withholding as a 
result of a failure to report all interest in dividends, or (c) the IRS has 
notified me that 1 am no longer subject to backup withholding, and 

3. lam a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person. 

Certification Instructions 

You must cross out and initial #2 above if you have been notified by the 
IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding. 

IRS Form W-9 instructions available upon request. 

156



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 10/2013 Page 4of17 

-------- ------- -----
The first four pages of this document are the Merchant's Application to 
establish a Merchant account with Paymentech, LLC ("Chase 
Paymentech") and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. ("Member"). Once 
submitted, the Application belongs to Chase Paymentech and Member. 
Any set up fee paid by Merchant is non-refundable. The Application is 
subject to approval by Chase Paymentech and Member. If the Application 
is approved, Chase Paymentech wiJJ establish one or more Merchant 
account(s). All Merchant accounts will be governed by the entire 
Agreement, which includes: the Application, the Terms and Conditions, 
Schedule A (pricing), and any amendments, supplements or modifications 
provided to you. 

I, the undersigned, certify: 
• that I am an owner, partner, officer or other authorized representative 

of the Merchant ("Authorized Representative"); and 
• that l am duly authorized to enter into agreements on behalf of 

Merchant and to legally bind Merchant to such agreements. 

Furthermore, by signing below I authorize Chase Paymentech, 
Member, or their designees to: 

investigate and verify personal credit and financial information about 
me; and 
obtain and use consumer credit reports on me from time to time in 
connection with establishing Merchant's account and maintaining the 
Agreement. 

By submitting this Application and Agreement, Merchant, through 
the undersigned Authorized Representative: 

represents and warrants that the person submitting this Application on 
behalf of Merchant is duly authorized to enter into agreements on 
behalf of Merchant and to legally b!nd Merchant to such agreements; 
represents and warrants that all information contained within the 
Application as well as any information submitted in conjunction 
with the Application is true, complete, and not misleading; 
represents and warrants that it owns the bank account provided in 
Section 6; 
represents and warrants that it has received a complete copy of the 
Agreement, including the Terms and Conditions for Merchant 
Agreement and Schedule A and agrees to be legal!y bound by the 
Agreement; 
understands that any unilateral changes to the pre-printed text of any 
part of the Agreement may result in Chase Paymentech declining 
Merchant's Application or terminating the Agreement 
agrees that Chase Paymentech, Member, or their designees, may: 

• Investigate and verify the credit and financial information 
of Merchant; and 

• obtain credit reports on Merchant from time to time and use them 
in connection with establishing Merchant's account and 
maintaining the Agreement; and : 

agrees that Member and Chase Paymentech may share credit, I 
financial informatio~ about Merchant and Chase._:aymentec~---1 

The Internal Revenue Service does not require your consent to any provision of this document other than the certification required to avoid backup 
I ,.,Hhholding. (See Section 10 above). 
~~------ .. ---------·- ' ,,_,_ ·---"""~-·-------~ 

Owner I Authorized Representative; Signer's name must appear in Section 5 

x 
Signature Prfnt ,fj.J'8-me Elate 

-------- ·-----.. ~.., 

Owner I Authorized Representative: Signer's name must appear in Section 5 

I x 

! 

----------Signature Print Name Date 

The person(s) acting as individual guarantor(s) must have an ownership interest in Merchant and must be listed !n Section 5 of this Application. 
As an individual(s) who agrees to be personally responsible for Merchant's account with Chase Paymentech (a "Guarantor"), I 

certify I have received and reviewed a complete copy of the Agreement, 
including the Application, Terms and Conditions, and Schedule A 

I • certify 1 have read the Agreement, including, without limitation, the 
"Personal Guaranty" section at the end of the Terms and Conditions 

agree that Chase Paymentech, Member, or their designees, may 
investigate and verify the credit and financial information about me and 
may obtain consumer credit reports on me from time to time 

agree that Chase Paymentech, Member, or their designees, may use 
such consumer credit reports in connection with establishing and 
maintaining the Merchant's account and Agreement 

agree to be bound as a Guarantor of the Merchant's obligations under 
the Agreement in accordance with the "Persona! Guaranty" section of 
the Terms and Conditions 

certify that I have an ownership interest in Merchant 

Guarantor: 

x 
Signature Print Name 

agree that al! business references, including financial institutions, may 
share my credit and financial information with Chase Paymentech 

Date 
----- ..... -------·- _________________ ,,_,, __ 
Guarantor: 

x 

-1 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Print Name L. Signature Date __ I _________ ,, _____ ,,_..,_ 

!f any 
such chen~e(s) as pc;oc;lble_ 

,----------··- ------ ---·-·~ -----

' Internal Use Only: Approved by Paymentech, LLC for itself and on behalf of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 

Signature Title Date 
------- -----·------- --------------·----

157



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page 5of17 

The Terms and Conditions together with the Application, pricing Schedule A, and any other documents referred to in Section 15.9 form the legal 
agreement between you ("Merchant'), Paymentech, LLC ("Chase Paymentech"), and JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA ("Member") for processing your 
Payment Card Transactions. Chase Paymentech has agreed to acquire and process your Payment Card Transactions as well as pay you the amount of 
each Payment Card Transaction subject to the terms of this Agreement. You agree to pay us for the Services pertormed and to comply with the Payment 
Brand Rules, Security Standards, operating procedures and all applicable laws, as further described in this Agreement 

1. MERCHANT'S ACCEPTANCE OF PAYMENT CARDS. 
1.1 Exclusivity. 

During the term of this Agreement, Merchant must: 
(a) use exclusively Chase Paymentech for the Services; and 
(b) submit all Transaction Data to Chase Paymentech in compliance with all specified formats and procedures. 

1.2 Payment Card Acceptance Policies and Prohibitions. 

Merchant must: 
(a) notify Chase Paymentech, on its Application or otherwise in writing, of all of Merchant's Payment Card acceptance methods (e.g. card-present, 

card-not-present, recurring transactions, etc.); 
(b) accept all categories of Visa and MasterCard Payment Cards, unless Merchant has notified Chase Paymentech on its Application or otherwise in 

writing of Merchant's election to accept one of the following "limited acceptance" options: 
l. Visa and MasterCard consumer credit (but not debit) cards and Visa and MasterCard commercial credit and debit cards only; or 
ii. Visa and MasterCard debit cards only; 

(c) honor all foreign bank-issued Visa or MasterCard Payment Cards; 
(d) publicly display appropriate signage to indicate all Payment Cards accepted by Merchant, including any limited acceptance categories; 
(e) examine each Payment Card (credit, debit, etc.) presented at the point of sale to ensure the Payment Card is valid, has not expired and that the 

Customer's signature on the Transaction Receipt corresponds to the authorized signature on the back of the Payment Card: 
(f) in situations where the Payment Card is not physically presented to Merchant at the point of sale (e.g. on-line, mail order, telephone order, pre

authorized, or recurring transactions), have appropriate procedures in place to ensure that each Transaction 'is made only to the Customer: 
(g) provide the Customer with a Transaction Receipt for each Transaction. All Transaction Receipts must conform to Payment Brand Rules; and 
(h) prominently and clearly inform Customers of its identity so that the Customer can distinguish Merchant. 

Except to the extent permitted by law or the Payment Brand Rules, Merchant must not: 

(i) set a dollar amount above or below which Merchant refuses to honor otherwise valid Payment Cards; 
UJ issue a Refund in cash or a cash equivalent (e.g. checks) for any Transaction originally conducted using a Payment Card; 
(k) request or use a Payment Card account number for any purpose other than to process a payment for goods or services sold; or 
(!) add any tax or surcharge to a Transaction; if any tax or surcharge amount is imposed, Merchant must have notified Paymentech and the 

Payment Brands at least thirty days before, such amount must be included in the Transaction amount, shall not be collected separately, and 
Merchant's surcharging practices must comply with applicable laws and Payment Brand Rules. 

Merchant must not: 
(m) require a Customer to complete a postcard or similar device that includes Payment Instrument Information in plain view when mailed; 
(n) require the Customer to pay the fees payable by Merchant under this Agreement; 
(o) split a single Transaction lnto two or more Transactions to avoid or circumvent authorization limits or monitoring programs: and 
(p) accept Payment Cards for the purchase of scrip, as defined by the Payment Brand Rules. 

Merchant may: 
(q) request or encourage a Customer to use a Payment Card other than the Payment Card initially presented by the Customer, unless prohibited by 

the Payment Brand Rules or applicable law 

1.3 Payment Brand Rules. 

Merchant agrees to comply with: 
(a) all applicable Payment Brand Rules in effect from time to time; and 
{b) such other procedures as Chase Paymentech may from time to time prescribe for the creation or transmission of Transaction Data. 

1.4 Requirements for Certain Transactions. 

Merchant represents and warrants that each Transaction: 
(a) represents payment for or Refund of a bona fide sale or lease of the goods, services, or both, which Merchant has the legal right to sell and 

which is provided by Merchant in the ordinary course of its business, as represented in its Application; 
(b) is not submitted on behalf of a third party; 
(c) represents a current obligation of the Customer solely for the amount of the Transaction; 
(d) does not represent the collection of a dishonored check or the collection or refinancing of an existing debt; 
(e) represents goods that have been provided or shipped, or services that have actually been rendered, to the Customer; 
(f) is free from any material alteration not authorized by the Customer; 
(g) or the amount thereof, is not subject to any dispute, setoff, or counterclaim; 
(h) if such Transaction represents a credit to a Customer's Payment Card, is a Refund for a Transaction previously submitted to Chase 

Paymentech; and 
(i) complies with the terms of this Agreement, applicable laws and all applicable Payment Brand Rules. 

158



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page 6of17 

Furthermore, Merchant represents and warrants that Merchant has not 
UI disbursed or advanced any cash to the Customer (except as authorized by the Payment Brand Rules) for itself or to any of its representatives. 

agents, or employees in connection with the Transaction; 
(k) accepted payment for effecting credits to a Customer or a Customer's Payment Card; 
(I) made any representation or agreement for the issuance of Refunds except as stated in Merchant's Refund Policy; 
(m) been provided with any information that would lead Merchant to believe that the enforceability or collectibility of the Transaction is in any manner 

impaired; and 
(n) submitted any Transaction that Merchant knows or should have known to be either fraudulent, illegal, damaging to the Payment Brand(s), not 

authorized by the Customer, or otherwise in violation of any provision of this Agreement, applicable law, or Payment Brand Rules. 

For Transactions stemming from recurring billing, installment plans, deferred payment plans, or prepayment plans, Merchant must: 
(o) obtain permission from Chase Paymentech prior to submitting such Transactions for processing under this Agreement; 
(p) for approved prepayments, advise the Customer: 

L that payment is being made in advance of the shipment or provision of goods or services; and 
ii. the time when shipment or provision of the goods or services is expected; 

(q) obtain the Customer's consent to periodically charge the Customer's Payment Card on a recurring or periodic basis for the goods or services 
purchased, and: 

retain this permission tor the duration of the recurring services and provide it upon request to Chase Paymentech or the issuing bank of 
the Customer's Payment Card; and 

ii. retain written documentation specifying the frequency of the recurring charge and the duration of time during which such charges may be 
made; 

(r) prepare and submit for processing separate Transaction Data for each recurring, installment, or deferred payment on!y on the dates the 
Customer agreed to be charged and include in the Transaction Data the electronic indicator that the Transaction is a recurring one; and 

(s) not submit such Transactions after receiving: 
a cancellation notice from the Customer; or 

it. notice from Chase Paymentech or any Payment Brand (via authorization code or otherwise) that the Payment Card is not to be honored. 

1.5 Stored Value Card Transactions. This Section 1.5 applies only if Merchant elects to accept Stored Value Cards from its Customers and submits 
such Stored Value Card Transactions to Chase Paymentech for processing. 

(a) Stored Value Cards are used by Merchant to issue spending credit to its Customers. Popular uses for Stored Value Cards include, but are not 
iimlted to, an electronic version of paper gift certificates, merchandise return cards, and prepaid cards. Merchant provides its Customer with a 
magnetic stripe card in exchange for money received, merchandise returned, or other consideration. The Stored Value Card represents a dollar 
value that the Merchant's Customer can either use or give to another individual The actual record of the balance on the Stored Value Card is 
maintained by Chase Paymentech. Upon acceptance of the Stored Value Card from a Customer, Merchant must immediately transmit the 
Stored Value Card information to Chase Paymentech and the appropriate approval response will be routed to Merchant. Chase Paymentech will 
provide Merchant with access to monthly reporting detailing Merchant's Stored Value Card Transactions and the outstanding balances on the 
individual Stored Value Cards. Merchant will have access to help desk support through Chase Paymentech for its Stored Value Card 
Transactions. Customers wi!I have access to an interactive voice response system ("IVR"), via a to!I free number, through which they may 
receive some basic account and Stored Value Card balance information. Merchant's Stored Value Card program wil\ be configured in a manner 
specified by Merchant to Chase Paymentech during enrollment, which will represent binding program rules related to Merchant's Stored Value 
Card program. 

(b) If Merchant elects to participate in Chase Paymentech's "Now'" or "Advantage" Stored Value Card service, Merchant is obligated to purchase 
Stored Value Cards from Chase Paymentech. We will arrange for the Stored Value Card production and may, at our option, invoice you 
therefore, in lieu of electronically debiting your account. Any such invoice will be payable upon receipt. Stored Value Cards, packaging, and 
point-of-purchase marketing materials are available and priced on a per bundle basis, based on current rates. These rates are captured on the 
Now! and Advantage enrollmenVorder form(s). All production and delivery timeframes and costs provided are estimates only and Chase 
Paymentech does not guarantee any specific date of delivery or price for Stored Value Cards produced by third parties. Merchant is responsible 
for all production costs and delivery charges for Stored Value Cards. The form and content of all Stored Value Cards may be subject to our 
approval. 

(c) If Merchant elects to participate in Chase Paymentech's "Custom" Stored Value Card service, Merchant is not obligated to purchase Stored 
Value Cards from Chase Paymentech. If you do elect to purchase Stored Value Cards from us, we will arrange for the Stored Value Card 
production and may, at our option, invoice you therefore, in lieu of electronically debiting your account. Any such invoice will be payable upon 
receipt. All production and delivery timeframes and costs provided are estimates only and Chase Paymentech does not guarantee any specific 
date of delivery or price for Stored Value Cards produced by third parties. Merchant is responsible for all production costs and delivery charges 
for Stored Value Cards. The form and content of all Stored Value Cards may be subject to our approval. 

(d) Merchant is solely responsible for: 
complying with all applicable laws and regulations related to the acceptance of Stored Value Cards and Merchants Stored Value Card 
program: 

ii. ensuring that all Stored Value Cards require activation at the point of sale; 
iii. any and all value adding and fraud losses; 
iv. providing immediate written notification to Chase Paymentech of any fraud losses; 
v. deactivating or otherwise removing all value from Stored Value Cards that have been compromised; and 
vi. any fraudulent Transactions involving Merchant's Stored Value Cards, Including, without limitation, the unauthorized activation of Stored 

Value Cards, reloading of existing Stored Value Cards (whether pursuant to a manual telephone order or otherwise) wtth addition~ value, 
or the unauthorized replication of Stored Value Cards or Stored Value Card data for fraudulent Transactions. 

159



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page 7of17 

2. AUTHORIZATIONS. Merchant is required to obtain an authorization code through Chase Paymentech for each Transaction. Chase Paymentech reserves 
the right to refuse to process any Transaction Data presented by Merchant unless it includes a proper authorization. If required by the Payment Brand 
Rules, each authorization request must include the Payment Card's expiration date. 

Merchant acknowledges: 
(a) that authorization of a Transaction indicates only that the Payment Card contains a valid account number and has an available balance sufficient 

for the amount of the Transaction; and 
(b) that authorization of a Transaction does not constitute a representation from Chase Paymentech, a Payment Brand, or a card issuing bank that a 

particular Transaction Is, in tact. valid or undisputed by the actual Customer. 

3. REFUND AND ADJUSTMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES; PRIVACY POLICIES. 
3.1 Refund Policy. Chase Paymentech reserves the right to refuse to process any Transaction made subject to a Refund Policy of which Chase 
Paymentech has not been notified in advance. 

Merchant must: 
(a) maintain a Refund Policy (e.g. 'NO REFUNDS', 'REFUNDS WITH ORIGINAL RECEIPT WITHIN 30 DAYS OF ORIGINAL SALE') in 

accordance with the Payment Brand Rules; 
(b) disclose all Refund Policies to Chase Paymentech and to Merchant's Customers; and 
(c) submit to Chase Paymentech, in writing, any material change in Merchant's Refund Policy not less than 14 days prior to the effective date of 

such change. 

3.2 Procedure for Refund Transactions. 

If Merchant allows a Refund, Merchant must: 
(a) prepare and deliver to Chase Paymentech Transaction Data reflecting any such Refund within three (3) days of approving the Customer's 

request for such Refund; 
(b) not permit the amount of a Refund to exceed the amount shown as the total on the original Transaction Receipt except by the exact amount 

required to reimburse the Customer for shipping charges that the Customer paid to return merchandise; 
(c) not accept any payment from a Customer as consideration for issuing a Refund; and 
(d) not give cash (or cash equivalent) refunds to a Customer in connection with a Transaction, unless required by law or permitted by the Payment 

Brand Rules. 

3.3 Customer Data Protection Policies for Ecommerce Merchants. 

If Merchant operates an electronic commerce website through which Transactions are generated, in addition to any requirements otherwise 
set forth in this Agreement, Merchant must: 

(a) display the following on each electronic commerce website: 
Merchant's name and the name that will appear on the Customer's Payment Card statement 

ii. its Customer data privacy policy; 
iii. a description of its security capabilities and policy for transmission of Payment Instrument Information; and 
iv. the address of Merchant's fixed place of business (regardless of website or server \ocations); and 

(b) offer its Customers a data protection method such as 3-D Secure or Secure Sockets Layer (SSL). 

4. SETTLEMENT. 
4.1 Submitting Transaction Data. If Merchant fails to send Transaction Data to Chase Paymentech within one (1) business day after the day of the 
Transaction, higher interchange fees, additional costs, and increased Chargebacks could occur. Chase Paymentech may from time to time contact 
Customers to verify that they have received goods or services for which Transactions have been submitted. Chase Paymentech reserves the right to 
refuse to process any Transaction Data presented by Merchant if Chase Paymentech believes that the Transaction amount cannot be collected from the 
Customer or was prepared in violation of any provision of this Agreement applicable law, or the Payment Brand Rules. 

4.2 Merchant's Settlement Account. In order to receive funds from Chase Paymentech, Merchant must designate (via the Application or otherwise) and 
maintain one or more bank account(s) used primarily for business purposes and which is held at a bank that ls a member of the Automated Clearing 
House system or the Federal Reserve wire system. All such designated bank accounts are collectively referred to herein as "Settlement Account". Chase 
Paymentech will not be liable for any delays in receipt of funds or errors in Settlement Account entries caused by third parties, including, without limitation, 
delays or errors by the Payment Brands or Merchant's bank. 

During the term of this Agreement, and thereafter until Chase Paymentech notifies Merchant that all amounts due from Merchant under this 
Agreement have been paid in full, Merchant: 

(a) must not close its Settlement Account without giving Chase Paymentech at least five (5) days' prior written notice and substituting another 
Settlement Account; 

(b) is solely liable for all fees, costs, and overdrafts associated with the Settlement Account; and 
(c) authonzes Chase Paymentech, or its authorized agent(s) to initiate electronic credit and debit entries and adjustments to the Settlement 

Account, or any other bank account designated by Merchant in writing, at any time without regard to the source of any monies in the Settlement 
Account. 

4.3 Conveyed Transactions. Conveyed Transactions are Transactions that Merchant submits to Chase Paymentech, but which are then conveyed to 
one or more third parties or Payment Brands for settlement and funding directly by them to Merchant (e.g. American Express Transactions). For Conveyed 
Transactions Merchant must have a valid agreement in effect with the applicable third party or Payment Brand. Payment of proceeds due Merchant for 
Conveyed Transactions will be governed by such agreement, and Chase Paymentech does not bear any responsibility or !iabillty for performing or failing 
to periorm any term, condition, or covenant under Merchant's agreement with any third party concerning Conveyed Transactions, including, without 

160



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page 8of17 

limitation, the funding and settlement of Merchant's Conveyed Transactions. If Merchant submits Conveyed Transactions to Chase Paymentech and 
Merchant does not have a valid agreement with the applicable third party or Payment Brand, Chase Paymentech may. but is not obligated to, convey such 
Transaction Data to the applicable third party or Payment Brand and to share with them information about Merchant (from the Application or otherwise) as 
may be required to approve Merchant's acceptance of the Conveyed Transaction. 

4.4 Funding Merchant for Settled Transactions. Subject to Section 4.3, for all Transactions, Chase Paymentech will submit Merchant's Transaction 
Data to the applicable Payment Brand. Promptly after Chase Paymentech receives funds for Settled Transactions from the Payment Brands, Chase 
Paymentech will provisionally fund Merchant's Settlement Account 

The dollar amount payable to Merchant for Settled Transactions will be equal to the amount submitted by Merchant in connection with its sale 
Transactions minus the sum of the following: 

(a) all fees, charges, and other amounts described on Schedule A or that Merchant has otherwise agreed to pay; 
(b) all Refund Transactions and Chargebacks; 
(c) all Reserve Account amounts (as defined in Section 4.6); and 
(d) all fees, charges, fines, assessments, penalties, or other liabilities (and all related costs and expenses incurred by Chase Paymentech) that may 

be imposed on Chase Paymentech or Member from time to time by the Payment Brands. 

In the event Chase Paymentech does not deduct amounts owed by Merchant from Merchant's proceeds when such amounts are due and payable, 
Merchant agrees to pay all such amounts to Chase Paymentech immediately without any deduction or offset Chase Paymentech may debit Merchant's 
Settlement Account for any such amounts. 

4.5 Negative Amounts. Merchant must maintain sufficient funds in the Settlement Account to prevent the occurrence of a negative balance. In the event 
that the proceeds from Merchant's Settled Transactions or the balance of Merchant's Settlement Account are not sufficient to pay amounts due from 
Merchant under thls Agreement, Chase Paymentech may, in addition to any other rights and remedies under this Agreement, pursue any one or more of 
the following 

(a) demand and receive immediate payment for such amounts; 
(b) debit the Settlement Account for the amount of the negative balance; 
(c) apply funds held in the Reserve Account against the negative amount; or 
(d) withhold all or some of Merchant's Settlement funds and apply them against the negative amount 

4.6 Reserve Account. To protect itself against Anticipated Risks arising out of or relating to Merchant's acceptance of Payment Instruments, Chase 
Paymentech may, from time to time, temporarily suspend or delay payment to Merchant of amounts due under this Agreement, or designate an amount of 
funds that Paymentech must maintain, and establish a Reserve Account with such funds. 

Anticipated Risks include, but are not limited to, risks associated with: 
(a) a material breach of the Agreement by Merchant; 
(b) providing Services to Merchant in light of Merchant's financial condition or payment history with creditors; 
(c) Chargebacks, 
(d) Refunds; 
(e) unshipped goods or unfulfilled services; 
ID lines, fees, or penalties assessed or reasonably anticipated to be assessed against Chase Paymentech or Member by any of the Payment 

Brands arising out of or relating to Merchant's: 
acceptance of Payment Cards; 

ii. acts or omissions; 
iii. Chargebacks; or 
iv. failure to comply with the Payment Brand Rules or Security Standards; 

(g) objections or concerns expressed by a Payment Brand that makes it unduly burdensome, impractical or risky to continue processing Merchant's 
Transactions; and 

(h) all anticipated trailing activity arising from Merchant's Transactions after termination of this Agreement. 

The Reserve Account: 
(i) must contain sufficient funds to cover: 

any unbilled processing costs; and 
H. Chase Paymentech's estimated exposure based on Anticipated Risks; 

(j) may be funded in the same manner as provided for negative balances in Section 4.5(a)- (d); 
(k) will be held and controlled by Chase Paymentech (and funds therein may be comingled with other funds); and 
(I) will not bear interest 

Upon the establishment of a Reserve Account, Merchant must: 
(m) irrevocably grant to Chase Paymentech a security interest in any interest Merchant may now have or !ater acquire in any and aH funds, together 

with the proceeds thereof, that may at any time be in the Reserve Account and that would otherwise be payable to Merchant pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement: and 

{n) execute and deliver to Chase Paymentech such instruments and documents that Chase Paymentech may reasonably request to perfect and 
confirm the security interest in the Reserve Account funds. 

Chase Paymentech: 
(o) may (but is not required to) apply funds in the Reserve Account toward, and set off any funds that would otherwise be payable to Merchant 

against, the satisfaction of any amounts which are or may become due from Merchant pursuant to this Agreement; and 
(p) will pay to Merchant any funds remaining in the Reserve Account after Merchant: 

i. satisfies all of its obligations under this Agreement and 
ii. executes all documents reasonably requested by Chase Paymentech in connection with the return of any Reserve Account funds. 

161



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page 9of17 

5. ACCOUNTING. 
5.1 Statements and Reporting. Chase Paymentech will supply a detailed statement (or online access thereto) reflecting the activity of Merchant's 
account(s). !f Merchant accesses account statements via the internet, Merchant must ensure that such online access is secure. 

5.2 Adjustments. If Merchant believes any adjustments should be made to its Settlement Account, Merchant must notify Chase Paymentech in writing 
within 90 days after any such adjustment is or should have been made. Chase Paymentech has no obligation to research or affect changes to Merchant's 
Settlement Account which are not brought to Chase Paymentech's attention within 90 days after Merchant received its activity statement. 

6. RETRIEVAL REQUESTS. A Retrieval Request is a request for information by a Customer or Payment Brand relating to a claim or complaint concerning a 
Transaction submitted by Merchant. Because a Retrieval Request requires Merchant to provide Chase Paymentech with specific Transaction information, 
Merchant must store and retain Transaction Data and Transaction Receipts, but must do so solely in compliance with the Payment Brand Rules and the 
Security Standards. Merchant acknowledges that failure to fulfill a Retrieval Request timely and in accordance with Payment Brand Rules may result in an 
ineversible Chargeback. If Chase Paymentech receives a Retrieval Request, Chase Paymentech will forward the same to Merchant. 

Upon receiving a Retrieval Request, Merchant must: 
(a) respond to the Retrieval Request within the time frame provided; and 
(b) include with Merchant's response the following documentation: 

I. a written resolution of Merchant's ·1nvest'1gaf1on of the Retr'ieval Request; and 
ii. legible copies of any supporting documentation requested or required by the Retrieval Request 

7. CHARGEBACKS. 
7.1 Chargeback Reasons. Merchant is liable for all Chargebacks. Some of the most common reasons for Chargebacks include: 

(a) Merchant fails to issue a Refund to a Customer after the Customer returns or does not receive goods or services; 
(b) Merchant did not obtain an authorization/approval code, as required under Section 2; 
(c) The Transaction Data was prepared incorrectly or fraudulently; 
(d) Chase Paymentech did not receive Merchant's response to a Retrieval Request in accordance with Section 6; 
(e) The Customer disputes the Transaction or the authenticity of the signature on the Transaction Receipt, or claims that the Transaction is subject 

to a set-off, defense, or counterclaim; 
(f) The Customer refuses to make payment for a Transaction because, in the Customer's opinion, a claim or complaint has not been resolved or 

has been resolved in an unsatisfactory manner; and 
(g) The Customer disputes making the Transaction and the Payment Card was not physically presented al the lime of the Transaction. In this case 

Merchant acknowledges that if the Merchant does not have an electronic record or physical imprint of the Payment Card, the Payment Brand 
Rules may not allow the Merchant to challenge the Chargeback. 

7 2 Responding to Chargebacks. If Merchant has reason to dispute or respond to a Chargeback, then Merchant must do so by the date provided on the 
applicable Chargeback notice. If Merchant misses the Chargeback due dale, Chase Paymentech has no obligation to investigate or attempt to obtain a 
reversal or other adjustment to any Chargeback on Merchant's behalf. Upon receiving a Chargeback, Merchant may resubmit the applicable Transaction 
Data for a second presentment if permitted by the Payment Brand Rules. 

7 .3 Excessive Chargebacks. If Merchant is receiving an excessive amount of Chargebacks, in addition to Cf1ase Paymentech's other remedies under 
this Agreement, Chase Paymentech may do any one or more of the following: 

(a) review Merchant's internal procedures relating to acceptance of Payment Cards and notify Merchant of new procedures Merchant should adopt 
in order to avoid future Chargebacks; 

(b) notify Merchant of a new rate Chase Paymentech will charge to process Merchant's Chargebacks; 
(c) require Merchant to replace any magnetic-strip-only point of sale terminal or electronic cash registered with an EMV chip-capable terminal, if 

required under the Payment Brand Rules 
(d) establish a Reserve Account; or 
(e) terminate the Agreement in accordance with Section 10.3. 

Merchant understands that having excessive Chargebacks may result in assessments, fines, fees, and penalties by the Payment Brands. Merchant 
agrees to reimburse Chase Paymentech immediately for any such assessments, fines, fees, and penalties imposed on Chase Paymentech or the Member 
and any related loss, cost, or expense incurred by Chase Paymentech or the Member. 

8. DISPLAY OF PAYMENT BRAND MARKS. Payment Brand Marks are the brands, emblems, trademarks, and logos that identify a Payment Brand. Merchant 
has no ownership rights in the Payment Brand Marks and cannot assign its right to use the Payment Brand Marks under this Agreement to any third party. 

Merchant must: 
(a) use the Payment Brand Marks only as expressly permitted by the Payment Brand Rules; 
(b) use the Payment Brand Marks only to promote the services covered by the Marks; 
(c) not use the Payment Brand Marks in any way that could cause Customers to believe that the goods or services offered by Merchant are 

sponsored, endorsed, or guaranteed by Chase Paymentech, Member or the Payment Brands; and 
(d) cease using the Payment Brand Marks when this Agreement terminates. 

9. FEES ANO AOJUSTMENTS, 
9.1 Schedule A. Merchant: 

162



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page 10of17 

(a) must pay all applicable fees for all Transactions. which are calculated and payable pursuant lo this Agreement and which may be adjusted from 
time to t'1me in accordance with Sect\on 9.2; 

(b) acknowledges that the fees payable under this Agreement and stated in Schedule A: 
are based upon Merchant's annual volume, average Transaction size, and other information provided by Merchant or contained in this 
Agreement; 

ii. are based upon the assumption that Merchant's Transactions will qualify for certain interchange rates as determined in each case by the 
applicable Payment Brand; If any of Merchant's Transactions fail to qualify for such interchange rates, Chase Paymentech will process 
each such Transaction al the applicable interchange rate determined by the applicable Payment Brand; and 

iii. will be rounded up to the next full cent to the extent they contain a fraction of a cent; and 
(c) is solely responsible for all communication expenses required to facilitate the transmission of all Transaction Data to Chase Paymenlech. 

9.2 Adjustments. The fees owed by Merchant under this Agreement (under Schedule A or any additional pricing supplement) may be ad1usled al any 
time: 

(a) with thirty (30) days' prior written notice; 
{b) to reflect increases in interchange, assessments, or other Payment Brand fees; 
(c) to reflect additional fees imposed by the Payment Brands; or 
(d) to reflect increases in, or additions to, third party fees. 

All adjustments hereunder will be effective either upon the date set forth in the written notice or upon the date the corresponding increase or additional fee 
is implemented by the Payment Brand or third party provider. 

10. TERM AND TERMINATION. 
10.1 Term. This Agreement starts on the day ii is accepted and agreed to by Chase Paymentech (the "Effective Date"). This Agreement will continue in 
full force and effect until ii is terminated by Merchant under Section 10.2, or by Chase Paymentech under Section 10.3. 

10.2 Merchant Termination. Subject to the terms of this Section 10.2, Merchant may terminate this Agreement al any lime by giving thirty (30) days' 
prior notice to Chase Paymentech. 

PLEASE READ 
AGREEMENT_ Oft TO FFfOM 

P.l\YMENTECH. 

Merchant may be obligated to repay all, or a prorated portion of, any Promotional Consideration Merchant received when ii signed up with Chase 
Paymentech. A Promotional Consideration is: 

(a) a signing bonus; 
(b) a free point of sale terminal or other equipment; 
(c) the waiver of any applicable fees; or 
(d) any other item of value, which was extended to Merchant in consideration of entering into th'1s Agreement. 

In the event Merchant's repayment of the Promotional Consideration is limited by applicable law, the amount owed to Chase Paymentech is limited to the 
maximum amount permitted under applicable law. Any amount owed to Chase Paymenlech under this Section 10.2 or Section 10.4 will be funded in the 
same manner as provided for negative balances in Section 4.5. 

10.3 Chase Paymentech Termination. Chase Paymentech may terminate this Agreement al any time by giving thirty (30) days' prior nof1ce to 
Merchant. Furthermore, Chase Paymentech may terminate this Agreement immediately if: 

(a) Merchant is determined to have excessive Chargebacks; 
(b) Chase Paymentech determines, in its reasonable discretion, that Merchant's Transactions present increased or excessive Anticipated Risks; 
{c) any representation or warranty in the Agreement, Including the Application or Schedule A, is determined to be incorrect in any respect when 

made or deemed to be made; 
(d) Merchant fails to comply with any term, covenant, condition, or agreement contained in this Agreement: 
(e) a case or other proceeding is commenced by or against Merchant in any court of competent jurisdiction seeking relief under the Bankruptcy 

Code or under any other laws, domestic or foreign, relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, winding up, or adjustment of debts, the 
appointment of a trustee, receiver, custodian, liquidator, or the like of Merchant, or of all or any substantial part of the assets, domestic or 
foreign, of Merchant and such case or proceeding continues undismissed or unstayed for a period of 60 consecutive days, or an order granting 
the relief requested in such case or proceeding against Merchant {including, without limitation, an order for relief under the Bankruptcy Code) is 
entered; 

(f) Chase Paymentech, in its reasonable discretion, deems Merchant to be financially insecure: 
(g) any Payment Brand: 

i. notifies Chase Paymentech or Member that it is no longer willing to accept Merchant's Transaction Data; or 
iL requires Chase Paymentech or Member to terminate or limit this Agreement or Merchant's ability to accept Payment Cards from 

Customers: 
(h) Merchant or any person owning or controlling Merchant's business ls listed ·in one or more databases of terminated or high risk merchants 

maintained by the Payment Brands; or 
(i) Merchant engages in conduct that 

a. creates or could tend to create harm or loss to the goodwill of any Payment Brand, Chase Paymentech, or Member; or 
b. causes Paymentech or Member to violate the Payment Brand Rules or applicable law; or 
c. results in Paymentech's, Member's, or Merchant's participation in a risk-based program under the Payment Brand Rules. 

If this Agreement is terminated by Chase Paymentech, Merchant acknowledges that Chase Paymentech may be required to report Merchant's business 
name, and information about its principals, to the Payment Brands, and Merchant expressly agrees and consents to such reporting. 

163



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page11 of17 

10.4 Active Account. Merchant's account will be cons'1dered "Active" as long as Merchant continues to make on-time payments of a!I amounts owed 
under the Agreement. But, if Merchant goes more than 90 consecutive days without making an on-lime payment of amounts due under the Agreement. 
Chase Paymentech may: 

(a) consider the Merchant's account as not Active; 
(b) terminate this Agreement immediately; and 
(c) subject to Section 10.2, collect all or a prorated portion of any Promotional Consideration. 

10.5 Post Termination. The termination of this Agreement will not affect either party's rights or obligations with respect to Transactions submitted prior to 
termination. Therefore, the provisions governing processing and settlement of Transactions, all related adjustments, fees, and other amounts due from 
Merchant, and the resolution of any related Chargebacks, disputes, or other issues involving Transactions, will continue to apply for all Transactions made 
prior to termination. 

Upon termination of this Agreement, Merchant must: 
(a) continue to be responsible for all Chargebacks, fees, fines, assessments, credits, and adjustments resulting from Transactions processed 

pursuant to this Agreement before termination; and 
(b) be responsible for all amounts then due or which thereafter may become due to Chase Paymentech or Member under this Agreement. 

Upon termination or notice of termination of this Agreement, Paymentech may, in its sole discretion and without waiving any of its rights or 
remedies under this Agreement: 

(a) establish a Reserve Account; and 
(b) process Transaction Data submitted by Merchant after termination in accordance with and subject to all of the terms of this Agreement. 

11. INDEMNIFICATION. Merchant agrees to indemnify Chase Paymentech, Member, the Payment Brands, and their respective affiliates. officers. directors, 
employees, agents, and sponsoring banks from any losses, liabilities, and damages of any and every kind (including, without limitation, Chase 
Paymentech's costs, expenses, and reasonable attorneys' fees) arising out of or related to: 

(a) Chase Paymentech's reliance on the information provided by Merchant, or Merchant's Authorized Representative, on the Application or in 
con1unction with the Application (including any information with respect to Merchant's financial condition); 

(b) any assessment, fine, or penalty ·imposed on Chase Paymentech or the Member, and any related loss. cost, or expense incurred by Chase 
Paymentech or the Member; and 

(c) any claim, complaint. or Chargeback: 
made or claimed by a Customer with respect to any Transaction or Transaction Data submitted by Merchant; 

ii caused by Merchant's noncompliance with this Agreement, applicable law, or the Payment Brand Rules (including, without limitation, any 
breach of a representation or warranty made by Merchant or Merchant's failure to comply with the Security Standards); 

iii. resulting from any voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding by or against Merchant: or 
iv. related to Chase Paymentech's reporting of Merchant. or any person owning or controlling Merchant's business, to the Payment Brands for 

inclusion in one or more databases of terminated or high risk merchants maintained by the Payment Brands. 

The indemnification provided for in this Section does not apply to any claim or complaint to the extent it is caused by Chase Paymeniech's own gross 
negligence or willful misconduct The indemnification provided for in this Section shall survive termination and is subject to the limitation of liability set 
forth in Section 14. 

12. TRANSACTION DATA, PAYMENT CARD INFORMATION AND PAYMENT CARD INDUSTRY COMPLIANCE. 

Merchant acknowledges that its: 
(a) failure, or the failure of any of its Service Providers. lo comply with the Payment Brand Rules, including the Security Standards, or the 

comprom'1se of any of Transacf1on Data or Payment Card Information (whether such Payment Card lnformaf1on ·1s under the control of Merchant 
or its Service Provider) may result in assessments, fines, and penalties by the Payment Brands and termination of this Agreement; and 

(b) use of any fraud mitigation or security enhancement solution (e.g. an encryption product or service), whether provided lo Merchant by Chase 
Paymenlech or a third party, in no way limits Merchant's obligation to comply with the Security Standards or Merchant's liabilities set forth in this 
Agreement. 

Merchant must not: 
(c) disclose Payment Card Information, except: 

to select employees, agents, and contractors on a "need to know" basis, solely for the purpose of assisting Merchant in completing a 
Transaction or otherwise complying with this Agreement: or 

ii. as specifically required by the Security Standards, Payment Brand Rules. applicable law, or government/regulatory demand; 
(d) use Payment Card Information, except: 

to complete a Transaction: or 
ii. as specifically permitted by this Agreement. the Security Standards, Payment Brand Rules, or applicable law; and 

(e) sell. transfer, or disclose to third parties any materials that contain Transaction Data or Payment Card Information in the event of Merchant's 
failure, including bankruptcy, insolvency, or other suspension of business operations. 

Merchant must: 
(f) comply with the Security Standards. Payment Brand Rules. and all applicable laws relating to the security, storage, and disclosure of 

Transaction Data and Payment Card Information; 
(g) provide Chase Paymenlech, upon its request, wilh all tests, scans, and assessments evidencing Merchant's compliance wilh the Security 

Standards) Payment Brand Rules, and applicable laws; 
(h) store and discard Transaction Data, Payment Card Information, and all media containing Payment Card Information in compliance with Payment 

Brand Rules and Security Standards; 

164



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page 12of17 

(i) notify Chase Paymentech immediately if Merchant determines or suspects that Transaction Data or Payment Card Information has been 
compromised and assist Chase Paymentech in provid'mg nof1flcation to all interested parties as may be required by law or Payment Brand Rules, 
or as Chase Paymentech otherwise reasonably deems necessary; 

U) notify Chase Paymentech immediately of its use of any Service Provider and Payment Application; 
(k) ensure that all Service Providers and Payment Applications used by Merchant: 

comply with the Security Standards; and 
ii. are registered with. or recognized by, the Payment Brands as being compliant with the Security Standards. 

(I) ensure that all EMV chip-capable terminals used by Merchant appear on the EMV co-approved terminal list maintained by the Payment Brands; 
(m) reimburse Chase Paymenlech immediately for any assessment, fine. or penalty imposed on Chase Paymentech or the Member and any related 

loss, cost or expense incurred by Chase Paymentech or the Member related to or arising from Merchant's acceptance of Payment Cards; 
(n) cooperate with, and cause all applicable Service Providers to cooperate with, any forensic examlnation or other audit required by the Payment 

Brands, Chase Paymentech or Member because of a Data Compromise Event; 
(o) pay for all costs and expenses related to a forensic examination or other audit required by the Payment Brands, Chase Paymentech, or Member 

(including all of Chase Paymentech's reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs related to the forensic exam or audit); 
(p) take all actions necessary lo achieve and maintain compliance in accordance with the results of, and in the time frame set forth in, a forensic 

examination or audit report from Chase Paymentech, the Payment Brands, or Member; and 
(q) upon request, return all materials that contain Transaction Data or Payment Card Information to Chase Paymentech or provide Chase 

Paymentech with acceptable proof of its destruction. 

Chase Paymentech may: 
(r) share Merchant's financial information, lnformation related to Merchant's Transactions, and other information provided by Merchant with Chase 

Paymentech's affiliates and the Payment Brands; 
{s) use or disclose information related to Merchant's Transactions: 

as necessary to process Merchant's Transactions or otherwise provide Services and maintain Merchant's account pursuant to this 
Agreement: 

ii. to detect prevent, reduce, or otherwise address fraud, security, or technical issues: 
iii. to enhance or i!Tjprove Chase Paymentech's products and Services generally; or 
iv. as required or permitted by the Payment Brands or applicable law; 

(t) prepare. use. or share with third parties. aggregated. non-personally 'identifiable information derived from Transacf1on Data of all of Chase 
Paymentech's customers or specific segments of Chase Paymentech's customers; 

(u) require, in its sole discretion, or based on information provided by the Payment Brands, a forensic examination of Merchant or Merchant's 
Service Providers due to a Data Compromise Event or suspected event; 

(v) require Merchant or Merchant's Service Provider to engage a forensic examiner in order to expedite the investigation of the Data Compromise 
Event or suspected event. Alternatively, Chase Paymentech may engage a forensic examiner on Merchant's or Merchant's Service Provider's 
behalf; and 

(w) investigate a Data Compromise Event of Merchant, if permitted under the Payment Brand Rules. 

13. INFORMATION ABOUT MERCHANT AND MERCHANT'S BUSINESS. 
13.1 Additional Financial Information. Upon five (5) days' written notice at any time, Merchant. and each Guarantor (if any), agrees to furnish to Chase 
Paymentech all financial statements and information as Chase Paymentech may reasonably request. Merchant's and each Guarantor's signature on this 
Agreement authorizes Chase Paymentech to perform any credit check deemed necessary with respect to Merchant and each Guarantor, as applicable. 

13.2 Audit Rights; Site Visit; Website Inspection. With prior notice and during Merchant's normal business hours. Chase Paymentech's duly 
authorized representatives may Visit Merchant's business premises and may examine Merchant's books and records that pertain to Merchant's 
Transactions or Merchant's compliance with this Agreement. Furthermore, Merchant may be contacted by Chase Paymentech or a third party contracted 
by Chase Paymentech who will need to gain access to Merchant's business operation to perform a site v'1sit and 'inspection (the "Site v·1sit") 'in compliance 
with Payment Brand Rules. The Site Visit will include, among other things, an interview with Merchant regarding the nature of Merchant's business, as 
well as photographs of Merchant's business operation. If Merchant is unavailable for the Site Visit as scheduled, Chase Paymentech may suspend the 
se!tlemenl of Merchant's Transactions until a Site Visit can be completed and approved by Chase Paymentech. If Merchant operates an ecommerce 
website, Chase Paymentech is obligated under the Payment Brand Rules to investigate the contents of such website. either directly or through review of 
screen shots presented to Chase Paymentech by Merchant (the "Website Inspection'). Chase Paymentech may suspend the settlement of Merchant's 
Transactions until a Website Inspection can be completed and approved by Chase Paymentech. In the event that Merchant fails to reasonably cooperate 
with the required Site Visit or Website Inspection. or in the event the results of the Site Visit or the Website Inspection are not approved by Chase 
Paymenlech, Chase Paymentech may terminate this Agreement immediately upon notice to Merchant. 

13.3 Notification to Chase Paymentech of Merchant's Changes. 
{a) Merchant agrees to provide Chase Paymentech at least 30 days' prior written notice of its intent to change current product lines or services, 

Merchant's trade name, or the manner in which Merchant accepts Payment Cards. If Chase Paymentech determines such a change is material 
to its relationship with Merchant, .Chase Paymentech may refuse to process Transaction Data made subsequent to the change or terminate this 
Agreement. 

(b) Merchant agrees to provide Chase Paymentech with prompt written notice: 
if Merchant is the subject of any voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy or insolvency petition or proceeding; or 

ii. of any: 
a. adverse change in Merchanfs financial condif1on; 
b. planned or anticipated liquidation or substantial change in the basic nature of Merchant's business; 
c. transfer or sale of any substantial part (25°/o or more in value) of Merchant's total assets; 

165



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page 13of17 

d. judgment, writ, warrant of attachment, execution, or levy against any substantial part (25% or more in value) of Merchant's total 
assets not later than three days after Merchant obtains knowledge of any such Judgment, writ, warrant of attachment, execution, or 
levy; or 

e. change in the control or ownership of Merchant or Merchant's parent if Merchant or Merchant's parent is not a corporation whose 
shares are listed on a national securities exchange or on an over-the-counter market. 

13.4 Referral Sources. Merchant may have been referred to Chase Paymentech for the execution of this Agreement by a third party who has entered into 
a formal referral relationship with Chase Paymentech (a "Referral Partner"). If that is the case, Chase Paymentech will be the sole provider of the services 
necessary to authorize, process, and settle all of Merchants Transactions in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement; however. 
Referral Partner may be involved in the servicing and maintenance of Merchant's merchant account. Therefore, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 
the Agreement, Merchant hereby authorizes Chase Paymentech to share Merchant's financial information, information related to Merchant's Transactions 
(including Payment Instrument Information) and any other information that Merchant provides to Chase Paymentech with Referral Partner. Merchant 
understands and agrees that Chase Paymentech will not be responsible for Referral Partner's subsequent use or disclosure of such information. 

14. DISCLAIMER; LIMITATION OF DAMAGES. Subject to Section 5, Chase Paymentech will, at its own expense, correct any Transaction Data if errors have 
been caused by Chase Paymentech or by malfunctions of Chase Paymentech's processing systems. 

PLEASE TH!S PROVlS10N n 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES WILL CHASE PAYMENTECH'S FINANCIAL LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO ITS PERFORMANCE 
OF SERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT EXCEED THE TOTAL FEES PAID TO CHASE PAYMENTECH BY MERCHANT UNDER THIS 

j AGREEMENT (NET OF PAYMENT BRAND FEES, THIRD PARTY FEES, INTERCHANGE, ASSESSMENTS, PENALTIES, AND FINES) FOR THE SIX 
(6) MONTHS PRIOR TO THE TIME THE LIABILITY AROSE. 

I 

EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED FOR IN THIS AGREEMENT, JN NO EVENT WILL ANY PARTY, ITS RESPECTIVE DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, 
EMPLOYEES, OR AFFILIATES, BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, REGARDLESS OF THE 
FORM OR ACTION AND EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. 

ANY FINES, FEES, PENALTIES OR ASSESSMENTS IMPOSED BY THE PAYMENT BRANDS RELATED TO MERCHANT'S ACCEPTANCE OF 
PAYMENT INSTRUMENTS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO BE CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. 

NEITHER PAYMENTECH NOR MEMBER SHALL BE LIABLE OR RESPONSIBLE FOR THE AUTHENTICITY, ACCURACY, CORRUPTION, 
DISAPPEARANCE, THEFT OF, DAMAGE TO, OR TAMPERTING WITH ANY DATA, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, TRANSACTION DATA, 
TRANSMITTED IN ANY FORM OR FORMAT TO PAYMENTECH BY OR ON BEHALF OF MERCHANT, AND PAYMENTECH AND MEMBER SHALL 
BE ENTITLED TO RELY ON DATA IT RECEIVED FROM OR ON BEHALF OF MERCHANT IN THE DISCHARGE BY PAYMENTECH AND MEMBER 
OF ITS OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER. 

I ALL PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THIS IS AN AGREEMENT FOR COMMERCIAL SERVICES. THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE DOES NOT 
APPLY AND CHASE PAYMENTECH AND MEMBER HEREBY DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, MADE TO 
MERCHANT OR ANY OTHER PERSON, REGARDING QUALITY, SUITABILITY, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR 
OTHERWISE (REGARDLESS OF ANY COURSE OF DEALING, CUSTOM, OR USAGE OF TRADE) OF ANY SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT OR ANY GOODS PROVIDED INCIDENTAL TO SUCH SERVICES. 

15. MISCELLANEOUS, 
15.1 Taxes. Unless Merchant is otherwise exempt, and, if applicable, provides a valid exemption certificate. Merchant agrees to pay any taxes imposed 
on the Services, equipment, supplies, and other property provided under this Agreement. and Merchant authorizes Chase Paymentech to increase the 
amount collected from Merchant to reflect any and all assessments or increases in the sales, use, occupational, property, lease, or other taxes imposed 
on such sale or lease of Services, tangible property, intellectual property, equipment, supplies, and other goods purchased. 

15.2 Section Headings. The section headings of this Agreement are for convenience only and do not define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of this 
Agreement. 

15.3 Assignment; Other Events. 
(a) Merchant may not transfer or assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of Chase Paymentech. Any transfer or assignment of this 

Agreement by Merchant, by operation of law, merger, or otherwise, without Chase Paymentech's prior written consent is null and void, and 
Merchant is fully responsible with respect to all Transactions submitted by the purported assignee/transferee, and for any and all related 
liabilities, Chargebacks, expenses, costs, fines, fees or penalties arising from such Transactions. No assignee for the benefit of creditors, 
custodian, receiver, trustee in bankruptcy, debtor in possession, sheriff or any other officer of a court, or other person charged with taking 
custody of Merchant's assets or business, has any right to continue or to assume or to assign this Agreement 

(b) Merchant agrees to provide Chase Paymentech with not less than 30 days' prior written notice of1 
i. any sale of all or substantially all of the assets of Merchant; or 
Ji. any person or entity becoming the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of securities representing more than fifty percent (50°/o) of the 

combined voting power of Merchant's securities, or otherwise acquires voting control of the Merchant. 
(c) Upon notice to Merchant, another Payment Brand member may be substituted for Member under whose sponsorship this Agreement is 

performed and for whom Chase Paymentech is acting as agent hereunder. Subject to Payment Brand Rules, Chase Paymentech may assign or 
transfer this Agreement and its rights and obligations hereunder and may delegate its duties hereunder, in who!e or in part, to any third party, 
whether in connection with a change in sponsorship, as set forth in the preceding sentence, or otherwise, without notice to or consent of 
Merchant 

166



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page 14of17 

15.4 Parties; Independent Contractor. This Agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, administrators, 
representatives, and permitted successors and assigns. Merchant agrees that it is responsible for its employees' actions. In providing Services to 
Merchant, Chase Paymentech will not be acting in the capacity of agent, partner, or joint venturer; Chase Paymentech is acting solely as an independent 
contractor. 

15.5 Representations, Merchant agrees to pertorm its obligations under this Agreement in compliance with all applicable laws. Merchant represents and 
warrants that statements made on its Application are true as of the date of this Agreement. Merchant represents and warrants that its execution of and 
performance under this Agreement: 

(a) in no way breaches, contravenes, violates, or in any manner conflicts with any of its other legal obligations, including, without limitation, its 
corporate charter or similar document or any agreement between Merchant and any third party or any affiliated entity; 

(b) has been duly authonzed by all necessary action and does not require any consent or other action by or in respect of any third party; and 
(c) that the person signing this Agreement on behalf of Merchant is an Authorized Representative. 

15.6 Publicity. Neither Chase Paymentech nor Merchant may publicly disclose, through press releases or otherwise, the existence of the business 
relationship that is the subject of this Agreement, without the prior written consent of the non-disclosing party. 

15.7 Severability. Should any provision of this Agreement be determined to be invalid or unenforceable under any law, rule, or regulation, including any 
Payment Brand Rule, such determination will not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement. 

15.8 Waivers. No term or condition of this Agreement may be waived except pursuant to a written waiver executed by the party against whom such 
waiver is sought to be enforced. 

15.9 Entire Agreement. The Payment Brand Rules, Application, Terms and Conditions, taxpayer identification and certification documentation, and all 
schedules, supplements, and attachments are made a part of this Agreement for all purposes. This Agreement represents the entire understanding 
between Merchant and Chase Paymentech with respect to the matters contained herein and supersedes any prior agreements between the parties. 
Merchant agrees that in entering into this Agreement it has not relied on any statement of Chase Paymentech or its representatives. This Agreement 
prevails over any conflicting terms of any agreement governing the Settlement Account. 

15,10 Notices. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, a!I notices must be given in writing and either hand delivered, faxed, mailed first class, 
postage prepaid, sent via electronic mail transmission, or sent via overnight courier (and will be deemed to be given when so delivered or mailed) to 
Merchant's legal address set forth in the Application, to Chase Paymentech at Attn: Legal Department, 14221 Dallas Parkway, Dallas, Texas 75254, or to 
such other address as either party may from lime to time specify to the other party in writing. Notices provided in writing on Merchant's monthly 
slatement(s) are sufficient for formal notice under the terms of this Section 15.10. 

15.11 Governing Law; Waiver of Right to Contest Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial; Arbitration. This Agreement will be governed by and construed 
in accordance with the !aws of the State of Texas without reference to conflict of !aw provisions. Any action, proceeding, arbitration hearing or mediation 
relating to or arising from this Agreement must be brought, held, or otherwise occur in Dallas County, Dallas, Texas. 

THJ\T /\NY RE.SOLVED B'Y 

WITH BINDING ARBITRATION MERCHANT ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT: 
(a) MERCHANT JS GIVING UP !TS RIGHT TO HAVE A TRIAL BY JURY TO RESOLVE ANY CLAIM ALLEGED AGAINST CHASE 

PAYMENTECH, MEMBER, OR RELATED THIRD PARTIES; 
(b) MERCHANT JS GIVING UP ITS RIGHT TO HAVE A COURT RESOLVE ANY CLAIM ALLEGED AGAINST CHASE PAYMENTECH, MEMBER 

OR RELATED THIRD PARTIES; AND 
(c) MERCHANT JS GIVING UP ITS RIGHT TO SERVE AS A REPRESENTATIVE, AS A PRIVATE ATTORNEY GENERAL, OR JN ANY OTHER 

REPRESENTATIVE CAPACITY, AND TO PARTICIPATE AS A MEMBER OF A CLASS OF CLAIMANTS, JN ANY LAWSUIT OR ARBITRATION FILED 
AGAINST CHASE PAYMENTECH, MEMBER, AND RELATED THIRD PARTIES. 

JN THE ABSENCE OF THIS ARBITRATION AGREEMENT, MERCHANT AND CHASE PAYMENTECH MAY OTHERWISE HAVE HAD A RIGHT OR 
OPPORTUNITY TO LITIGATE CLAIMS THROUGH A COURT BEFORE A JUDGE OR A JURY AND TO PARTICIPATE OR BE REPRESENTED JN 
LITIGATION FILED IN COURT BY OTHERS (INCLUDING CLASS ACTIONS), BUT, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED ABOVE, THOSE RIGHTS, 
INCLUDING ANY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL, ARE WAIVED AND ALL CLAIMS MUST NOW BE RESOLVED THROUGH ARBITRATION. 

Any claim, dispute, or controversy ("Claim") by either Merchant, Chase Paymentech or Member against the other, or against the officers, directors, 
employees, agents, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, beneficiaries, agents, successors, or assigns of the other, arising from or relating in any way to this 
Agreement or to the relationship formed between the parties as a result of this Agreement, including Claims regarding the applicability of this arbitration 
clause or the validity of the entire Agreement, shall be resolved exclusively and finally by binding arbitration administered by the American Arbitration 
Association ("AAA"). All Claims are subject to arbitration, no matter what theory they are based on. This includes Claims based on contract, tort 
(including intentional tort), fraud, agency, Merchant, Chase Paymentech's or Member's negligence, statutory or regulatory provisions, or any other source 
of law. Claims and remedies sought as part of a class action, private attorney general, or other representative action are subject to arbitration on an 
individual (non-class, non-representative) basis only, and the arbitrator may award relief only on an individual (non-class, non-representative) basis. 
Merchant and Chase Paymentech will agree on another arbitration forum if the AAA ceases operations. The arbitration wlll be conducted before a s'ingle 
arbitrator and will be limited solely to the Claim between Merchant and Chase Paymenlech and/or Member. The arbitration, or any portion of it, will not be 
consolidated with any other arbitration and wi!I not be conducted on a class-wide or class action basis. The prohibition against class action contained in 
this Sectlon shall be non-severable from the remainder of this Section. !f either party prevails in the arbitration of any Claim against the other, the non
prevai!ing party will reimburse the prevailing party for any fees lt paid to the AAA in connection with the arbitration, as well as for any reasonable attorneys' 
fees incurred by the prevailing party in connection with such arbitration. Any decision rendered in such arbitration proceedings will be final and binding on 

167



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page 15of17 

the parties. and judgment may be entered in a court of competent jurisdiction. Rules and forms of the AAA may be obtained and Claims may be filed at 
any AAA office, www.adr.org. or 335 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10017, telephone 1-800-778-7879. Any arbitration hearing at which Merchant 
appears will take place at a location within Dallas County, Dallas, Texas. This arbitration agreement is made pursuant to a transaction involving interstate 
commerce. and shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. §§ 1-16. This arbitration agreement applies to all Claims now m existence or 
that may arise in the future. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent any party's use of (or advancement of any Claims, defenses, or 
offsets in) bankruptcy or repossession, rep!evin, judicial foreclosure, or any other prejudgment or provisional remedy relating to any collateral, security, or 
other property interests for contractual debts now or hereafter owned by either party to the other. 

15.12 Force Majeure. Neither party will be liable for delays in processing or other nonperformance caused by such events as fires, telecommunications 
failures, utility failures, power failures, equipment failures, labor strife, riots, war, terrorist attack, nonperformance of Chase Paymentech's vendors or 
suppliers, acts of God, or other causes over which the respective party has no reasonable control, except that nothing in this Section 15.12 will affect or 
excuse Merchant's liabilities and obligations for Chargebacks, refunds, or unfulfilled goods and services. 

15.13 Amendment. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, the Agreement may be amended at any time by Chase Paymentech upon thirty (30) 
days' notice to Merchant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the terms of this Agreement must be amended pursuant to a change required by the 
Payment Brand Rules or any third party with jurisdiction over the matters described herein, such amendment will be effective immediately. Merchant's 
electronic signature or continued submission of Transactions to Chase Paymentech following such notice will be deemed to be Merchant's acceptance of 
such amendment. 

15.14 Counterparts; Electronic Signatures under the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act This Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but aH of which together will constitute one and the same instrument. Electronic Signatures, as 
defined by the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, retain all the legal effect and enforceability of an original signature. 

15.15 Merchant Taxpayer Certification and Chase Paymentech Reporting Obligations. Pursuant to 26 USC 6050W, Chase Paymentech is a 
"payment settlement entity", obligated to collect and report certain taxpayer information to the United States Internal Revenue Service. Therefore, in 
conjunction with the execution of this Agreement, Merchant must provide Chase Paymentech with the appropriate taxpayer certification documentation, 
via Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 (or the appropriate versions of Form W-8, if applicable). Merchant must promptly notify Chase Paymentech 
if there are any changes in this information. Chase Paymentech may deduct withholding taxes, if any, from proceeds payable to Merchant or any entity 
that is a party to this agreement where required under Applicable Law. Chase Paymentech may, in accordance with Applicable Law and from time to time 
during the term of this Agreement, request Merchant to recertify its taxpayer certification hereunder. Furthermore, Merchant is responsible for any 
penalties related to the reporting obligations of Chase Paymentech hereunder to the extent such penalties accrue based on the actions or inactions of 
Merchant despite reasonable notice from Chase Paymentech. 

16.SURVIVAL. The following Sections survive termination of this Agreement 4.2, 4.4, 4.5, 4.6, 5, 6, 7, 9, 10.2, 10.3. 10.4, 10.5, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17. and 
Personal Guaranty. 

17. TERMS USED IN THE APPLICATION AND THESE TERMS AND CONOITIONS. 

Application 

Authorized 
Representative 

Chargeback 

Chase Paymentech 

or Paymentech 

Conveyed Transaction 

Customer 

Data Compromise 
Event 

Effective Date 

EMV 

Guarantor 

Merchant 

Member 

Payment Application 

a statement of Merchant's financial condition, a description of the characteristics of Merchant's business or organization, and related 
information Merchant or its Authorized Representative(s), has previously or concurrently submitted to Chase Paymentech, including 
credlt, financial, and other business related iniormation, to induce Chase Paymentech to enter into this Agreement with Merchant and 
that has induced Chase Paymentech to process Merchant's Transactions under the terms and conditions herein 

an owner, partner, officer, or other agent of the Merchant that is duly authorized to enter into agreements on behalf of Merchant and 
to legally bind Merchant to such agreements 

a reversal of a Transaction Merchant previously presented to Chase Paymentech pursuant to Payment Brand Rules 

Paymentech, LLC, a Deiaware limited liability company, having its principal office at 14221 Dallas Parkway, Dallas, Texas 75254 

any Transaction conveyed to a Payment Brand for settlement by such Payment Brand directly to Merchant 

the person or entity to whom a Payment Instrument is issued or who is otherwise authorized to use a Payment Instrument 

An occurrence that results, or could result, directly or indirectly, in the unauthorized access to or disclosure of Transaction Data or 
i Payment Instrument Information 

The day this Agreement is accepted and agreed to by Chase Paymentech, as set forth in Section 10.1 

Europay, MasterCard and V!sa 

The person(s) identified in the Application as having an ownership interest in Merchant and who agree to be personally responsible 
for Merchant's obligations to Chase Paymentech under this Agreement 

The legal entity identified in the Application and whose name and signature appears on this Agreement 

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. or other entity providing sponsorship to Chase Paymentech as required by all applicable Payment 
·1 Brands. Member is a principal party to this Agreement and Merchant's acceptance of Payment Brand products ls extended by the 

Member 

a third party application used by merchant that is involved In the authorization or settlement of Trans action Data 

168



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page 16of17 

Payment Brand 

Payment Brand Rules 

Payment Card or 
Payment Instrument 

Payment Card 
Information or Payment 
Instrument Information 

Refund 

Refund Policy 

Retrieval Request 

Security Standards 

Services 

Service Provider 

Settled Transaction 

Stored Value Card 
Transaction 

Transaction 

Transaction Data 

Transaction Receipt 

Any payment method provider whose payment method is accepted by Chase Paymentech for processing, including: 

• Visa Inc.; 

• MasterCard International, lnc.; 

• Discover Financial Services, LLC; and 

• any other credit and debit card providers, debit network providers, gift card, and other stored value and loyalty program 
providers. 

Payment Brand also includes the Payment Card Industry Security Standards Council and the Electronic Payment Association 
(frequently referred to as "NACHA") 

All bylaws, rules, programs, regulations, specifications, and manuals, as they exist from time to time, of the Payment Brands 

An account, or evidence of an account, authorized and established between a Customer and a Payment Brand, or representatives or 
members of a Payment Brand that Merchant accepts from Customers as payment for a good or service. 

Payment Instruments include, credit and debit cards, stored value cards, loyalty cards, electronic gift cards, authorized account or 
access numbers, paper certificates, and credit accounts. Use of the term Payment Instrument or Payment Card throughout this 
Agreement includes any Payment Card with an embedded microcomputer EMV chip. 

Information related to a Customer or the Customer's Payment Card, that is obtained by Merchant from the Customer's Payment Card, 
or from the Customer in connection with his or her use of a Payment Card). Such information may include, but is not limited to: 

• the Payment Card account number and expiration date; 

• the Customer's name or date of birth; 

• PIN data, security code data (such as CVV2 and CVC2); and 

• and any data read, scanned, Imprinted, or otherwise obtained from the Payment Instrument, whether printed thereon, or 
magnetically, electronically, or otherwise stored thereon. 

For the avoidance of doubt, the data elements that constitute Payment Card Information are treated according to their corresponding 
meanings as "cardholder data" and "sensitive authentication data" as such terms are used in the then current PCI DSS. 

Any refund or credit issued for any reason, including, without limitation, for a return of merchandise or cancellation of services and any 
adjustment of a Transaction 

A written policy with regard to Refunds 

A request for information by a Customer or Payment Brand relating to a claim or complaint concerning a Transaction 

All rules, regulations, standards, or guidelines adopted or required by the Payment Brands or the Payment Card Industry 
Security Standards Council relating to privacy, data security, and the safeguarding, disclosure, and handling of Payment 
Instrument Information, including, without limitation, the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards ("PC! DSS"), Visa's 
Cardholder Information Security Program ("CISP"), Discover's Information Security & Compliance Program ("DISC"), American 
Express's Data Security Operating Policy, MasterCard's Site Data Protection Program ("SOP"), Visa's Payment Application 
Best Practices ("PABP"), the Payment Card Industry's Payment Application Data Security Standard ("PA DSS"), MasterCard's 
POS Terminal Security program, and the Payment Card Industry PIN Transmission Security program (PCI PTS), in each case 
as they may be amended from time to time 

All Transaction processing services provided by Chase Paymentech, including, without limitation, authorization, conveyance, 
settlement, and funding of all Transactions, as provided for in this Agreement or any subsequent agreement between the 
parties. The Services may also include the provision of or access to monthly statements or reporting tools, as well as 
assistance with Merchant's Chargebacks. 

Any party that processes, stores, receives, transmits, or has access to Payment lnstrument Information on Merchant's behalf, 
including, without limitation, its agents, business partners, contractors, and subcontractors 

A Transaction conducted between a Customer and Merchant utilizing a Payment Instrument in which consideration is 
exchanged between the Customer and Merchant for the purchase of a good or service or the Refund of such purchase and 
the value for such Transaction is settled by the Payment Brand through Chase Paymentech to the Merchant 

A Transaction in which a Customer adds or redeems value to or from a stored value card, gift card, or loyalty Payment Card 
issued by or on behalf of Merchant 

A transaction conducted between a Customer and Merchant utilizing a Payment Instrument in which consideration is 
exchanged between the Customer and Merchant 

The written or electronic record of a Transaction, including, without limitation, an authorization code or settlement record, 
which is submitted to Chase Paymentech 

An electronic or paper record of a Transaction generated upon completion of a sale or Refund, a copy of which is presented to 
the Customer 

Personal Guaranty. Each Guarantor whose name and signature appears in the Application (individually a "Guarantor" and collectively the "Guarantors") 
hereby, jointly and severally, unconditionally and irrevocably, guarantee the full, timely and continuing performance of each and every representation, 
warranty, covenant agreement and obligation of Merchant now or hereafter arising under or in connection with the Agreement, including, without 
limitation, any indebtedness and other liabilities of Merchant created, at any time, under or in connection with the Agreemeni {the "Guaranteed 
Obligations"). Each Guarantor is familiar with, and has independently reviewed books and records regarding, the financial condition of Merchant and is 
familiar with the value of any and all collateral intended to be created as security for the payment of the Guaranteed Obligations. However, no Guarantor is 
relying on such financial condition or collateral, including, without limitation, the existence of a Reserve Account (if any) as an inducement to enter into this 
Personal Guaranty. Each Guarantor hereby unconditionally and irrevocably waives any and all notices, demands and other formalities, of every kind and 

169



If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 1012013 Page 17of17 

description, including, without limitation, any (i) notice of acceptance of this Personal Guaranty, (ii) notice of the incurrence of any Guaranteed Obligation, 
(iii) notice of the occurrence of any breach or default relating to or in connection with the Agreement or (iv) demand for perfonmance or payment, 
presentment protest, notice of protest or proof of breach or default. This is an unconditional, irrevocable and continuing guaranty of payment and not a 
guaranty. of collection. Each Guarantor hereby acknowledges and agrees that such Guarantor is liable for the Guaranteed Obligations as primary obliger 
and Chase Paymentech, Member or any other beneficiary of the Agreement, as the case may be, may exercise !heir respective rights and remedies 
hereunder against one or more Guarantors, whether or not first or ever exercising their respective rights and remedies hereunder or otherwise against 
Merchant or any other guarantor or obliger or eniordng or coHect!ng any present or future collateral securing the Guaranteed Obligations. Each Guarantor 
hereby acknowledges and agrees that such Guarantor's obligations and liabilities pursuant to this Personal Guaranty shall in no way be discharged, 
released or in any way affected by (i) any action taken under or in connection with the Agreement or the Guaranteed Obligations, including, without 
limitation, any assignment, renewa!, extension, compromise, indulgence, forbearance, waiver, acceleration, modification, amendment or other change 
granted to Merchant or any guarantor or obligor or otherwise related thereto, (ii) the taking, holding, exchange, enforcement, waiver or release of any 
security for the performance of the Guaranteed Obligations or this Personal Guaranty, (iii) the release, in whole or in part, of Merchant or any other 
guarantor or obligor from any obligation or liability, (iv) the substitution of any one or more of the Guarantors or the acquisition of additional guarantors, (v) 
any insolvency, bankruptcy or similar proceedings involving or affecting Merchant or any other guarantor or obligor, (vi) the death, dissolution or ceasing to 
exist (whether voluntary or involuntary) of Merchant or any other guarantor or obliger or {vii) any other act, omission or circumstance whatsoever that may 
in any manner vary the risks of such Guarantor or might otherwise constitute a legal or equitable defense or discharge of such Guarantor or any other 
guarantor or obliger. Each Guarantor hereby waives all defenses based on occurrences of the types described in clauses (i) through (vii) above. Each 
Guarantor hereby represents and warrants that such Guarantor has received, or will receive, direct or indirect benefit from the making of this Personal 
Guaranty and that the Guaranteed Obligations and such benefit has a value reasonably equivalent to or greater than the obligations and liabilities incurred 
pursuant to this Personal Guaranty. This Personal Guaranty shall be binding on each Guarantor and such Guarantors heirs, administrators, legal 
representatives, successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of Chase Paymentech, Member and any other beneficiary of the Agreement, as the 
case may be, and their respective heirs, administrators, legal representatives, successors, and assigns, Neither Guarantor may, without the prior written 
consent of Chase Paymentech, assign any of its rights, powers, duties, or obligations hereunder. The Guarantors jointly and severally agree to pay 
reasonable attorneys' fees and a!I other costs and expenses which may be incurred by Chase Paymenlech in the enforcement of this Personal Guaranty. 

170



.!'al'rne.n!T!ansa_c!io~_S13les Volu.rne ·--··· $3~2,56_ .. o ........... . 
Av'"''nATransaction Amount $130.00 
PIN Debit I EBT Transactions O 

ConvP.vArl Transactions 81 

Number of locations 
···················································-····'······································ 

Authorization I Capture % 
"'""'"'""• - ~--"O'WWW ''"''--•WWW••• 

Chargebacks as o/o of Sales Transactions 

Stored Value Transactions 
·············-············· 

105.0% 
·•···············• 

0.0300% 

N/A 

.• ~ ... ~ N/A 

Target Qualification Level: MUTC 

MasterCard, Visa & Discover Incremental Discount Rate 

PIN Debit and/or EBT Network Fees 

PIN Debit - Incremental Discount Rate 
:::: .... : :.:.:== :·:: .:. ::::.=====:=.·::: ::: 

Credit 

~()):'13ger Discount Rate_(ifs_ettled_L_···· 

MasterCard (Credit transactions> $1000) 

Visa: ......................................... . 

Discover per transaction 

JCB 

American Express per transaction 

PIN Debit transaction 

0.130% 

0.110% 

N/A 

N/A 
··-·········-····· 

N/A 

$0.2000 
·········-···················· .. 

EBT 

...,,.,...,,. transaction 

Voyager per transaction 
-••''www"'"'"''~''"'"'''"''"'"' 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 
·····-··· 

Wright Express per transaction N/A 
'"'WWW""'"'"' --~"'"'"'''"'~---- "'"'WWW• 

H~sted ~<lY.~.'3rJ.13Per transaction N/A 

VUTC 

All standard PIN Debit Network Fees will be assessed 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

MasterCard Network Access & 
Brand Usage Fee (NABU) 

Visa Auth Processor Fee 

$0.0195 

Discover Data Usage Fee $0.0185 
"'"' "''"'''' 

Voyager per authorization 

W ~ght §xrire_s_sp('lrauthoriz,,tion 

Private Label authorization 

!=;! irr.h~rnA 

$0.0195 

$0.0155 

$0.0185 

$0.1500 
·····-·--

N/A 

N/A 
·---

N/A 

N/A 

Customer Initials Please initial to acknowledge page 1 of the Schedule A pricing sheet 

CONTROL NUMBER: 122274.V3134 Printed: March 18, 2014 Page 1 of 4 

171



Terminal Reprogram Fee 
AAA-"""·' "'~-'""'"'"'""www~A 

PIN Debit Setup Fee 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

Minimum Fee' $25.00 

Mon~hly_Helf>de_sk Fee N/A 

Online Reporting Tool N/A 
-3,;"(~!-;;~hEh~-;:_;~ij~;:; ,- Ni A Annual Fee N/A PIN Pad Encrypflon Fee 

Internet Product: NetConnect 
"~-~---------

.. ~.: .. :-!:.:::: ......... - ..... ··-·- - $50. 00 NIA 

fee N/A fee N/A 

1 - Monthly service fees wi1\ be debited for the first time in the month after your account has been set up. These fees will be debited regardless of 
whether you are processing transactions through your account. 

2 - If the total of all fees each month in section 1, 3, 4 and 5 do not equal the Monthly Minimum Fee, your account will be debited for the difference. 

3 - If Merchant obtains point of sate device(s) from Chase Paymentech for use with Safetech Encryption, the following additional fees shall be 
assessed: (a) a one.time fee of $10.90 per device; and (b) an encryption injection fee of $34.95 per device per occurrence. These assessments 
are in addition to the above Safetech Encryption Fee(s). If Merchant obtains point of sale device(s) from a third party, additional fees may apply. 
Merchant acknowledges and understands that its use of any fraud mitigation or security enfacement solution (e.g. an encryption product or 
service), whether provided to merchant by Paymentech or a third party, in no way limits Merchant's obligation to comply with the Security 
Standards or Merchant's liabilities set forth in this Agreement. 

4 - Visa Fixed Acqulrer Network Fee is a monthly fee assessed by Visa based on Merchant Category Code (MCC), dollar volume, number of 
merchant locations, number of tax id's, and whether the physical Visa card is present or not present at the time of the transaction. This fee can 
vary monthly. 

Statement Fee (Email I ROL) N/A No charge if statements are sent to a valid email address or accessed by Merchant through 

Resource Online, as elected Merchant oirn1_ttrh1ee'_.l\l'.'ll~~tio::_ __ •..........• - .. ·-····-~·············· 

Statement Fee (Mail) $5.00 Charged each month Chase Paymentech mails a statement (whether at the request of 
Merchant or because to a valid email address has 

~·-···~··-···························-~·~···········-~c~~-~~~-

Statement Fee "lrint) f\I/ A Charged for each archived statement you request to have printed , .... 

Supplies: Billed Per Order NIA Charges for supply orders vary based on the items ordered 

Fee $10.00 Charged when a cardhotder or card-issuing bank formally protests a charge 

Voice Authorization Fee $0 R~ Charged when you call the Voice Authorization phone number to authorize a credit card 
--············· 

A VS Fee - Electronic $0.02 Charge for each electronic address verification authorization 
-······-···--~·························· 

Batch Settlement Fee N/A Charged for each batch of transaction(s} you submit tor settlement 
·-········ ---········---~·········-·-········· ----·· 

ACH fee NIA Charged for each ACH (transmission of funds) sent to your account 
-·······- ····-·--··--···~··· 

ACH Return Fee <:;?~ nn ..--- _ _ Charged when Chase Paymentech is unable to debit fees from your account 

PIN Debit Injection Fee $40.00 Charged when merchant e!ects PIN Debit processing and applies to each device not 
purchased from Chase Paymentech. 

Resource Online No Statement I No Statement N/A 

Customer Initials x Please initial to acknowledge gage 2 of the Schedule A pricing sheet 

CONTROLNUMBER: 122274.V3134 Printed: March 18, 2014 Page 2 of 4 

172



ACH Services Fee 

JMQ0¢ii! 0i~i,@·'¥01i§M@ttl1'jifa 
MC Acquiring License Fee * 

DI Network Authorization Fee 

MC A VS Auth Access Fee (Card Present) 
~- ~- ,, 

MC A VS Auth Access Fee (Caro Not Prnsent) 

N/A 

NIA 

NIA 

0.0040% 

$0.0025 

$0.005 

$0.0075 

MC Card Validation Code 2 Fee $0.0025 

MC Account Status Fee (lntr<'l:regional) . . $0.025 

MC Account StatusFeE)(lnter-regic>naD . $0.03 

Visa Zero$ Account Verification Fee 

MC Processi11g lnte_grity Fee 

Visa Misuse of Authorization Fee 

Visa Zero Floor Limit Fee 

Visa Transaction Integrity Fee 

MC Cross Border Assessment Fee 

Visa International Service Assessment Fee 

Discover International Service Fee 

MC International Support Fee 

Visa Interregional Acquiring Fee 
~--- ----- -~-- -

Discover International Processing Fee 

.....•........•.•........ 

Visa Partial Auth Non-Participation Fee 

$0.025 

$0.055 

$0.048 

$0.10 

$0.10 

0.40% 

0.40% 

0.55% 

0.85% 

0.45% 

0.40% 

$0.01 

Fee per transaction NIA 

Block Activation Fee NIA 

Card Data File Fee N/A 

Charged on MasterCard Gross Sales volume. See additional information 
under Payment Brand Charges section on page 4. 

Charged by Discover on al! authorizations for card transactions that are settled 
through the Discover Network 

Charged by MasterCard when a merchant uses the address verification service 
to validate a cardholder address 

Charged by MasterCard when a merchant submits the Card Validation Code 2 
(CVC2) in an authorization request 

Charged by MasterCard or Visa when a merchant uses this service to do an 
inquiry that a card number is valid 

Charged when a card is authorized but not deposited and the authorization iS 
not reversed in a timely manner 

Charged when a transaction is deposited but never authorized 

Applies to Visa Debit & Prepaid transactions that do not meet qualification 
criteria for Custom Payment Service (CPS) categories 

Charged by MasterCard, Visa and Discover on foreign bank issued cards, 

Additional fee charged by MasterCard, Visa and Discover on foreign bank 
issued cards 

Applies to Petroleum merchants using automated fuel pumps that do not 
support Partial Authorization 

Customer Initials x Please initial to acknowledge page 3 of the Schedule A pricing sheet 

CONTROLNUMBER: 122274.V3134 Printed: March 18, 2014 Page 3 of 4 

173



Type 

Replacement Fee (swap) 

Injection Feejswap) 

Restocking Fee 
---~,. _,, ___ ,, .. _, __ ~---- ~----

Late Fee 

Return for reason other than 

For all equipment returned late, or not returned 

1 New Equipment Warranty timeframes 

Fee 

$50.00 

$100 - $500 

$34.95 ...., ..... 
$150.00 

$500.00 

5 years - Verifone VxSXX, Vx6XX, PP1000 SE180; Hypercom T 42XX, P1300 Pin pad, lngenico 1CT250, IPP320 
3 years - Verifone MX830 Pinpad 

1 year - all other new equipment 

Jn warranty coverage applies only to new equipment purchased or leased from Chase Paymentech 

Amount payable upon Termination 
In addition to the other amounts due under this Agreement (including without limitation, the fees and charges described in this Schedule A), you may 
owe an amount in the event you terminate this Agreement Whether you will owe that amount, and how much you will owe, will be determined in 
accordance with Section 1 O of the Merchant Agreement. 

Payment Brand Charges 
Part of the fees that we charge you for processing your transactions consist of fees we pay to the Payment Brands. These charges, called "Payment 
Brand Charges", include, but are not limited to, interchange rates, assessments. file transmission fees, access fees. and international and cross 
border fees. Therefore, in addition to the rates set forth above, you also will be charged Payment Brand Charges. Payment Brand interchange rates 
can be accessed online by visiting the Learning & Resources section of Chase Paymentech's website, and selecting "Understanding Interchange". 

Please note that Chase Paymentech may, from time to time, elect not to charge you for certain existing, new or increased Payment Brand Charges. !f 
we elect not to charge you, we still reserve the right to begin charging you for existing, new or increased Payment Brand Charges at any time in the 
future, upon notice to you. No such Payment Brand Charges will be imposed retroactively. 

* MasterCard assesses the MasterCard Acquiring License Fee annually to each Acquirer based on the total annual volume of MasterCard~branded 
sales (excluding Maestro PIN debit volume) of its U.S. domiciled merchants. To fairly distribute the fee across all Chase Paymentech MasterCard~ 
accepting merchants, a rate of 0.004%1 wll! be applied to aff of your MasterCard gross sales transactions. 

Authorized Representative Signature: Must appear on Merchant Application section 11 

Printed Name Title 

x 
Signature Date 

P!s21se you hDi"iJEc \nitlalec! 2 3 

CONTROLNUMBER: 122274.V3134 Printed: March 18, 2014 Page 4 of 4 
174



Av'"''°A Transaction Amount $80.00 Authorization I Capture% 105.0% 
···•··········· .. --·---··~·~····-••'" 

PIN Debit I EBT Transactions 0 as% of Sales Transactions 0.0300% 

Transactions 1,307 Stored Value Transactions N/A 

Safetech Encrvoted Items N/A 

Target Qualification Level: MasterCard: Merit I MM1 

········· ··::.v;s:,;::.::.f.f'§. 138tail ?IE:·m~i~9 fiiai~~i~j~ .. ·.~ · vCR2 
-.. J?Jscgye.E_ . pSL .Ef'!1~rg)n.g .. f\'ta.~.ket~ - Ct?.r~.. 0160 

' & Discover Rates as set Brand 

MasterCard, Visa & Discover Incremental Discount Rate 

Bil_li_r\~.~reg~_E!nc.r.. .. ___ ~-·· 
..................•.....•.. ...•.. 

PIN Debit and/or EBT Network Fees 

PIN Debit - Incremental Discount Rate 

0.2300% 

Monthly ···-· . 

All standard PIN Debit Network Fees will be assessed 

N/A 
.::: .. :::.::=:.::::::::: ... :: .. : :. 

___ J(;B(JElpa.:iE!se Credit.BureE!_u) N/A 

N/A 

.... ~ .. ~~~=~~.~~~--.,.~~7{Q~-~~~;~~i~~~n;)~: .. ~.~~~~·nd 0.110°/o MasterCard Network Access & $0.0195 $0.0195 
MasterCard (Creda lransaclioos > $1000) 0.130% Brand Usage Fee (NABU) 

~·········-························································~·-

Visa 0.110% Visa Auth Processor Fee $0.0155 

Discover 0.105% Discover Data Us_age_~ee 

American Express Per transaction 

PIN Debit per transaction 
·············-·-

EBT 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 
...........•. --·-

N/A 

$0.2000 

N/A 

N/A 

Voyager per transaction N/A 
.. ~··~·-············~··· 
Wright Express per transaction N/A 
···~·~··········-· ·~·· 

Hosted N/A 

$0.1500 

authorization $0.1500 

N/A 

American Express per authorization $0.1500 
~····· ·-····~~·· "" •"'""""""~"'"""-'""""""" 

Voyager per authorization N/A 
"""""""--• "··- " "'""'''"'""~"""'- .•.•••...•.............•....... 
Wright Express authorization N/A 

""""" -~·-··-·· "" _,,_, __ ,_ 

Safetec.h Enc;ryptio.n P.E!r t~ans_~c;tio..'1.. N/A 

Customer Initials x Please initial to acknowledge page 1 of the Schedule A pricing sheet 

CONTROL NUMBER 122277, V3134 Printed: March 18, 2014 Page 1 of 4 

175



Fee NIA .!'A_c:~th~L~~l[)c:IE)~kf=ee NIA 

NIA Online Tool NIA 
·~v.~0··~··w···"·'A'•\c\ViO •''M"CV·••'''A~·~·-- ~AA' 

PIN Pad Fee NIA Safetech NIA Annual Fee NIA 

Internet Product: NetConnect 
'' •''' "~-----~AO,AOV•.-•-~ OA ' - A AA,,,,,,__ ----~· , .. -~-~AAO 0 "~--

$50.00 fee NIA 

fee NIA Third Party Monthly fee NIA 

1 - Monthly service fees will be debited for the first time in the month after your account has been set up. These fees will be debited regardless of 
whether you are processing transactions through your account. 

2 lf the total of all fees each month in section 1, 3, 4 and 5 do not equal the Monthly Minimum Fee, your account will be debited for the difference. 

3 If Merchant obtains point of sale devlce(s) from Chase Paymentech for use with Safetech Encryption, the following additional fees shall be 
assessed: (a) a one~time fee of $10.90 per device; and (b) an encryption injection fee of $34.95 per device per occurrence. These assessments 
are in addition to the above Safetech Encryption Fee(s). If Merchant obtains point of sale device(s) from a third party, additional fees may apply. 
Merchant acknowledges and understands that its use of any fraud mitigation or security enfacement solution (e.g. an encryption product or 
service), whether provided to merchant by Paymentech or a third party, in no way limits Merchant's obligation to comply with the Security 
Standards or Merchant"s llabilities set forth in this Agreement. 

4 - Visa Fixed Acquirer Network Fee is a monthly fee assessed by Visa based on Merchant Category Code (MCC), dollar volume, number of 
merchant locations, number of tax id's, and whether the physical Visa card is present or not present at the time of the transaction. This fee can 
vary monthly. 

Statement Fee (Email I ROL) 

Statement Fee (Mail) 

Supplies: Billed Per Order 

Fee 

Voice Authorization Fee 

A VS Fee - Electronic 

Batch Settlement Fee 

ACH fee 

ACH Return Fee 

PIN Debit Injection Fee 

Customer Initials x 

N/A No charge if statements are sent to a valid email address or accessed by Merchant through 
............................... R.e .. source Online, as elected by Merchant on the Application. 

$5.00 

NIA 

$10.00 

$0.65 

Charged each month Chase Paymentech mails a statement (whether at the request of 
Merchant or because delivery to a valid email address has 

Charged for each archived statement you request to have printed 

Charges for supply orders vary based on the items ordered 

Charged when a cardholder or card-issu"1ng bank formally protests a charge 
................. - .. •·······-·-··-~··~········ 

Charged when you call the Voice Authorization phone number to authorize a credit card 

$0.n? 

NIA 

_ _ Charge for each electronic address verification authorization 

Charged for each batch of transaction{s) you submit for settlement 
-········-······· 

NIA Charged for each ACH (transmission of funds) sent to your account 

.<r::?c:; nn ..... --· _ _ Charged when Chase Paymentech ls unable to debit fees from your account 

$40.00 
Charged when merchant elects P!N Debit processing and applies to each device not 
purchased from Chase Paymentech. 

Resource Online No Statement I No Recap Statement Frequency: N/A 

Please initial to acknowledge page 2 of the Schedule A pricing sheet 

CONTROLNUMBER: 122277.V3134 Printed: March 18, 2014 Page 2 of 4 

176



Monthly Fee 
"~~· ·~-· .. ~··-·~"" " - ~~·~ 
ACH Services Fee 

iM¥fiMl!li,1.@1•¥1¥§1il*Mlfu, 
MC Acquiring License Fee • 

DI Network Authorization Fee 

MC A VS Auth Access Fee (Card Present) 

MC A VS Auth Access Fee (Card Not Present) 

MC Card Validation Code 2 Fee 

MC Account Status Fee (lntra-r.e'gional) 

MC Account Status Fee (lnter:re§Jional) 

Visa Zero$ Account Verification Fee 

MC Processi~ng lnte§lfity Fee 

Visa Misuse of Authorization Fee 

Visa Zero Floor Limit Fee 

Visa Transaction Integrity Fee 

MC Cross Border Assessment Fee 

Visa International Service Assessment Fee 

Discover International Service Fee 

MC International Fee 

Vi,;alnterr"fl~onal l\C:Cluiring Fee .. 

Discover International Processing Fee 

Visa Partial Auth Non-Participation Fee 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

0.0040% 

$0.0025 

$0.005 

$0.0075 

$0.0025 

$0.025 

$0.03 

$0.025 

$0.055 

$0.048 

$0.10 

$0.10 

0.40% 

0.40% 

0.55% 

0.85% 

0.45% 

0.40% 

$0.01 

Prnr.A~~inn Fee per transaction 

Block Activation Fee 

Card Data File Fee 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Charged on MasterCard Gross Sales volume. See additional information 
under Payment Brand Charges section on page 4. 

Charged by Discover on all authorizations for card transactions that are settled 
through the Discover Network 

Charged by MasterCard when a merchant uses the address verification service 
to validate a cardho!der address 

Charged by MasterCard when a merchant submits the Card Validation Code 2 
£CVC2) in an authorization request 

Charged by MasterCard or Visa when a merchant uses this service to do an 
inquiry that a card number is valid 

Charged when a card is authorized but not deposited and the authorization is 
not reversed in a timely manner 

Charged when a transaction is deposited but never authorized 

Applies to Visa Debit & Prepaid transactions that do not meet qualification 
criteria for Custom Payment Service (CPS) categories 

Charged by MasterCard, Visa and Discover on foreign bank issued cards. 

Additional fee charged by MasterCard, Visa and Discover on foreign bank 
issued cards 

Applies to Petroleum merchants using automated fuel pumps that do not 
support Partial Authorization 

Customer Initials x Please initial to acknowledge page 3 of the Schedule A pricing sheet 

CONTROL NUMBER: 122277. V3134 Printed: March 18. 2014 Page 3 of 4 

177



Type 

Replacement Fee (swap) 

Replacement Fee (swap) 

l~jection Fee_(sw~p) 

Restocking Fee 
' - -- --· ----~ -~~- -- ---

Late Fee 

Description 

In warranty- Terminals, Printers, & 
'"'"'~ .. --.. .-

Out of warranty - Terminals, Printers, & Pinpads: Replacement 
based on Manufacturer and Model and will fall within the 

Safetech 

Return eauioment for anv reason other than 

For all equipment returned late, or not returned 

1 New Equipment Warranty timeframes 

Fee 

$50.00 

$100 - $500 

$34.95 

$150.00 

$500.00 

5 years-Verifone Vx5XX, Vx6XX, PP1000 SE180; Hypercom T42XX, P1300 Pinpad, lngenico ICT250, IPP320 

3 years - Verifone MX830 Pinpad 
1 year- all other new equipment 

In warranty coverage applies only to new equipment purchased or leased from Chase Paymentech 

Amount payable upon Termination 
In addition to the other amounts due under this Agreement (including without limitation, the fees and charges described in this Schedule A), you may 
owe an amount in the event you terminate this Agreement. Whether you wi!l owe that amount, and how much you will owe, will be determined in 
accordance with Section 10 of the Merchant Agreement. 

Payment Brand Charges 
Part of the fees that we charge you for processing your transactions consist of fees we pay to the Payment Brands. These charges, called "Payment 
Brand Charges", include. but are not limited to, interchange rates, assessments, file transmission fees, access fees, and international and cross 
border fees. Therefore, in addition to the rates set forth above, you also will be charged Payment Brand Charges. Payment Brand interchange rates 
can be accessed online by visiting the Learning & Resources section of Chase Paymentech's website, and selecting "Understanding Interchange". 

Please note that Chase Paymentech may, from time to time, elect not to charge you for certain existing, new or increased Payment Brand Charges. Jf 
we elect not to charge you, we still reserve the right to begin charging you for existing, new or increased Payment Brand Charges at any time in the 
future, upon notice to you. No such Payment Brand Charges will be imposed retroactively. 

* MasterCard assesses the MasterCard Acquiring License Fee annually to each Acqulrer based on the total annual volume of MasterCard-branded 
sales (excluding Maestro PIN debit volume) of its U.S. domiciled merchants. To fairly distribute the fee across all Chase Paymentech MasterCard
accepting merchants, a rate of 0.004o/o will be applied to all of your MasterCard gross sales transactions. 

Authorized Representative Signature: Must appear on Merchant Application section 11 

Printed Name Title 

x 
Signature Date 

P1ease }l'D)J ha:ve ini!istled 1, 

CONTROL NUMBER: 122277.V3134 Printed: March 18, 2014 Page 4 of 4 
178



CHASEO 

SETUP DISCLOSURE AUTHORIZATION ADDENDUM 

THIS SETUP DISCLOSURE AUTHORIZATION ADDENDUM (this "Addendum") is dated as of 
____ , 2014, by and between Paymentech, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Paymentech"), and 

___________ ,a _Local_ Gov't ("Merchant"). 
(Corporate Name) 

I. Effect. This Addendum supplements, and is hereby incorporated into and made a part of, that certain 
Merchant Agreement, dated effective as of , between Paymentech and Merchant (the 
"Merchant Agreement"). Except as otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning 
assigned to them in the Merchant Agreement. This Addendum shall supplement (and, as necessary, amend) the 
Merchant Agreement. Except to the extent they conflict with, or are inconsistent with, this Addendum, Merchant 
shall remain obligated to comply with all portions of the Merchant Agreement, including, without limitation, the 
Payment Brand Rules, Operating Guide and all schedules and attachments to the Merchant Agreement. 

2. Setup Disclosure Authorization. Merchant is utilizing the services of the third-party supplier, vendor or 
VAR set forth below (the "Third Paf!Y"), and in connection with the services to be provided thereby, desires for 
Paymentech to provide the Third Party with certain infom1ation relating to Merchant's card processing account with 
Paymentech, including confidential password and login information belonging to Merchant (the "Information"). 
Merchant understands and acknowledges that the misuse or unauthorized disclosure of the Information by the Third 
Party could allow unauthorized persons to access Merchant's account, conduct unauthorized transactions on 
Merchant's account, or otherwise cause Merchant substantial harm for which Paymentech shall not be responsible or 
liable. Merchant hereby authorizes Paymentech to disclose the Information to the Third Party, and hereby agrees to 
waive and release Paymentech from any and all claims existing now or arising hereafter, caused by, arising out of or 
in any way relating to such disclosure by Paymentech and/or any use, misuse or unauthorized disclosure of the 
Information by the Third Party or any other third party which may obtain such information directly (or indirectly 
through one or more intermediaries) from the Third Party. 

Third Party Name: Xpress Solutions Inc. 
Address: 387 S 520 W Suite 110 

Lindon, UT 84042 
Fax: 800-768-0535 

3. Miscellaneous. With exception of the Merchant Agreement, which is incorporated herein and made a part 
hereof by reference, this Addendum (including all schedules, riders and exhibits attached thereto) embodies the 
parties' final, complete and exclusive agreement with respect to the subject matter. This Addendum shall supersede 
all prior and contemporaneous agreements, understandings and representations, \Vfitten or oral. Any waiver, 
amendment, or modification of this Addendum, or any of its terms, must be in writing and signed by the party 
against whom such waiver, amendment or modification is sought to be enforced. No waiver by either party of any 
breach of this Addendum shall be deemed a waiver of any other breach or any subsequent breach; nor shall such 
waiver affect either party's right thereafter to enforce any provision of this Addendum or to exercise any right or 
remedy in the event of any other default. 

Paymentech, LLC y (Corporate Name) 

By: _________ _ By: 

Printed Name:-----------~ Printed Name: ___________ _ 

Title: Title: 

F82 1 

179



Metavante'"' 
Bill Payment Service - Electronic Payment Profile 

·- -· ·- ·- --- - - - - - - - ·- -PAYEE AND BANK INFORMATION 
Payee Information Payee Bank Information 

' Company Name City of Prosser Xpress Deposit Account 

File Setup Contact Name Paul Grinceri 
Telephone Number (800)768-7295 ext. 920 

Fax Number (800)768-0535 

E-mail Address pgrinceri@xpressbillpay.com 

REMIT TO ADDRESS AND ACCOUNT INFORMATION 
Payee Information 

Company Name City of Prosser 

Company Also Known As (list all known names, 
City of Prosser, Prosser, City of Prosser WA, Prosser WA, City of Prosser 

, abbreviations, and aliases) 
Washington, Prosser Washington, City of Prosser Utilities, Prosser Utilities, City 
of Prosser Water, Prosser Water, City of Prosser Sewer, Prosser Sewer 

I 
I 
' 

Primary Remit to Address( es) 601 7'' Street, Prosser, WA 99350 

Secondary Remit to Address( es) 

Account Number Length 1-22 Alphanumeric 

Account Number Format 1. xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 
(Edit Patterns)* 2. 

3. 
If you have additional edit patterns please list them on a separate sheet and 
return with this form* 

Location of Special Codes 
(Front or Back of Edit Patterns) 

CHECK DIGIT ROUTINE/ ALGORITHM 

Standard Mod 10: __ -'N~A'-'-----------
Standard Rev Mod 10:_~N=A~-----------

If you require a custom algorithm, please provide the calculation with this form or include in your file specifications. 

- - -- ----- -- - -- -- - .. - - - -· - - - - - - -· - - - -PAYMENT & FILE SUPPORT CONTACT INFORMATION 
If Payment File is Encrypted Email Delivery 1. 
Please list Group email address for file delivery 2. 
(Must be Group Email box, no private accounts 3. 
allowed, ie. Yahoo, Hotmail) 

Payment Research Customer Service Number 888-214-4805 Ext. 100 

Payment Research Contact Name/Number Technical Support 800-768-7295 ext. 1 

Escalation Customer Service Name/Number sue Holmstead 800-768-7295 ext. 916 
j Technical File Support Name, Number/Email Adam Fairbanks 800-768-7295 ext. 914 

Who to notify when files will be delayed Adam Fairbanks 800-768-7295 ext. 914 

Revised 1/2013 

I 
I 
' 

180



ELECTRONIC PAYMENT INFORMATION 

Required Bank Information for ACH-CIE Credits 

Routing Transit Number: -~1"'2°'4"'3"'0""'1"02,,,5,__ _____ _ 

Account Number: -~9~1~3~0~8~65~---------

Type of Account: DOA _x_ SAV OTHER (check one) 

PAYMENT POSTING DETAIL 
Payment File Pickup Time: 10:30 PM 

. Manual or Automated File Pickup? ----'-'A"'u_,,to'-'m=at,.,e"'d ___________________ _ 

Are payments posted same day or next day from file pickup date? -~S"'a"'m_..,e~D"'a"'yc__ ________ _ 

What is the latest time you can receive Metavante payment file? ------------------

Can you receive multiple files per day? YES NO 

If Yes, what times? ---------------------------------

Can payments be posted on Saturday? YES NO 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Please provide any payee-specific information or detail not captured elsewhere: Xpress Bill Pay Customer ID# 10311 

Signature:-----------------------------'-
Date: ________ _ 

Date Form Received 
Received Via: 
Date Payee Contacted/Followed Up: 
Date Payee Setup: 

Payee ID 
Payee Relationship Manager: 

Other: 

Revised 112013 

Metavante Corporation 
Mail Code 1515W2 
4900 West Brown Deer Road 
Brown Deer, WI 53223-2422 
fax: 414-291-8747 
Email: I.lli.Yee.relationship.management@metavante.com 

FOR METAVANTE INTERNAL USE ONLY: 

i 

I 

181



Contact Name 
Telephone Number 
Fax Number 
E-mail address 
Payment Research Number 

Company Name and Alias' 

Remit To Address 
Other Address' 
Teleohone Number 
Fax Number 
Contact Name 
E-mail address 
Account Number Mask 
Xpress Bill Pav ID 

Financial Institution Name 
Phone Number 
Account Number to be 
Credited 
Routinq Number (ABA) 
Tvpe of Account 

Signature 

801 N. Black Branch Rd 
Elizabethtown KY 42701 

Direct 270-737-0590 
Fax 866-489-9989 

Merchant Account Retrieval System 
(MARS) Setup Form 

Xnri>~~ Bill Pav Master 

Master Biller Contact Information 

Contact Information Technical Contact 
Paul Grinceri Adam Fairbanks 
800-768-7295 ext. 920 800-768-7295 ext. 914 
800-768-7203 800-768-7203 
oorinceri@xpressbillpay.com afairbanks@xpressbillpay.com 
800-768-7295 ext. 1 

Organization Contact Information 

City of Prosser, Prosser, City of Prosser WA, Prosser WA, City 
of Prosser Washington, Prosser Washington, City of Prosser 
Utilities, Prosser Utilities, City of Prosser Water, Prosser Water, 
Citv of Prosser Sewer, Prosser Sewer 
601 7th Street, Prosser, WA 99350 

509-786-2332 
.. 

509-786-3717 
Elia Belmares 
ebel mares(ij)ci. i:irosser. w 9. us 
1-22 Alphanumeric 
10311 

Deposit Information 

Xpress Deposit Account 
800-768-7295 

9130857 

124301025 
Checkinq LSI I Savinqs D 

Authorized Merchant Representative 

Name Date 
Authorized Merchant Representative 

iPay Administrative use only 

I "~ ,..m, "''' ~ 
Rcv'd by Date__/__/ __ 

The information tr dential and/or 

'"'""''" """""' "" "''" mfo-•'"" by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender. 

iPay Technologies, LLC - MARS Merchant Setup Form 
182



Purpose: This form should be completed by the Sponsor (Merchant) and submitted to CheckFree prior to contract and/or 
Implementation. 

Any or all of the following Merchant representatives should complete this form: 
• Remittance/Billing Representative 
• Accounts Receivable/Customer Database Representative 
• Bill Processing Representative 

Profile 

CITY OF PROSSER GOING THRU XPRESS BILL PAY 

CONTACT: Elia Belmares ORGANIZATION ID#: 10311 

POSITION: Assistant Finance Manager FEIN: 91-6001268 

' EMAIL: ebe!mares@ci.Qrosser.wa.us WEB (IF ANY): www.cityofgrosser.com 

PHONE: 509-786-2332 FAX: 509-786-3717 

Remittance Addresses 

601 ?'h Street i Prosser, WA I 99350 

---·---- ·--·-·-·-... --. --~------·-··---------' 

Biller Names (Any name or OBA printed on your remittance coupons) 

City of Prosser Prosser City of Prosser WA 

Prosser WA City of Prosser Washington Prosser Washington 

City of Prosser Uf11if1es Prosser Util"ifles City of Prosser Water 

Prosser Water City of Prosser Sewer Prosser Sewer 

Default Remittance Address 
--·~-----

601 ?'h Street Prosser, WA . 99350 

I **REVER_S_A_L_S ___ C_K_F_~ FILE TO XPRESS BILLPAY 
------1 

Account Number Information 

How many characters are in the account number? 1~22 Alphanumeric 

Does anything need to be removed from the account number (e.g. dashes, spaces, etc ... )? [8]Yes 0No 
ff yes, please explain: Decimals 

Does the account number have logic associated with it to help in identifying products, locations, etc ... ? ISIYes 0No 
If yes, please explatn: Route Numbers 

!s the account number clearly and completely visible to the customer on the bil!? ISIYes DNo 

Are there edit or mod checks associated with the account number? OYes [SJ No 
If yes, please attach a copy of the mod calculation. 

Are the account numbers static or do they change frequently? Static 
lf they change, what action can make it change? 

--"·-------------- ---------

Signature-----------------------------------------------------------
Date ____________________ _ 

183



184



Section 1. Contact Information ............................................................................ 2 
1.1 Client Contact Information ................................................................................. 2 

1.2 ORCC Contact Information ................................................................................. 2 

Section 2.. Application Services .............................................................. 3 

2.1 Company/ Divisions .......................................................................................... 3 

2.3 Account Validation ........................................................................................... 3 

3.5 Biller CS! Setup - Reconciliation Reporting .......................................................... 3 

Client Assessment September 2006 
185



CONTACT INFORMATION 

[ 1.1 Client Contact Information 
1 Company Name: Xpress Bill Pay 

Address: 387 s. 520 W. 
Address2: Suite 110 
City, State, ZIP: Lindon, UT 84042 
Customer Service Telephone: 800-768-7295 ext. 1 

New Biller to be Add to Lockbox Proper Name: CITY OF PROSSER 

Primary Business Contact 

Name: Paul Grinceri 

Title: Operations Manager 

Phone: 800-768-7295 ext. 920 
Fax: 800-768-7203 

Email: pg rinceri@xpressbillpay.com 

Primary Customer Service Contact 

Name: Sue Holmstead 

Title: Customer Service Manager 

Phone: 800-768-7295 ext. 916 
Fax: 800-768-7203 

Email: shholmstead@xpressbillpay.com 

1.2 ORCC Contact Information 
Project Manager 

Name: 

Phone: 
Fax: 

Email: 

Client Assessment 

I 
Name: 

Title: 

Phone: 
Fax: 

Email: 

I 
Name: 

Phone: 
Fax: 

Email: 

Primary IT Contact 

Adam Fairbanks 

Chief Technology Officer 

800-768-7295 ext. 914 
800-768-7203 
afairbanks@xpressbillpay.com 

Implementation Manager 

Neha Shah 
609-606-3355 
609-606-3256 
nshah@orcc.com 

September 2006 
186



I 

LOCKBOX PRO CLIENT ASSESSMENT DOCUMENT 

SETTINGS 

2.1 [ New Biller Names AKA's: City of Prosser, Prosser, of Prosser WA, 
Divisions I Prosser WA, City of Prosser Washington, Prosser Washington, City of 

DDA: 

Prosser Utilities, Prosser Utilities, City of Prosser Water, Prosser Water, 
of Prosser Sewer, Prosser Sewer 

2.2 Remit I 601 7tt Street 
Addresses I Prosser, WA 99350 

2.3 Account I Account Number Structure ·This will be used to validate 
Validation I billing account numbers. (Requi1·es 30 days notice to ) 

What is the maximum client account length? 22 

What is the minimum client billing account length? 1 

ls there a special account number structure? NO 

ls there a check algorithm? NO 

Are account numbers numeric or alpha/numeric? 
Numel'ic ~ Alpha/Numeric 

9130873 
Exact Name on Account: Xpress Deposit Account 
Account ~Checking D 

3.5 Biller CSI 
Setup -

Reconciliation ~ame: ADD NEW BILLER TO XPRESS BILL PAY CS! USER 
Reoortina sername: 

Additional Comments: 

Client Assessment September 2006 
187



LOCKBOX PRO CLIENT ASSESSMENT DOCUMENT 

By signing below the client agrees that the information attached is correct, if there are any 
substantial changes to the information provided this may affect the dates agreed upon for 
implementation. 

CLIENT'S SIGNATURE DATE 

IMPLEMENTATION SIGNATURE DATE 

Client Assessment September 2006 
188


	3-25-2014 Regular City Council Mtg Agenda
	Consent Agenda Item 6a
	Consent Agenda Item 6b
	Consent Agenda Item 6c
	Consent Agenda Item 6d
	Consent Agenda Item 6e
	Consent Agenda Item 6f
	Consent Agenda Item 6g
	Consent Agenda Item 6h
	Consent Agenda Item 6i
	Agenda Item 7a
	Agenda Item 7b
	Agenda Item 7c
	Agenda Item 7d
	Agenda Item 7e
	Agenda Item 7f
	Agenda Item 7g
	Agenda Item 7h
	Agenda Item 7i



